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Teamwork 
Behind Victory
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Like a finely tuned team working in unison, manganese alloys are crafted by 
blending minerals containing compounds of iron and silicon manganese. This 
combination results in materials that boast strength, durability, and electrical 
performance of the steels to which alloy is added. 
Today, the manganese alloy market is entering a high-growth phase, fuelled by 
several strategic drivers:
Building the Future: Rapid expansion in infrastructure and construction 
sectors is propelling steel demand—and with it, manganese alloy consumption.
Driving Innovation: The automotive industry is pivoting towards lighter, more 
efficient materials to reduce emissions, opening the door wider for manganese 
alloys.
Powering Sustainability: The renewable energy sector is turning to 
manganese alloys for their strength in applications like wind turbines and solar 
components.
Game-Changing Technology: New advancements in alloy processing are 
setting the stage for diversified industrial use.
Market forecasts project a healthy 7.79% CAGR from 2022 to 2030, 
reflecting robust global demand and ongoing innovation.

At Maithan Alloys, 
every year is a new season—and 

2024-25 was a championship year. 
We delivered peak performance across 

financial and operational metrics:

Profit Before Tax: 
₹ 858 Crore

Profit After Tax:
₹ 640 Crore

INTRODUCTION
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THE 
FIELD OF 

Opportunity

Maithan Alloys Ltd. stands as a frontrunner in the 
Indian manganese alloy industry, with a 
reputation for excellence that extends far beyond 
national borders. We specialize in high-grade 
manganese alloys and play a pivotal role on the 
global field. Our cutting-edge production facilities 
and relentless focus on innovation enable us to 
meet the evolving needs of steelmakers 
worldwide.
Through strateg ic  partnersh ips and a 
commitment to quality, Maithan Alloys has built a 
worldwide network of trust. We're not just 
bridging markets—we're laying down the turf for 
a global league of progress and performance.

Expanding Our 
Global Playbook



The Training 
Ground for

Excellence
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Laying the Foundation for 
Future Champions

Welcome to the Annual Report of Maithan Alloys 
Limited.
This year's theme, “Sports,” serves as a 
metaphorfor how we connect: people, ideas, 
industries, and futures. Like sports cuts across 
barriers like race and boundaries, and inspires 
and celebrates hard work and achievement, 
Maithan Alloys links resources to results, talent to 
opportunity, and innovation to impact.
We're committed to creating a winning culture 
grounded in:
Operational precision
Stakeholder alignment
Resilient growth
This is our training ground-a place where 
commitment meets preparation and every 
challenge is a stepping stone to greatness.
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 in Motion
Innovation
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At Maithan Alloys, our purpose drives us like a team chasing 
victory—fuelled by values, powered by innovation, and guided 
by sustainability.
Our vision is bold: To be India's most respected alloy 
company. We play the long game, building trust with 
stakeholders, delivering unmatched value to customers, and 
creating an empowering environment for employees.
We move ahead by staying grounded—focused on hard work, 
purpose, and people. This approach ensures not just growth, 
but enduring leadership on the world stage.

Playing 
Fair.

Playing 
to Win.
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VISION STATEMENT
To be India's premier alloy company that is built on the solid 
foundation of shareholder trust,customer commitment, employee 
satisfaction and sustainable communities. To consistently deliver on 
our promises backed by meticulous hard work is our motto for 
ensuring success.

At Maithan, we fuel progress through energy and efficiency—not 
only in our alloys but also in our outlook. We aim to transcend limits, 
transforming potential into achievement as producers, partners, 
and pioneers.

We face challenges head-on, with heads held high and values firmly 
rooted in the ground beneath us. This balance is what powers our 
sustainable journey forward—for ourselves and those we serve.

12



Preparing 
grounds 
for the Ideal 
Finish!
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Leading 
the Charge
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Mission 
Ensuring excellent shareholder value: 
Generate a high ROCE coupled with lower-than-market 
debt ratios. 

Nurturing our employees:  
Ensuring employee growth by creating a secure and 
stress-free working environment that encourages hard 
work and expanding knowledge base. 

Commitment to our customers: 
Irrespective of the market conditions, we will always 
strive for the highest product standards that will in turn 
ensure complete customer satisfaction.

Caring for our communities: 

A clean environment, education, housing, health and 
sustainability for our communities will always remain 
our mission.



Ÿ Maithan Alloys stands as a beacon of unwavering commitment to social responsibility, transforming 
lives and empowering communities through its impactful CSR initiatives.

Ÿ The company has played a pivotal role in areas like Education, Healthcare, sports and community 
welfare, which we think needs our attention.

Ÿ Over the years, we at Maithan Alloys have been doing our bit to make a difference.

Ÿ Founded in 2017, BMA Foundation was set up to drive the various philanthropic initiatives of 
Maithan Alloys Ltd.

Ÿ Throughout our journey, we have made a difference to the lives of people across India.
Ÿ From the remotest villages and towns to metropolitan cities, we have nurtured stories of hope, 

resilience, and transformation.
Ÿ We are creating change in the areas of Rural Transformation, Health, Education, Sports for 

Development, Disaster Response, Culture & Heritage.

Ÿ We aim to provide opportunities for the young to develop themselves into future citizens who 
contribute to society. We support various educational organisations towards the same.

Ÿ The trust has also set up a school in Neamatpur – Asansol.
Ÿ Donated a new school block to Government Girls Higher Secondary School, Acharapakam, TN, 

fostering better learning opportunities.

We are committed to enhancing India’s healthcare ecosystem through community health initiatives 
and health outreach to vulnerable communities.

We support:
Ÿ Guru Gangeshwar Bhuramal Nishulk Netra Chikitsa Sewa sansthan, Vrindavan: A clinic providing 

free health check-up and medicines.
Ÿ Provided an X-Ray machine to Kanchi Kamakoti Childs Trust Hospital for improved medical care.
Ÿ We also carry out food distribution, health check-ups and provides medicines for locals from 

villages nearby our plant.

Ÿ Organized blood donation camps at are Vizag unit to support healthcare needs.
Ÿ Provided groceries and essentials to underprivileged individuals through ICHA Foundation.
Ÿ Sponsored an RO Plant at Junguluru Village, ensuring clean drinking water access.

Ÿ Our initiatives enhance India’s green cover through nature-based solutions like tree plantation 
drives. Focusing on indigenous tree species, suited to the local climate and soil conditions.

BMA Foundation :

Education Support:

Healthcare Contribution:

Community Welfare:

Green Environment

16

“Giving Back to Society" 



17

“Giving Back 
to Society"

Empowering Champions: Maithan's 
Commitment to Sports

At Maithan, we believe in nurturing talent and 
fuelling ambition. Through our sports 
sponsorship initiatives, we proudly support 
some of India's most promising athletes. Their 
achievements reflect not only personal 
excellence but also the spirit of resilience and 
national pride we stand behind.

Minakshi Hooda's meteoric rise in Indian boxing is a 
testament to her grit and skill. Her recent 
performances have placed her among the elite in 
international competition:

Gold Medal 
Elorda Cup International, 2024, Elite Women's 
National Boxing Championship, Noida 2025, Elite 
Women's National Championship, 2023, National 
Games, 2022

Silver Medal 
World Boxing Cup Stage 2, Astana 2025, Elite 
Women's National Championship, 2021

ASBC 
Asian Boxing Championships, 2022

Notably, Minakshi has defeated world-class 
opponents including Nitu Ghanghas and Rahmonova 
Saidahon, showcasing her dominance in the ring.

Minakshi Hooda - 48kg Boxer

Shiksha Narwal has consistently proven her mettle 
across national and international platforms:

Gold Medals
Senior National Championships (Noida, Bhopal, 
Hisar, Haridwar)

Silver Medal 
Stranza Cup, Bulgaria, South Asian Games

Bronze Medals
Asian Championship (Vietnam), Senior Nationals 
(Rohtak, Hyderabad 2025)

Represented India
World Championships, Turkey

Her journey is a blend of experience, endurance, and 
excellence.

Shiksha Narwal - 54kg Boxer



“Giving Back 
to Society"
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Jyoti Gulia's achievements span youth and senior 
levels, marking her as a formidable force in Indian 
boxing:

Gold Medal
World Championship, India, Senior Nationals 
(Noida, Kerala, Hyderabad 2025), Youth National 
Championship, Delhi

Silver Medal
Youth Serbia International Cup, Senior Nationals, 
Bhopal

Bronze Medal 
Youth Italy International Competition, Senior 
Nationals, Hisar

Qualified
Youth Olympic Trials

Her consistent podium finishes showcases her 
dedication and rising global stature.

Bharti represents the next generation of boxing 
talent, with a strong foundation built through school, 
university, and youth competitions:

Gold Medals 
School National Championship, Junior 
International, Youth Nationals, REC Nationals

Silver Medal
Senior Open National Championship, 63rd School 
Nationals, REC Combined Tournament, All India 
University Championship

Bronze Medal
Youth Ireland International Tournament, All India 
University Boxing Championship

Participation
Khelo India University Championship, National 
Games

Her journey reflects Maithan's commitment to 
nurturing talent from grassroots to elite levels.

These athletes continue to inspire future 
generations and elevate India's presence on the 
global sports stage. We are proud to stand in their 
corner.

Jyoti Gulia - 51kg Boxer Bharti – Emerging Talent



A resilient long-distance runner from West Bengal, 
Shyamali Singh has earned national acclaim through 
her consistent podium finishes across India’s 
premier marathons. Her accolades include:

Gold Medals 
Jaipur, Prayagraj, Kochi, and Nasik Marathons

Silver Medals   
Standard Chartered Mumbai Marathon and 
Maharashtra Police International Marathon

Bronze Medals
Tata Mumbai Marathon (2020 & 2024) and 
Aizawl International Half Marathon

Overcame a brain tumor in 2020 and made a 
triumphant return to competitive racing

Represents Bengal 
at national championships with aspirations to 
compete internationally in 2026

Her story is one of grit, perseverance, and an 
unwavering commitment to excellence.

Sports Sponsorships:
Ÿ Sponsored Ananya Pravin at Bahrain International Series 2024, where she won Gold with her partner.
Ÿ Sponsored Shivani Agarwalla, who represented India at IKMF World Championship 2024 and secured Gold.
 
Maithan Alloys Ltd is also supporting budding Indian boxers by providing essential equipment and requirements to 20 
young boxers. This initiative has significantly contributed to their development and success on the National stage. Some 
have already been selected for International Training Camps too.
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A powerhouse from Durgapur, West Bengal, Sima 
Dutta Chatterjee is a decorated international 
powerlifter and certified national referee. Her 
achievements span multiple continents:

Gold Medals 
6 Golds at the Commonwealth Championship (New 
Zealand, 2022)

Bronze Medals
Bronze medals at the World Championship 
(South Africa, 2023)

Strongest Woman titles across Asia-Pacific-
African meets

Over 50 medals across national, state, 
and district levels

Academic excellence paired with coaching 
credentials in fitness, yoga, and aerobics

Sima exemplifies strength, discipline, and 
leadership—both on and off the podium.

Sima Dutta Chatterjee – 
International Powerlifting Icon

Shyamali Singh – 
Marathon Champion



Successful people...Successful people...Successful people...
They relax by working. They sleep with a dream,They relax by working. They sleep with a dream,

awake with a commitment, & work towards a goal.awake with a commitment, & work towards a goal.
They relax by working. They sleep with a dream,

awake with a commitment, & work towards a goal.
- S. C. Agarwalla20
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At Maithan Alloys Ltd., every endeavour is driven 
by the pursuit of excellence, where performance 
meets purpose in a way that shapes lasting 
success. Like athletes on the field, we set 
ambitious goals, push boundaries, and persevere 
through challenges—because every milestone we 
achieve is more than just a number; it's a legacy 
built on dedication, strategy, and resilience. From 
innovation in alloy manufacturing to sustainable 
practices that empower communities, we are 
constantly striving to be better, achieving new 
heights in global markets, and inspiring change 
that goes beyond business. Just as every goal 
scored in sports echoes through history, every 
success at Maithan Alloys strengthens our 
foundation for the future—creating impact, driving 
growth, and leaving an indelible mark of 
excellence.

Striving. 
Achieving. 

Inspiring.



Chairman’s Statement

Dear Stakeholders,

As we reflect on the fiscal year 2024-25, I am proud to report that Maithan Alloys 
Ltd. has demonstrated resilience and strategic foresight in navigating a 
cha l l eng ing  economic  l andscape .  Desp i t e  fa c i ng  s i gn i fi can t 
headwinds—including volatile raw material prices, escalating energy costs, and 
global geopolitical tensions—the company has maintained its commitment to 
operational excellence and sustainable growth.

Our performance underscores the strength of our business model and the 
dedication of our team. We have not only weathered the storm but have also 
positioned ourselves for long-term success. This report outlines our 
achievements, challenges, and the strategic initiatives that will drive our future 
growth. Your unwavering commitment and resilience have been instrumental in 
navigating the complexities of an evolving global market.

The Ferro alloys industry has witnessed significant shifts, shaped by geopolitical 
factors, economic fluctuations, and rising operational costs. Despite these 
challenges, Maithan Alloys has remained steadfast, demonstrating financial 
prudence and strategic agility. Our ability to sustain profitability and operational 
efficiency in an unpredictable environment is a testament to our collective 
dedication and vision.

To our shareholders and investors: we deeply appreciate your trust and belief in 
our long-term growth strategy. We are committed to maximizing shareholder 
value by expanding our market presence, investing in cutting-edge technologies, 
and enhancing efficiencies across our operations. The fiscal year ahead presents 
new opportunities for expansion and product innovation, reinforcing our position 
as an industry leader.
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To our workforce: you are the driving force behind Maithan Alloys. Your hard 
work and dedication ensure the seamless functioning of our operations, and 
we remain committed to fostering a safe, inclusive, and growth-oriented work 
environment. Initiatives in skill development, workplace safety, and career 
progression will continue to be our priority, ensuring that every team member 
is empowered to reach their full potential.

To our management team: your strategic vision and execution remain pivotal 
in steering Maithan Alloys towards sustained success. In an era of rapid 
industry transformation, your leadership and adaptability have been 
invaluable in maintaining operational resilience and driving new avenues of 
growth.

Beyond business success, we recognize our responsibility toward 
sustainability and community engagement. As a responsible corporate 
entity, we have prioritized environmental stewardship by optimizing resource 
efficiency, and integrating sustainable practices into our production 
processes. Moreover, we continue to support initiatives that uplift local 
communities, investing in education, healthcare, and skill-building programs 
to create meaningful social impact. As we look ahead, Maithan Alloys remains 
committed to excellence, innovation, and responsible growth. We are 
focussed on driving innovation by harnessing global trends in business 
strategy. With a shared vision and collaborative spirit, I am confident that we 
will continue to forge new pathways to success and contribute meaningfully to 
society.

Thank you for your trust and support. Together, we will shape a stronger, more 
sustainable future.

Warm regards, 

Sincerely,
Mr. S. C. Agarwalla 
Chairman & Managing Director
Maithan Alloys Ltd.

we recognize our 
responsibility toward 

sustainability and 
community engagement. 



Management 
Discussion & 
Analysis (MD&A)

The latest outlook from the International Monetary Fund (IMF) projects global 
growth at 3.3 % in both 2025 and 2026. For emerging markets and 
developing economies, growth over this period is expected to broadly align with 
2024 levels. Global headline inflation is forecast to ease to 4.2 % in 2025 and 
further to 3.5 % in 2026, with advanced economies anticipated to return to 
target inflation rates sooner than their emerging and developing counterparts.

Nevertheless, uncertainty stemming from elevated tariff regimes and policy-
driven disruptions could complicate the shift toward more accommodative 
monetary policies, raising concerns for fiscal sustainability and financial stability. 
Navigating these risks will require a careful balance between inflation 
management and real economic activity, coupled with efforts to rebuild policy 
buffers, advance structural reforms, and reinforce multilateral cooperation.

Despite persistent geopolitical frictions and trade uncertainties, particularly those 
arising from evolving U.S. tariff policies, global growth is expected to remain 
resilient in the coming years. This stability will be underpinned by moderating 
inflation, supportive monetary conditions, stronger consumer demand, and 
robust investment momentum.

Global Economy

(A)  Economy Overview and Outlook .

Maithan Alloys Annual Report 2024-2524
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In India, growth is projected to be at 6.5 % in the years 2025 and 2026 
significantly outpacing global and regional peers. From modernising infrastructure 
to simplifying taxes,these measures are fuelling domestic growth and positioning 
India as a cornerstone of global economic stability.

The Government of India has introduced a series of visionary policies and 
initiatives aimed at driving sustained growth and strengthening the country's role 
in the global economy. From large-scale infrastructure projects to fostering 
innovation in manufacturing, the digital economy, and financial inclusion, these 
measures are transforming key sectors. Stable domestic demand, coupled with 
growth in agriculture and services, continues to underpin economic performance. 
Collectively, these efforts highlight India's commitment to building a resilient, 
self-reliant, and globally competitive economy.

Capital expenditure by the Government of India has been a key contributor to 
India's impressive growth. It has been investing heavily in infrastructure with 
₹ 11.11 lakh crores being allocated for capital expenditure in the Union Budget 
2024-2025 and a capital expenditure of ₹ 11.21 lakh crores being set aside for 
FY 2025-2026.

India's foreign exchange reserves stood around US $ 676.3 Billion as of 4 April 
2025. The management of foreign exchange reserves, which provide a cushion 
against exchange rate volatility, was prudent throughout the year.

Indian Rupee opened at a level of ₹ 83.36 against US Dollar on 1 April 2024 and 
closed at ₹ 85.45 on 31 March 2025.

Repo rate, which was 6.50 % in the beginning of the financial year, has been 
progressively reduced to 6.25 % during the financial year. On 9 April 2025, the RBI 
has announced a 25 bps reduction in the repo rate, bringing it down to 6 %.

Indian Economy



(B)  Industry Overview and Outlook

Steel Industry

The steel industry plays a pivotal role in economic development and is often 
regarded as a key indicator of industrial growth. While global steel demand 
registered a marginal decline during the year under review, robust consumption in 
India and Brazil helped offset sharper losses worldwide. India, the world's 
second-largest steel producer after China, continues to demonstrate strong 
resilience and growth momentum in this sector.

India is currently experiencing the fastest pace of steel demand expansion since 
the global financial crisis. Forecasts suggest that domestic demand will grow by 
8–9 % in 2025, far exceeding the growth rates of most other economies. This 
strong outlook underscores the sector's dynamism, fueled by multiple demand-
side drivers.

The surge in demand is primarily linked to the increasing use of steel-intensive 
construction in residential housing and infrastructure projects. Major government 
programs—such as Housing for All and large-scale infrastructure 
development—are acting as key catalysts. Rising demand from engineering, 
packaging, and industrial manufacturing sectors is further expected to reinforce 
this momentum.

However, a growing challenge for the industry has been the sharp increase in steel 
imports over the past two years, which has turned India into a net importer of 
steel. In FY25, imports rose to 9.5 million metric tonnes (MMT)—the highest 
since FY16—driven largely by inflows of flat steel products from China, Korea, and 
Japan. 

Maithan Alloys Annual Report 2024-2526
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Sectoral Factors 
Influencing India's Near-Term 
Steel Consumption Outlook 
in India :

Ÿ Infrastructure Capex: The trend of rising public capital expenditure is 
expected to continue, with the central government budgeting ₹11.2 trillion for 
FY 2025-26. Long-term, interest-free loans to state governments will further 
support state-level capex. Modernisation of railways and the development of 
high-speed highway corridors remain key priorities in transport infrastructure.

Ÿ Real Estate: Residential real estate launches are set to accelerate in FY 2025-
26, supported by declining unsold inventory. Commercial real estate is also 
gaining momentum, driven by the rapid expansion of Global Capability Centres 
(GCCs) and Data Centres.

Ÿ Public Housing: The PM Aawas Yojana (PMAY) has been extended with a 
target of constructing 20 million additional houses over the next five years. 
With guidelines finalised last year, the scheme's implementation is expected to 
gather pace in FY 2025-26.

Ÿ Private Capex: Private investment is being buoyed by production-linked 
incentive schemes, improving capacity utilisation, stronger corporate balance 
sheets, and an easing monetary policy. While global trade headwinds pose 
some risks, supply chain realignments are expected to be supportive in the 
medium term.

Ÿ Consumer Durables: Demand prospects remain positive, aided by rural 
consumption recovery, improving consumer confidence, lower interest rates, 
and easing food inflation.

Ÿ Automobiles: The auto sector is expected to grow steadily, supported by new 
model launches (particularly EVs), infrastructure expansion, replacement 
demand, and incentives for e-buses. While auto exports have strong medium-
term prospects, near-term trade-related challenges warrant attention.

Ÿ Defence Manufacturing: The government's focus on defence 
preparedness, indigenisation of procurement, and higher global defence 
spending are likely to stimulate growth in domestic defence manufacturing 
and exports.

Increased demand for steel production will provide a favourable domestic outlook 
for Ferro Alloys consumption



The Role of Ferro Alloys 
in the Indian Steel Industry
Ferroalloys form the backbone of steelmaking, as they are essential for imparting 
strength, ductility, toughness, and resistance to wear and corrosion. By acting as 
deoxidizers, desulfurizers, and alloying agents, ferroalloys improve the quality and 
performance of steel products, making them indispensable to India's fast-growing 
steel industry.

1. Critical to Steelmaking Process

 o India, the second-largest producer of crude steel globally, 
ferromanganese, silicomanganese, ferrochrome, and ferrosilicon.

 o These alloys play a crucial role in refining molten steel, removing 
impurities and enhancing mechanical properties.

2. Demand Driven by Infrastructure and Manufacturing

 o India's steel demand is being propelled by infrastructure expansion, 
housing, automotive, engineering, and manufacturing growth.

 o With government initiatives such as Housing for All and Make in India, 
steel consumption—and consequently ferroalloy demand—is expected 
to grow consistently at 8–9% annually in the medium term.

3. India's Strong Position in Ferroalloy Production

 o India is among the largest producers and exporters of manganese alloys 
globally, supplying both domestic and international markets.

 o Ferroalloy clusters in Odisha, Chhattisgarh, Jharkhand, and Andhra 
Pradesh are strategically located near raw material sources and ports, 
strengthening supply chains.

 o This domestic availability supports India's steelmakers, ensuring stable 
access to critical inputs.

Maithan Alloys Annual Report 2024-2528
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Regional Outlook: Global Ferroalloys Market

1. Asia-Pacific — The Dominant Force

• Market Share & Growth: Asia-Pacific held a commanding ~62% share of 
global ferroalloys revenue in 2023–2024, driven largely by major producers 
like China and India turning industrialization into strong demand for steel and 
associated alloys.

• Forecast: From a base of about USD 33.9 billion in 2024, Asia-Pacific’s 
ferroalloys market is expected to grow to USD 76.6 billion by 2034 at a CAGR 
of ~8.5%.

2.  North America — Innovation Meets Infrastructure

• Strengths: The U.S., as the world's third-largest crude steel producer, 
benefits from robust construction spending (USD 2.15 trillion as of mid-2024), 
fueling ferroalloys demand.

• Shares & Growth: In 2025, North America represented ~24.8% of the 
global market (~USD 14.8 billion), growing from USD 11.8 billion in 2021, with 
a projected CAGR of ~6.1% through 2033.

3. Europe — Seeking Stability Amid Challenges

• Current Climate: European demand is soft due to steel sector weakness, 
high energy costs, and geopolitical tensions. 

• Market Share: Expected to account for ~21.6% of the global ferroalloys 
market in 2025 (USD 12.85 billion), with projected growth to ~USD 21.0 
billion by 2033 (CAGR ~6.3%).

4. Latin America — Modest Yet Promising

• Market Share: Latin America accounted for ~6.5% of the global ferroalloys 
market in 2025 (~USD 3.9 billion), expected to grow to ~USD 6.5 billion by 
2033 (CAGR ~6.7%).

• Growth Drivers: Infrastructure development and modest industrial 
expansion, especially in Brazil, continue to support demand.



India's real estate sector mirrors the broader optimism about the country's 
economic trajectory. According to the IMF's World Economic Outlook, April 2025, 
India's GDP has more than doubled to ~$4.19 trillion from $2 trillion in 2014, 
elevating the nation from the world's tenth- to the fifth-largest economy. By 
FY2030-31, India is projected to become the third-largest economy, sustaining 
growth of around 6.7%.

This momentum is underpinned by powerful long-term drivers: a rapidly 
expanding middle class, accelerating urbanisation, rising disposable incomes, 
fast-paced digital adoption, and ongoing structural reforms.

Government flagship programmes such as the Smart Cities Mission, Housing for 
All, and the Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act (RERA) have improved 
transparency, strengthened regulatory oversight, and enhanced investor 
confidence across the real estate value chain.

Real estate is already a critical pillar of India's economy, contributing significantly 
to GDP and employment. According to Knight Frank, the sector is expected to 
grow from $300 billion in CY2024 to $650 billion by CY2025, surpassing $1 trillion 
by CY2030 and potentially reaching $5.8 trillion by CY2047.

Strong demand across residential, commercial, and industrial real estate, coupled 
with the growth of India's corporate and services sectors, continues to reinforce 
the sector's long-term prospects.

As India advances toward inclusive and sustainable urbanisation, real estate will 
remain a critical enabler—shaping cities, generating employment, and building 
the physical and social infrastructure required to support a rapidly transforming 
economy.

India's 
Real Estate Sector
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The Union Budget for 2025-26 continued to emphasise infrastructure 
development and housing while providing a boost to disposable income to drive 
consumption, setting a favourable backdrop for a more inclusive and balanced real 
estate growth story.

Maithan Alloys Annual Report 2024-2530
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The Indian steel industry, a cornerstone of the nation's economy, stands at a critical juncture. 
Government initiatives, infrastructure investments, and policy support create fertile ground for 
further growth. Simultaneously, the global manganese market beckons India to harness its mineral 
wealth and contribute on a global scale. With strategic alignment, prudent investments, and 
collaborative partnerships, India can forge ahead as a major player in steel and manganese, driving 
sustainable economic progress.

India remains a bright spot in the global steel industry and the steel demand in the country is expected 
to show a healthy growth, driven by strong economic growth of 7.2% projected for FY 2024-25.

Further, the positive investment climate, on the back of strong corporate profitability as well as robust 
bank balance sheets, bodes well for private investment cycle to kick off. In addition, the Government's 
plan to build additional two crore house under the PM Awas Yojana bodes well for the public housing 
sector outlook. Further, low inflation expectations for FY 2024-25 at 4.5% versus the FY 2023-24 
average of 5.4%, could prompt the country's central bank to pivot to policy easing, which could 
further boost demand. With the central government staying on course to its fiscal consolidation path, 
with fiscal deficit estimated at 5.1% for FY 2024-25 versus 5.6% in FY 2023-24, it provides further 
headroom for the Government to spend on physical and social infrastructure.

According to the NITI Aayog, India has the potential to become the world's production centre for 
green steel and pave the way for its worldwide adoption. The Indian steel industry is leveraging the 
power of Machine Learning (ML), artificial intelligence (AI), and smart manufacturing to improve 
efficiency and strengthen sustainability.

Conclusion



The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
notified under section 133 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules 
framed thereunder.

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, 2024-2025

Total income
Total income increased by 22.42% during the financial year 2024-2025, i.e. from ̀ 2079.94 crore in the financial 
year 2023-2024 to ̀ 2546.27 crore in the financial year 2024-2025 mainly on account of higher sales realization 
and increase in other income.
 

EBITDA
The Company’s EBITDA increased by 91.99% during the financial year 2024-2025, i.e. from ̀ 465.79 crore in the 
financial year 2023-2024 to `894.28 crore in the financial year 2024-2025 due to higher sales realization and 
increase in other income.

Finance costs
Finance costs increased by 1253.19% during the financial year 2024-2025, i.e. from ̀ 1.55 crore in the financial 
year 2023-2024 to ̀ 20.91 crore in the financial year 2024-2025 owing to increase in borrowings.

Other incomes
Other income increased by 103.57% during the financial year 2024-2025, i.e. from ̀ 356.94 crore in the financial 
year 2023-2024 to ̀ 726.62 crore in the financial year 2024-2025 owing to gain in fair value of investments held 
by the company.

Tax expenses
Tax expenses increased by 122.60% during the financial year 2024-2025, i.e. from ̀ 98.04 crore in the financial 
year 2023-2024 to ̀ 218.24 crore in the financial year 2024-2025 owing to higher taxable profits.

Net profit
Net profit stood at ̀ 640.23 crore for the financial year ended 31 March 2025 as compared to ̀ 351.03 crore for 
the financial year ended 31 March 2024, registering an increase of 82.39%.
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BALANCE SHEET ANALYSIS
Net worth
Net worth stood at ₹3684.59 crore as on 31 March 2025 compared to ₹3070.36 crore as on 31 March 2024 i.e. an 
increase of 20.01%. Net worth comprises of paid up equity capital of ₹29.11 crore and other equity of ₹3655.48 
crore, as on 31 March 2025.

Loan profile
Total loan funds stood at ₹565.08 crore including lease liability of ₹3.22 crore, as on 31 March 2025 as compared 
to ₹17.21 crore including lease liability of ₹3.31 crore, as on 31 March 2024.

Trade payables and other current liabilities 
Trade payables and other current liabilities amounts to ₹157.94 crore as at 31 March 2025 as compared to 
₹127.68 crore as at 31 March 2024.

Total assets
Total assets increased by 40.43 % during the financial year 2024-2025, i.e. from ₹3358.25 crore as on 31 March 
2024 to ₹4716.14 crore as on 31 March 2025.

Inventories
Inventories increased by 73.12% during the financial year 2024-2025, i.e. from ₹339.67 crore as on 31 March 
2024 to ₹588.04 crore as on 31 March 2025. Inventories comprises of raw material amounting to ₹257.55 crore, 
work-in-progress worth ₹ 1.60 crore, finished goods worth ₹129.75 crore, stock-in-trade worth ₹63.39 crore, 
stores and packing materials worth  ₹10.81 crore and Land bank worth ₹124.94 crore as on 31 March 2025.

Sundry debtors
Sundry debtors stood at ₹145.40 crore as on 31 March 2025 compared to ₹387.61 crore as on 31 March 2024 
resulting in decrease of 62.49%.

Cash, cash equivalents and Other bank deposits 
Cash, cash equivalents and other bank deposits as on 31 March 2025 stood at ₹51.93 crore compared to ₹67.16 
crore as on 31 March 2024.

Current investments
Current investments as on 31 March 2025 stood at ₹1977.82 crore compared to ₹1725.70 crore as on 31 March 
2024.

Working capital management
•  Total Current assets as on 31 March 2025 stood at ₹3263.30 crore compared to ₹3017.66 crore as on 31 
 March 2024.

• Current liabilities stood at ₹802.48 crore as on 31 March 2025 compared to ₹232.15 crore as on 31 March 
 2024. 

•  Current ratio as on 31 March 2025 stood at 4.07 compared to 13.00 as on 31 March 2024.



KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS 

There are significant change in the following key financial ratios as compared to the previous financial year 
mainly due to increase in the cost of production, resulting in lower profits during the financial year under review.

1. Interest Coverage Ratio decreased from 290.72 to 42.05 due to increase in finance cost from ̀ 1.55 crore 
 to `20.91 crore and increase in EBITA margins by 95.15% during the financial year 2024-2025.

2. Current Ratio decreased from 13.00 to 4.07 due to increase in current borrowings and reduction in trade 
 receivables during the financial year 2024-2025.

3. Operating Profit Margin increased from 5.44% to 8.40% due to Higher Sales realization and decreased   
 Power Cost during the financial year 2024-2025.

4. Net Profit Margin increased from 20.37% to 35.18% due to increase in Other Income during the  
 financial year 2024-2025. 

5. Inventory Turnover Ratio decreased from 5.63% to 3.92% due to purchase of land and treating such land 
 as inventory during the financial year 2024-2025. 

6. Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio increased from 4.25% to 6.83% due to increase in Revenue from 
 operations during the financial year 2024-2025. 

7. Debt Equity Ratio increased from 0.00 to 0.15 due to increase in current borrowings during the 
 financial year 2024-2025. 
 
Please also refer to Note No. 54 to the Standalone Financial Statement for other Financial Ratios. 

DETAILS OF CHANGE IN RETURN ON NET WORTH AS COMPARED TO THE IMMEDIATELY 
PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR ALONG WITH A DETAILED EXPLANATIONS THEREOF :

The Return on Net worth was 17.38% during the financial year 2024-2025 as compared to 11.43% during the 
financial year 2023-2024. The increase in Return on Net worth by 51.98% is due to increase in net profit margins 
during the financial year 2024-2025 resulting from higher sales realization and increase in other income.

 

Particulars Financial Year 2023-2024Financial Year 2024-2025

KEY NUMBERS

27.03%

300.51

0.00

1054.69

120.58

EBITDA/Turnover

EBITDA/Net interest

Debt-equity ratio

Book value per share ( ) ₹

Earnings per share (₹)

49.15%

42.76

0.15

1265.68

219.92

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS, ALONG WITH DETAILED 
EXPLANATIONS THEREFOR:
  (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous financial year) 
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RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk management is applied across all management levels and functional/project areas. Risk management 
initiatives are overseen by the Risk Management Committee. The committee members provide overall 
coordination of risk management processes and perform day-to-day monitoring of the risk management process 
across all segments of business. 

Our risk management structure:
Risk Identification: Definition and descriptions of risk elements including sources, events, causes and impacts.

Risk Assessment: Analysing risk, its implications and forms of impact on the achievement of Maithan.

Development, assessment and follow-up: Developing, implementing and following up on risk management 
activities to achieve organisational goal.

Monitoring: Supervising the identification, assessment, implementation and follow-up of risk management. 

Principal risks and their mitigation measures
Business risks

Industry risk (External risk)
Potential Impact:
• Slowdown in product offtake
• Cyclical nature of steel industry
• Unfair trade practices and remedial 
   measures

Quality risk (Internal risk)
Potential Impact:
• Inconsistent product quality
• Erratic quality of raw materials 
  procured

Pandemic risk (External risk)
Potential Impact:
• Risk of loss of production 
• Risk of availability of manpower  

Strategic risk (Internal risk)
Potential Impact:
• Risk of erroneous strategic business   
  decisions
 

Geographic risk (External risk)
Potential Impact:
• Risk of locational disadvantages 
• Risk of limited area of market 

 

Mitigation measures
With a complete basket of ferro alloys product, strong 
relationship with the customers and financial flexibility, 
Maithan at present is in a sweet spot and is in a position to 
grow faster than the Industry.

Mitigation measures
The Company works rigorously on the quality front with 
streamlined operating procedures. Stringent quality 
checks are followed to mitigate the risk, for both inward 
and outward supply of goods and materials.

Mitigation measures
Strict adherence to Government Guidelines to counter 
pandemic, vaccination of manpower, necessary response 
measures including factory shutdowns, disinfecting and 
deploying safety measures in the factory and office 
premises, encouraging employees to maintain adequate 
social distance, etc. have been undertaken.

Mitigation measures
The Company has been conservative regarding business 
expansions. It only considers assets if the valuations fit the 
Company’s comfort level.

Mitigation measures
The Company’s Kalyaneshwari unit is located in the steel 
belt of India while the Visakhapatnam unit of the Company 
is close to two deep sea ports. Besides servicing Indian 
customers, the Company is servicing customers across 
countries.



Input Cost risk (Internal risk)
Potential Impact:
• Risk of increased cost of operations
• Volatile rates of raw materials

Logistic risk (External risk)
Potential Impact:
• Congestion, strikes, channel blockages
• Storage, transportation and material 

handling risks

Liquidity risk (Internal risk)
Potential Impact:
• Risk caused by inadequate liquidity 
• Shortage of funds

Currency fluctuation risk (External risk) 
Potential Impact:
• Adverse impact on profitability
• Fluctuation in foreign exchange rate

For details of Financial Risk, please refer to Note No. 48 to the Standalone Financial Statement.

Mitigation measures
The Company is among the low cost manufacturers 
of ferro alloys and has superior process controls. 
The Company has strong relationships with its 
suppliers. It has PPA agreements with power utilities 
for supplying uninterrupted power at pre-
determined prices. To minimise the commodity risk, 
the Company maintains a close matching between 
order book and inventory book.

Mitigation measures
The Company’s manufacturing units are proximate 
to key downstream users as well as ports, 
facilitating ease of raw material imports and finished 
products exports.

Human capital risk (Internal risk)
Potential Impact:
• Inability to attract and retain talent
• High employee attrition
• Inadequate training and employee errors
• Low employee productivity

Mitigation measures
The Company has emerged as one of the sought-
after destination for prospective employees. Over 
the years the Company has created a dedicated 
team driving the business. The employees are 
regular ly  t ra ined in a harmonious work 
environment. The Company enjoys one of the best 
retention rates in the industry.

Mitigation measures
The Company has cash and liquid investments 
including Bank Deposits in excess of `3100 crore. 
The Company enjoyed a current ratio of 4.07 as on 
31 March 2025.

Mitigation measures
The company endeavours to avail the benefit of 
natural hedge by exporting more than it imports. 
However, whenever necessary currency fluctuation 
risk is mitigated through hedging mechanism. 

Operational risks 
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HUMAN RESOURCES 
The Company believes that its intrinsic strength lies in its dedicated and motivated employees. As such, the 
Company provides competitive compensations, an amiable work environment and acknowledges employee 
performance through a planned reward and recognition programme. The Company aims to create a workplace 
where every person can achieve his or her true potential. The Company encourages individuals to go beyond the 
scope of their work, undertake voluntary projects that enable them to learn and devise innovative ideas.

The total number of employees on the payroll of the Company as on 31 March 2025 was 454.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 
The internal control and risk management system is structured and applied in accordance with the principles and 
criteria established in the corporate governance code of the organisation. It is an integral part of the general 
organisational structure of the Company and Group and involves a range of personnel who act in a coordinated 
manner while executing their respective responsibilities. The Board of Directors provide its guidance and strategic 
supervision to the Executive Directors and management and committees of the Board. The Executive Directors 
and the heads of the accounts department maintain constant dialogue with the Auditors.

DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT
In the preparation of financial statements, Company has followed such accounting treatment that has been 
prescribed in an Accounting Standard.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT
This statement made in this section describes the Company’s objectives, projections, expectation and estimations 
which may be ‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations.

Forward–looking statements are based on certain assumptions and expectations of future events. The Company 
cannot guarantee that these assumptions and expectations are accurate or will be realised by the Company. 
Actual result could differ materially from those expressed in the statement or implied due to the influence of 
external factors which are beyond the control of the Company.

The Company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any forward looking statements on 
the basis of any subsequent development, information or events.



Directors' Report
Dear Members,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Revenue from operations

Other income

Total Income

Expenses

Operating expenditure

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Total Expenses

Prot before nance cost, tax and exceptional items

Finance costs

Exceptional items

Profit Before Taxes

Less: Provision for taxation

- Current tax

- Deferred tax

Profit After Taxes

Standalone Consolidated
Financial Results

(` in crore)

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND OPERATIONS

2024-2025

1819.65

726.62

2546.27

1651.99

14.90

1666.89

879.38

20.91

Nil

858.47

44.62

173.62

640.23

2023-2024

1723.00

356.94

2079.94

1614.15

15.17

1629.32

450.62

1.55

Nil

449.07

72.43

25.61

351.03

2024-2025

1805.61

720.84

2526.45

1629.09

23.29

1652.38

874.07

21.64

Nil

852.43

44.72

176.80

630.91

2023-2024

1728.64

357.52

2,086.16

1614.22

20.78

1635.00

451.16

1.63

Nil

449.53

73.11

27.46

348.96
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CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY

OUTLOOK

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE 
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED 
BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY 
AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

SCHEME OF MERGER BY ABSORPTION

SHARE CAPITAL

DIVIDEND

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

AMOUNT TRANSFERRED TO RESERVES

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Non-Execu�ve Directors & Independent Directors 
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Execu�ve Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Re�rement by rota�on
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EVALUATION

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

REMUNERATION POLICY

inter-alia 

VIGIL MECHANISM

RISK MANAGEMENT

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Annexure-‘A’.

DEPOSITS
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CREDIT RATING

STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL 
CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES

HIGHLIGHTS OF PERFORMANCE OF EACH OF THE SUBSIDIARIES
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AXL-Explora�on Private Limited (AXL)

Anjaney Minerals Limited (AML)

Salanpur Sinters Private Limited (SSPL)

Maithan Ferrous Private Limited (MFPL)

Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Limited (IMPEX)

Ramagiri Renewable Energy Limited (RREL)

Dadhichi Rail & Defence Opera�ons Limited (DRDO)

Eloise Builders & Construc�ons Private Limited (ELOISE)

INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

AUDITORS’ REPORT

STATUTORY AUDITORS
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SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Annexure-‘B’.

COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT

ANNUAL RETURN

MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

(a)  (i)    the ra�o of the remunera�on of each Director to the  
   median    remunera�on of the employees  of the Company  
  for the financial year; and

(ii)  the percentage increase in remunera�on of each Director, 
   Chief Financial Officer, Chief  Execu�ve Officer, Company  
  Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year.

  Name  Designation Ratio of remuneration % increase in remuneration

N.A.= Not Applicable
Note 1: There is no change in the remuneration structure for the nancial year 2024-2025. However, the overall remuneration paid in the nancial year 2024-2025 is lower 
than the remuneration paid in the nancial year 2023-2024. 

Mr. Subhas Chandra Agarwalla

Mr. Subodh Agarwalla

Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla

Mr. Rajesh K. Shah

Chairman & Managing Director

Whole-time Director & Chief Executive Ofcer

President & Chief Financial Ofcer 

Company Secretary

251.52

201.22

N.A.

N.A.

Note 1

Note 1

Note 1

3.18 %

(b)  the percentage increase in the median remunera�on of 
 employees in the financial year –

(c)  the number of permanent employees on the roll of Company -
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(d)   average percen�le increase already made in the salaries of  
employees other than the managerial personnel in the last 
financial year and its comparison with the percen�le increase 
in the managerial remunera�on and jus�fica�on thereof and 
point out if there are any excep�onal circumstances for 
increase in the managerial remunera�on –

(e) affirma�on that the remunera�on is as per the remunera�on 
 policy of the Company-

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

 Annexure-‘C’.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE 
REGULATORS / COURTS / TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING 
CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER 
SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
(i) Details of Loans: 

(ii) Details of Investments: 

(iii) D etails of Guarantees given or Securi�es provided: 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Annexure-‘D’.

DISCLOSURES RELATING TO SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT 
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 
2013

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Annexure-‘E’
Annexure- ‘F’

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

Annexure-‘G’
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PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH 
RELATED PARTIES

COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

TRANSFER OF SHARES AND UNPAID/ UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS TO 
INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)
A.    Transfer of Unpaid / Unclaimed Dividend 

B.    Transfer of Shares to IEPF

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Subodh Agarwalla
Whole-�me Director & CEO

S. C. Agarwalla
Chairman & Managing Director
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THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
(CSR) ACTIVITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-2025

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT - ‘A’ 

1. A brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

2. The Composi�on of the CSR Commi�ee:  

3. Provide the web-link where Composi�on of CSR commi�ee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on the 
website of the Company: 

 
 Web-link of Composi�on of CSR Commi�ee: 

 Web-link of CSR Policy: 
 Web-link of CSR projects: 

4. Provide the execu�ve summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) 
of rule 8, if applicable: 

5. (a)  Average net profit of the company as per sub-sec�on (5) of sec�on 135:
(b)  Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-sec�on (5) of sec�on 135:

 (c)  Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or ac�vi�es of the previous financial years:
(d)  Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any.: 

 (e)  Total CSR obliga�on for the financial year [(b) + (c) – (d)]:

6. (a)  Details of Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): 
 i) Details of amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

  ii)   Details of amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
(b)  Amount spent in Administra�ve Overheads:
(c)  Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable:
(d)  Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)  ]:
(e)  CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

Mr. Subhas Chandra Agarwalla

Mr. Subodh Agarwalla

Mr. Vivek Kaul

Name of Director
Designation 
(Nature of Directorship)

Number of meetings of 
CSR Committee held during 

the year 2024-2025

Number of meetings of 
CSR Committee attended 

during the year 2024-2025 

Amount Unspent (in ₹)
Total Amount Spent 

for the Financial Year 
(in ₹)

Chairman (Executive Director)

Member (Executive Director)

Member (Independent Non-Executive Director)

4

4

4

4

3

3

Total Amount transferred to Unspent 
CSR Account as per sub-section (6) section 135

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule
 VII as per second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135

Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer

19.98 crore Nil Not Applicable Not Applicable Nil Not Applicable
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(f)  Excess amount for set off, if any: 

Note: 
The excess CSR amount of ₹0.09 crore spent during the financial year 2023-2024 has been set-off against CSR obliga�on for the financial year 
2024-2025 a�er complying with the provisions of Rule 7(3) of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. 
Consequently, the required CSR obliga�on for the financial year 2024-2025 stood reduced by ₹0.09 crore at ₹12.66 crore and the amount 
available for set off in immediate succeeding three financial years is ₹7.32 crore [i.e. amount spent during financial year 2024-2025 i.e. ₹19.98 
crore less required CSR obliga�on for the financial year 2024-2025 i.e. ₹12.66 crore].

7. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: 

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through CSR amount spent in the financial year: 

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per sub-sec�on (5) of sec�on 135:

Two percent of average net prot of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135

Total amount spent for the Financial Year

Excess amount spent for the nancial year [(ii)-(i)]

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous nancial years, if any

Amount available for set off in succeeding nancial years [(iii)-(iv)]

Particulars Amount (₹in crore)

12.75

19.98

7.23

Nil

7.23

Subodh Agarwalla 
Whole-�me Director  

& CEO

S. C. Agarwalla
Chairman - CSR Commi�ee

Chairman & Managing Director

(i) 

(ii)

(iii) 

(iv) 

(v)

Sr. 
No. 
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Maithan Alloys Ltd.

for the Financial Year ended 31 March 2025
[Pursuant to Sec�on 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014]

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
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We report that,

We further report that,

We further report that

We further report that 

Patnaik & Patnaik

S. K. Patnaik

[Note: This Report is to be read with our le�er of declara�on which is 
annexed hereto as “Annexure –A” and forms an integral part of this 
Report.]
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ANNEXURE - A

Patnaik & Patnaik

S. K. Patnaik
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT - ‘C’ 

Mr. Subhas Chandra Agarwalla

Mr. Subodh Agarwalla

Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla

Mr. Siddhartha Shankar Agarwalla

Mr. Prasanna Kumar Mishra

Mr. Pramod Kumar Chaudhary

Mr. Rajesh K. Shah

Mr. Pradip Dhak

Mr. Asutos Swain** 

Mr. B Venugopal Rao

Name
Age

(Years)
Qualification and 

experience

Date of
 commencement of

 employment
Designation

Remuneration 
received 

(₹ in crore)

Last 
employment 

held

* Date of re-appointment.

** Ceased to be in employment w.e.f. 31 January 2025.

Notes:

  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Subodh Agarwalla
Whole-�me Director & CEO

S. C. Agarwalla
Chairman & Managing Director

73

46

43

44

67

58

51

51

47 

50

B. Com.
 55 years

MBA, B. Tech.
 22 years

MBA (Finance)
21 years

B. Com.
 19 years

M. Sc. (Chemistry)
 39 years

F. C. A., B. Com.
 33 Years

B. Com. (H), A.C.S. 
25 Years

MBA Operation
M. Sc. (Physics) 

25 Years

Diploma 
(Electrical Engineering) 

21 Years

AMIE (Metallurgy) 
22 Years

1 April 2022*

1 April 2024*

1 April 2004

1 October 2016

11 May 2009

12 October 2007

1 August 2008

1 March 2022

1 April 2018

28 October 2014

Chairman and 
Managing Director

Whole-time Director and 
Chief Executive Ofcer

President and Chief 
Financial Ofcer

Vice-President

Director 
(Operation)

General Manager  
(Finance)

Company Secretary

General Manager  
(Operation)

DGM 
(Electrical)

General Manager  
(Operation)

5.82

4.65

5.70

1.27

0.51

0.27

0.24

0.24

0.17

0.19

None

None

None

Anjaney Ferro 
Alloys Ltd.

Maithan Smelters
 Ltd.

D.K. Chhajer & 
Co.

HNG Float 
Glass Ltd.

Jai Balaji 
Industries Ltd.

Rohit Ferro Tech 
Ltd.

Vandana 
Global Ltd.
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ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT - ‘D’ 

INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 134(m)
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 8 
OF THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

A)  CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

 (i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy Regular study is being conducted on the requirement of energy conservation   
     measures and steps will be taken, if any requirement emerges out of the   
    study.

 (ii) The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy  None at present
 
 (iii) The capital investment on energy conservation equipment  None at present

 (i) The efforts made towards technology absorption
 

 (ii) The benets derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product 
  development or import substitution

 (iii) In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years 
  reckoned from the beginning of the nancial year)
 

  (a)  the details of technology imported
  

  (b)  the year of import
  

  (c)  whether the technology been fully absorbed
  

  (d)  if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, 
    and the reasons thereof

 (iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development
  

B)  TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

Capacity utilisation is high, which shows that the Company has properly 
absorbed and adopted the available technology.

None

The Company did not import any technology and the plant operates on 
indigenous technology.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

The Company as a part of ongoing product development activity carries out 
Research and Development and the expenditure thereof is considered as part 
of operating expenditure. 

Hence, there is no amount that can be shown separately under the head of 
Research and Development expenses.

C)  FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Subodh Agarwalla
Whole-�me Director & CEO

S. C. Agarwalla
Chairman & Managing Director
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ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT - ‘E’

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Name of the 
Director

Attendance
at the last

AGM held on 28  
@September 2024

No. of Board 
meetings during the 
financial year 2024-

2025

$No. of directorship  
held in other public 

limited companies as 
on 31 March 2025

#No. of committee  positions 
in other public companies 

as on 31 March 2025

Held Attended As
chairman

As
member

Category

Mr. Subhas Chandra 
Agarwalla**

Executive Director 
(Chairman and Managing
Director) [Promoter]

6 6 P 3 None None 

Mr. Subodh Agarwalla^ Executive Director 
(Whole-time Director and 
Chief Executive Ofcer)
[Promoter Group]

6 5 P 8 1None 

Mr. Nand Kishore Agarwal* Independent
Non-Executive Director 6 2 N.A. N.A. N.A.N.A.

!Mr. Aayush Khetawat  Independent
Non-Executive Director

6 5 P None NoneNone

Mr. Vivek Kaul Independent 
Non-Executive Director

6 5 P None NoneNone

Mr. P. K. Venkatramani Independent 
Non-Executive Director

6 6 P 3 None1
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Name of the 
Director

Attendance
at the last

AGM held on 28  
@September 2024

No. of Board 
meetings during the 
financial year 2024-

2025

$No. of directorship  
held in other public 

limited companies as 
on 31 March 2025

# No. of committee positions 
in other public companies 

as on 31 March 2025

Held Attended
As

chairman
As

member

Category

Mr. Naresh Kumar Jain Independent 
Non-Executive Director

6 5 P 8 3 2

Mrs. Sonal Choubey Independent 
Non-Executive Director

6 6 P 1 1None 

Mr. Srinivas Peddi Non-Executive
Director 6 6 A 1 NoneNone

@ A=Absent, P = Present, N.A. = Not Applicable.

$ Other directorships do not include alternate directorships; directorships of private limited companies (excluding 
 deemed public  limited companies), Sec�on 8 companies and foreign companies. 

#  Includes the membership/chairmanship only of Audit Commi�ee and Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee.

**  Reappointed as the ‘Chairman and Managing Director w.e.f. 1 April 2025.

^ Reappointed as the Whole-time Director and Chief Execu�ve Officer w.e.f. 1 April 2024.

* Ceased to be a Director w.e.f. 21 September 2024.

!  Appointed as an Addi�onal Director as well as an Independent Director w.e.f. 14 August 2024.

 inter-se.

Name of the Director 

Mr. Subhas Chandra Agarwalla

Mr. Subodh Agarwalla

Mr. Aayush Khetawat

Mr. Naresh Kumar Jain

Mr. Vivek Kaul

Mr. P. K. Venkatramani

Mrs. Sonal Choubey

Mr. Srinivas Peddi

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

Directorship in other listed entities  Category of directorship

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.
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Name of the Non-Executive Director No. of shares held

Mr. P. K. Venkatramani

Mr. Vivek Kaul

Mr. Aayush Khetawat

Mr. Naresh Kumar Jain

Mrs. Sonal Choubey

Mr. Srinivas Peddi

30

400

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

Skills/Exper�se/Competence of the Board:

Skills/Expertise/Competencies identied by Board for Ferro Alloy, Real Estate & Power Sectors
Name of Director

Industrial Technical Leadership Banking &
 Finance

Accounts & 
Taxation 

Management Marketing

Mr. Subhas Chandra Agarwalla

Mr. Subodh Agarwalla

Mr. Aayush Khetawat

Mr. P. K. Venkatramani

Mr. Vivek Kaul

Mr. Naresh Kumar Jain

Mrs. Sonal Choubey

Mr. Srinivas Peddi

ü

ü

-

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

-

-

-

-

-

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

-

-

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

-

-

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

-

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

-

-

-

-

-

-

ü

-
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Succession Planning:

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE

inter-alia 
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Schedule 1.

Name of the Member Category No. of Committee meetings attended

Mr. Nand Kishore Agarwal (Chairman)*

Mr. Naresh Kumar Jain (Chairman)**

Mr. P. K. Venkatramani

Mrs. Sonal Choubey

Independent Non-Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive Director

2

1

4

4

* ceased to be the Chairman and Member of Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee w.e.f. 21 September 2024.
**inducted as a Member of Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee w.e.f. 14 August 2024 and designated as the Chairman w.e.f. 14 January 2025.      
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4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

inter-alia

* ceased to be the Chairman and Member of Audit Commi�ee w.e.f. 21 September 2024.
** inducted as a Member of Audit Commi�ee w.e.f. 14 August 2024 and designated as Chairman w.e.f. 14 January 2025.

Name of the Member Category No. of Committee meetings attended

Mr. Nand Kishore Agarwal (Chairman)*

Mr. Aayush Khetawat (Chairman)**

Mr. P. K. Venkatramani

Mr. Subodh Agarwalla

Independent Non-Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive Director

Executive Director

2

3

5

4



5. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

6. MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

7. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

inter-alia

inter-alia

Name of the Member Category No. of Committee meetings attended

Independent Non-Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive Director

Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Nand Kishore Agarwal (Chairman)*

Mr. Aayush Khetawat (Chairman)**

Mr. Subhas Chandra Agarwalla

Mrs. Sonal Choubey

2

2

4

4

* ceased to be the Chairman and Member of Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee w.e.f. 21 September 2024.
** inducted as a Member of Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee w.e.f. 14 August 2024 and designated as Chairman w.e.f. 14 January 2025.
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9. AMALGAMATION EQUITY SHARE ALLOTMENT COMMITTEE

8. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

inter-alia

Name of the Member Category No. of Committee meetings attended

Mr. Subhas Chandra Agarwalla (Chairman)

Mr. P. K. Venkatramani

Mr. Pramod Kumar Chaudhary

Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive Director

Member

3

3

3

Name of the Member Category No. of Committee meetings attended

Mr. Subhas Chandra Agarwalla (Chairman)

Mr. Subodh Agarwalla

Mr. Vivek Kaul

Executive Director

Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive Director

4

3

3

Name of the Member Category  

Mr. Nand Kishore Agarwal  (Chairman)

Mr. Subodh Agarwalla

Mr. Srinivas Peddi 

Independent Non-Executive Director

Executive Director

Non-Executive Director
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10. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

  Name of the Executive Director Fixed pay Variable pay    Other benefits* Total

  Mr. Subhas Chandra Agarwalla 0.90 4.92 Nil  5.82

  Mr. Subodh Agarwalla 0.72 3.93 Nil  4.65

*Other benefits include bonus, pension, severance fees, stock op�on, etc.

(₹ in crore)

  Name of the Director Sitting fees Other benefits* Total

  Mr. Nand Kishore Agarwal  

  Mr. Aayush Khetawat

  Mr. Vivek Kaul 

  Mr. P. K. Venkatramani

  Mr. Srinivas Peddi

  Mr. Naresh Kumar Jain

  Mrs. Sonal Choubey

(Amount in ₹)

* Other benefits include performance linked incen�ves, bonus, pension, severance fees, stock op�on, etc.

75,000/-

1,20,000/-

97,500/-

1,80,000/-

90,000/-

90,000/-

1,57,500/-

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

75,000/-

1,20,000/-

97,500/-

1,80,000/-

90,000/-

90,000/-

1,57,500/-
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12. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

 Annual  For the 
 General financial year  Special Resolution Passed
 Meeting ended

th   37 31 March 2022 None 

th   38 31 March 2023 None 

th   39 31 March 2024 Appointment of Mr. Aayush Khetawat as an Independent Director of the Company*

* Resolu�on was passed with requisite majority.

Extra-Ordinary General Mee�ng

  Name  Designation Department

11. SENIOR MANAGEMENT 

* Ceased to be in employment w.e.f. 1 May 2025.

Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla

Mr. Siddhartha Shankar Agarwalla

Mr. Prasanna Kumar Mishra

Mr. Pramod Kumar Chaudhary

Mr. Rajesh K. Shah

Mr. Pradip Dhak

Mr. Sanjay Goswami*

President and Chief Financial Ofcer

Vice-President

Director (Operation)

General Manager (Finance)

Company Secretary

General Manager (Operation)

Senior Management System

Finance and Export Marketing 

Logistic Head

Plant Head Unit II

Banking Head

Secretarial Head

Plant Head Unit I

IT Head

Annual 
General
Meeting 

For the 
financial

 year ended
Date Time Venue

th 37

th 38

th39

31 March 2022

31 March 2023

31 March 2024

28 September 2022

26 September 2023

28 September 2024

3:30 p.m.

11:00 a.m.

11:30 a.m.

Not applicable, as the Meeting was held through 
Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual Means

Not applicable, as the Meeting was held through 
Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual Means

Not applicable, as the Meeting was held through 
Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual Means
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Postal Ballot Procedure of Postal Ballot

Item 1:

Item 2:

Item 3:

Item 4:

Item 5: 

Alteration of the Memorandum of Association of the Company to align with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013;

Alteration of the Objects Clause of the Memorandum of Association of the Company;

Re-appointment of Mr. Subhas Chandra Agarwalla (DIN: 00088384) as the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company;

Alteration of the remuneration of Mr. Subodh Agarwalla, Whole-time Director and Chief Executive Ofcer of the Company;

Alteration of the remuneration of Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla, President and Chief Financial Ofcer of the Company.

Resolution 
for

Total 
Vote Cast

Item No. 1

Item No. 2

Item No. 3

Item No. 4

Item No. 5

No. of valid 
votes

No. of invalid
 votes

No. of votes 
- in favor

No. of votes 
- against

% of votes 
in favor 

% of votes 
against 

11595929

11595927

5756599

5756599

5756599

11595929

11595927

5756599

5756599

5756599

0

0

0

0

0

11593219

11593108

5578968

5578994

5579040

2710

2819

177631

177605

177559

99.98%

99.98%

96.91%

96.91%

96.92%

0.02%

0.02%

3.09%

3.09%

3.08%

13. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
(i) Quarterly Results: 

(ii) Newspaper  publ ica�on:

(iii)  Website:

(iv) Whether the Company also displays official news releases:

(v) The presenta�ons made to ins�tu�onal investors or to the 
analysts:
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14. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
a) Annual General Mee�ng

- Day, Date and Time: 

- Venue:

b) Financial year:

c) Dividend payment date:

d) Lis�ng of Equity Shares on Stock Exchanges:

 Stock code: 

Stock code: 

        Stock code: 

e) Payment of Annual Lis�ng Fees:

f) ISIN code: 

g) Date of book closure:

h) Suspension of the securi�es from trading: 

i) Share Registrar & Transfer Agent:

j) Share Transfer System: 

k) Distribu�on of shareholding as on 31 March 2025:

No. of Shares

Upto 500

501 - 1,000

1,001 - 2,000

2,001 - 3,000

3,001 - 4,000

4,001 - 5,000

5,001 - 10,000

10,001 and above

Total

Shareholders* Shareholding*

7.31

2.27

2.17

1.18

0.84

0.84

2.17

83.22

100.00

40343

873

425

138

68

53

91

101

42092

Number % of total % of totalNumber 

95.84

2.07

1.01

0.33

0.16

0.13

0.22

0.24

100.00

2127287

660486

631249

347518

243629

244875

630692

24225814

29111550
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k) Distribu�on of shareholding as on 31 March 2025: 

No. of shares in physical mode

No. of shares in demat mode

- NSDL

- CDSL

Total

08

14664

27420

42092

Number 
No. of Shares

Shareholders* Shareholding*

0.02

88.50

11.48

100.00

% of total % of totalNumber 

0.02

34.84

65.14

100.00

5,602

25762595

3343353

29111550

*Total number of shareholders has been computed without clubbing of PANs.

l) Dematerialisa�on of shares and liquidity: 

m) Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / warrants or any conver�ble 
instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity: 

n) Commodity price risk or Foreign Exchange risk and hedging 
ac�vi�es:

 1]   Commodity price risk and Commodity hedging ac�vi�es:

 2]    Foreign Exchange risk and hedging ac�vi�es:

o) Plant/Works loca�on

 - Ferro Alloys division 
1] W  est Bengal

 2]   Meghalaya

 3]   Andhra Pradesh

 -  Wind Mill division
 4]  Rajasthan

5]  M aharashtra

p) Address for correspondence:

 Investor grievance e-mail id:  

Number 
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 q)  List of all credit ra�ngs obtained by the Company along 
with any revisions thereto during the financial year 2024-
2025, for all debt instruments or any fixed deposit 
programme or any scheme or proposal of the Company 
involving mobilisa�on of funds, whether in India or 
abroad:

15. OTHER DISCLOSURES

A. Disclosures on materially significant related party   
 transac�ons  that may have poten�al conflict with the  
 interests of the  Company at large:

B. Details of non-compliance by the Company, penal�es and 
strictures imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or 
the SEBI or any statutory authority, on any ma�er related to 
capital markets, during the last three years:

C. Details of establishment of vigil mechanism/whistle blower   
 policy and affirma�on that no personnel have been denied 
 access to the Audit Commi�ee:

D. Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and  
 adop�on of the non-mandatory requirements of the lis�ng 
 regula�ons:

 (i)     Modified opinion(s) in audit report: 

 (ii) Repor�ng of Internal Auditor: 

E. Weblink where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries 
 is disclosed: 

F. Weblink where policy on dealing with related party  
 transac�ons is disclosed:

G. Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging 
 ac�vi�es:

Maithan Alloys Annual Report 2024-25 67



H. Details of u�liza�on of funds raised through preferen�al 
allotment or qualified ins�tu�ons placement as specified 
under Regula�on 32 (7A) of Lis�ng Regula�ons:

I. A cer�ficate from a Company Secretary in Prac�ce that none of 
the directors on the Board of the Company have been 
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or con�nuing 
as directors of companies by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
or any such statutory authority:

Schedule 2.

J. Recommenda�on of the Commi�ees of the Board:

K. Total fees paid on a consolidated basis to the Statutory 
Auditors by the Company and its Subsidiaries and all en��es 
in the network firm/network en�ty of which the statutory 
auditor is a part:

Particulars

For Statutory Audit

For Taxation Matters

For Other Services

For Out of Pocket Expenses

Amount 

(₹ in crore)

0.22

0.03

0.14

0.01

L. Disclosures in rela�on to the Sexual Harassment of Women at  
 Workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on and Redressal) Act, 2013:

M. Disclosure by listed en�ty and its subsidiaries of Loans and 
advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which 
directors are interested by name and amount:

N. Details of material subsidiaries of the listed en�ty; including  
the date and place of incorpora�on and the name and date of 
appointment of the statutory auditors of such subsidiaries:

16. DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

17. NON-COMPLIANCE OF ANY REQUIREMENT OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE REPORT

18.  TH E DISCLOSURES OF THE COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE 
 GOVERNANCE REQUIREMENTS

19. SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

20. AFFIRMATION OF CODE OF CONDUCT

     
Schedule 3.
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21. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER / CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 CERTIFICATION

22. COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE 

Annexure -‘F’.

23. DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/  
UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT 

24. DISCLOSURES OF CERTAIN TYPES OF AGREEMENTS BINDING  
 LISTING ENTITIES 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Subodh Agarwalla
Whole-�me Director & CEO

S. C. Agarwalla
Chairman & Managing Director
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(Adopted by the Board of Directors on 28 January 2019 to be effec�ve from 1 April 2019)
(as amended on 28 May 2025)

REMUNERATION POLICY 

PURPOSE

DEFINITIONS

PROCEDURE FOR APPOINTMENT AND CESSATION OF DIRECTORS, 
KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP) AND OTHER EMPLOYEES

1. Appointment criteria and qualifica�ons:

2. Term / Tenure:
a) Managing Director/Whole-�me Director:

b) Non-Execu�ve Director:

c) Independent Director:

ANNEXURE TO THE REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE –‘SCHEDULE 1’
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d) KMP & Other Employees:

3. Removal:

4. Re�rement:

REMUNERATION MATTERS

REMUNERATION COMPONENTS

The remunera�on components are:

Fixed Remunera�on:

Performance-based remunera�on:

Other benefits in kind:

Severance payments:

Remunera�on of the Execu�ve Director including Managing 
Director & Whole-�me Director:
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Remunera�on of the Non- Execu�ve Directors:

Remunera�on of the KMP:

Remunera�on of other Employees:

CRITERIA FOR PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
A]  Independent & Non-Execu�ve Directors:

B]  Execu�ve Directors:

C]  Board as whole:

D]  Commi�ees of the Board:

AMENDMENTS TO THE POLICY
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MISCELLANEOUS
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ANNEXURE TO THE REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE –‘SCHEDULE 2’

[Pursuant to Regula�on 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regula�ons, 2015]

CERTIFICATE OF 
NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

  Name of Director                                                                                                                DIN                                                 Date of Appointment in Company 

Mr. Subhas Chandra Agarwalla

Mr. Subodh Agarwalla

Mr. Aayush Khetawat

Mr. Palghat Krishnan Venkatramani

Mr. Vivek Kaul

Mr. Naresh Kumar Jain

Mrs. Sonal Choubey

Mr. Srinivas Peddi

 Patnaik & Patnaik

S. K. Patnaik

00088384

00339855

06968448

05303022

00345022

00221519

10475331

09194339

15/04/1992

01/07/2006

14/08/2024

29/06/2012

20/08/2019

10/02/2024

10/02/2024

24/06/2021

Sr. No.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.
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DECLARATION BY THE WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR  
& CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Maithan Alloys Limited

Subodh Agarwalla

ANNEXURE TO THE REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE –‘SCHEDULE 3’
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

Maithan Alloys Ltd.

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT - ‘F’

 Patnaik & Patnaik

S. K. Patnaik
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I. Details of the listed en�ty:

 1. Corporate Iden�ty Number (CIN) of the Listed En�ty: 
 2.  Name of the Listed En�ty: 

3.  Year of incorpora�on: 
4. Registered office address: 

 5. Corporate address:
 6. E-mail: 

7. Telephone:
8. Website:
9. Financial year for which repor�ng is being done: 

 10. Name of the Stock Exchange(s) where shares are listed: 

11. Paid-up Capital: 
12. Name and contact details (telephone, email address) of the person who may be contacted in case of any   

  queries on the BRSR report: 
DIN:
Name:
Designa�on:
Telephone No:
Email:

13. Repor�ng boundary - Are the disclosures under this report made on a standalone basis (i.e. only for the  
  en�ty) or on a consolidated basis (i.e. for the en�ty and all the en��es which form a part of its     

consolidated financial statements, taken together): Standalone basis 
 14. Name of assurance provide :  Not Applicable  
 15.  Type of assurance obtained : Not Applicable  

II. Products/services:

 16. Details of business ac�vi�es (accoun�ng for 90% of the turnover):

 17. Products /Services sold by the en�ty (accoun�ng for 90% of the en�ty's turnover):

III. Opera�ons:

 18. Number of loca�ons where plants and / or opera�ons / offices of the en�ty are situated:

S.No. Product/Service    NIC Code  % of total Turnover     
                                contributed

Loca�on   Number of plants  Number of offices     Total

S.No. Descrip�on of Main  Descrip�on of Business   % of Turnover of the 
 Ac�vity    Ac�vity    en�ty

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT - 'G’ 

Sec�on A: General Disclosures

Business Responsibility & Sustainability
Repor�ng Format
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 19. Markets served by the en�ty:
  (a) Number of loca�ons

  
  (b) What is the contribu�on of exports as a percentage of the total turnover of the en�ty? :

  (c)  A brief on types of customers:
   

IV. Employees:
 20. Details as at the end of Financial Year:

(a) Employees and workers (including differently abled):

  
  (b)     Differently abled Employees and workers :

 
 21.  Par�cipa�on/Inclusion/Representa�on of women:

Number

Male 
    %(C/A)

FemaleS.No. Par�culars Total (A) No.(B) % (B/A) No.(C) 
EMPLOYEES

Total Employees (D+E) 448 442 98.66 6 1.33

WORKERS

Total Workers (F+G) 889 817 91.90 72 8.09

Male
    %(C/A)

Female S.No. Par�culars Total (A) No.(B) % (B/A) No.(C )
DIFFERENTLY ABLED EMPLOYEES

Total differently abled 
Employees (D+E)

DIFFERENTLY ABLED WORKERS

Total differently abled 
workers (F+G)

0 0 0.00 00 0.00

0 0 0.00 00 0.00

Total (A)
No. and percentage of Females
No.(B) % (B/A)

Loca�ons     
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 22.  Turnover rate for permanent employees and workers
  (Disclose trends for the past 3 years)

V. Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies (including joint ventures):
 23. (a) Names of holding / subsidiary / associate companies / joint ventures..
.

 

VI. CSR Details:

24. (i)   Whether CSR is applicable as per sec�on 135 of Companies Act, 2013: Yes
       (ii)  Turnover (in Rs.): 
       (iii) Net worth (in Rs.):

FY 2024-2025
(Turnover rate in 

current FY)

FY 2023-2024
(Turnover rate in 

previous FY)

FY 2022-2023
(Turnover rate in the year 
prior to the previous FY)

  Male Female Total Male Female  Total  Male Female Total
Permanent
Employees 
Permanent
Workers 

Name of the holding/
Subsidiary/Associate companies/
Joint Ventures (A)

Indicate whether 
holding/subsidiary/
Associate/Joint 
Venture

% of 
shares 
held by 
listed 
en�ty

Does the en�ty indicated
at column A, par�cipate
in the Business
Responsibility ini�a�ves
of the listed en�ty?
(Yes/No)

S.
No
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VII.  Transparency and Disclosures Compliances:

 25. Complaints/Grievances on any of the principles (Principles 1 to 9) under the Na�onal Guidelines on   
  Responsible Business Conduct:

Weblink: 

 26. Overview of the en�ty’s material responsible business conduct issues 
  

 

Stakeholder group 
from whom 
complaint is
received

Grievance 
Redressal 
Mechanism in
Place (Yes/No)*

FY 2024-2025
Current Financial Year

Communi�es

Investors 
(other than shareholders)

Shareholders

Employees and workers

Customers

Value chain Partners

Other (please specify)

FY 2023-2024
Previous Financial Year

Number 
of 

complaints
filed during

 the year

Number of 
complaints

 pending
resolu�on at 
close of the

 year

Remarks Number 
of 

complaints
filed during

 the year

Number of 
complaints

 pending
resolu�on at 
close of the

 year

Remarks 

S.No. Material
issue

iden�fied

Indicate 
whether risk or 

opportunity
(R/O)

Ra�onale for 
iden�fying the 

risk/ opportunity

In case of risk,
approach to

adapt or 
mi�gate

Financial implica�ons 
of the risk or 

opportunity (Indicate 
posi�ve or nega�ve 

implica�ons)
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SECTION B: MANAGEMENT AND PROCESS DISCLOSURES
       
   This sec�on is aimed at helping businesses demonstrate the structures, policies and 
  processes put in place towards adop�ng the NGRBC Principles and Core Elements.

 
 10.  Details of Review of NGRBCs by the Company:

Disclosure 
Ques�ons 

P 
1 

P 
2 

P 
3 

P 
4 

P 
5 

P 
6 

P 
7 

P 
8 

P 
9 

Policy and management processes 
1.   a.  Whether your en�ty’s policy/policies cover each principle and its 

core elements of the NGRBCs.(Yes/No) 
       b.   Has the policy been approved by the Board? (Yes/No) 
      c.    Web link of the Policies, if available 2.  

 
Whether the en�ty has translated the policy into procedures. (Yes/No)

 3.   Do the enlisted policies extend to your value chain partners? (Yes/No)
 4. 

 
Name of

 
the na�onal and interna�onal 

codes/cer�fica�ons/labels/standards(e.g .Forest Stewardship council, 
Fairtrade, Rainforest alliance, Trustee) standards(e.g. SA 8000, OHSAS, 
ISO,BIS) adopted by your en�ty and mapped to each principle.

 5.  Specific commitments, goals and targets
 

set by the en�ty with defined 
�melines, if any.

 

6.   Performance of the en�ty against the specific commitments, goals and 
targets along with reason in case the same are not met.

 Governance,

 

leadership and oversight
Statement by director responsible for the business responsibility report, highligh�ng ESG related challenges, targets a  nd achievements   
(listed en�ty has flexibility regarding the placement of this disclosure)

 
Subject for Review Indicate whether review was undertaken 

by Director/Commi�ee of the Board/ Any 
other Commi�ee 

Frequency (Annually/Half yearly/Quarterly/ 
any other Please specify) 

P 
1 

P 
2 

P 
3 

P 
4 

P 
5 

P 
6 

P 
7 

P 
8 

P 
9 

P 
1 

P 
2 

P 
3 

P 
4 

P 
5 

P 
6 

P 
7 

P  
8  

P  
9  

Performance against above policies and follow 
up ac�on 
Compliance with statutory requirements of 
relevance to the principles, and, rec�fica�on of 
any non-compliances 

 
P

 1
 

P
 2
 

P
 3
 

P
 4
 

P
 5
 

P
 6
 

P
 7
 

P
 8
 

P
 9
 11. Has the en�ty carried out independent 

assessment/ evalua�on of the working of its 
policies by an external agency? (Yes/No). If yes, 
provide name of the agency.

 

8. 

 

Details of the highest authority responsible for implementation and 
oversight of the Business Responsibility Policy(ies)

 

9.  Does the en�ty have a specified

 

Commi�ee of the Board/ Director 
responsible for decision making on sustainability related issues? 
(Yes/No). If yes, provide details.
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   12.   If answer to ques�on (1) above is “No” i.e. not all Principles are covered by a policy, reasons to be stated:

  SECTION C: PRINCIPLE WISE PERFORMANCE DISCLOSURE

  PRINCIPLE 1 Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with integrity, and in a manner that is 
  Ethical, Transparent and Accountable.

 2.  

 

Ques�ons P  
1  

P  
2  

P  
3  

P  
4  

P  
5  

P  
6  

P  
7  

P  
8  

P  
9  

The en�ty does not consider the Principles material to its business (Yes/No)  
The en�ty is not at a stage where it is in a posi�on to formulate and implement the policies on 
specified principles (Yes/No) 
The en�ty does not have the financial or/human and technical resources available for the task 
(Yes/No) 
It is planned to be done in the next financial year (Yes/No)  
Any other reason (please specify) 

Essen�al Indicators

Segment Total Number of 
Training and 
awareness
Programmes held

Topics/ principles covered
under the training 
and its impact

%age of persons in
respec�ve category
covered by the 
awareness 
programmes
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 3.  Of the instances disclosed in Ques�on 2 above, details of the Appeal/ Revision preferred in cases where 
  monetary or non-monetary ac�on has been appealed.

 4.  Does the en�ty have an an�-corrup�on or an�-bribery policy? If yes, provide details in brief and if 
  available, provide a web-link to the policy.: 

 5.  Number of Directors/KMPs/employees/workers against whom disciplinary ac�on was taken by any   
  law enforcement agency for the charges of bribery/corrup�on:

 6.  Details of complaints with regard to conflict of interest:

 

Case Details 
     

Name of the regulatory/ enforcement 
agencies/judicial institu�ons 

FY:2024-2025 
(Current financial Year) 

FY: 2023-2024 
(Previous financial Year) 

 
Monetary 

NGRBC 
Principle 

Name of the 
regulatory / 
Enforcement agencies/  
judicial ins�tu�ons 

Amount  
(In INR) 

Brief of the Case Has an appeal  
been preferred?  
(Yes/ No)  

Non-Monetary
NGRBC 
Principle 

Name of the 
regulatory / 
Enforcement agencies/  
judicial ins�tu�ons 

 
 

Brief of the Case Has an appeal  
been preferred?  
(Yes/ No)  

FY 2024-2025 
(Current Financial Year) 

FY 2023-2024 
(Previous Financial Year) 

Number Remarks Number Remarks 
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 7.  Provide details of any correc�ve ac�on taken or underway on issues related to fines/ penal�es/ac�on 
taken by regulators/ law enforcement agencies/ judicial ins�tu�ons, on cases of corrup�on and conflicts 
of interest.: 

8.  Number of days of accounts payables ((Accounts payable *365) / Cost of goods / services procured) in the 
following format: 

 9.  Open-ness of business 
  

FY 2024-2025 
(Current Financial Year)

FY 2023-2024 
(Previous Financial Year)    

   

  FY 2024-2025
(Current Financial Year)

FY 2023-2024 
  (Previous Financial Year)  

   
Parameter  Metrics 

l

l

l

l
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Leadership Indicators
 1.  Awareness programmes conducted for values chain partners on any of the Principles 

during the financial year:

 2.  Does the en�ty have processes in place to avoid/manage conflict of interests involving members of the 
  Board? (Yes/No) If Yes, provide details of the same. 

PRINCIPLE 2 Businesses should provide goods and services in a manner that is sustainable and 
safe.

Essen�al Indicators
 1.  Percentage of R&D and capital expenditure (capex) investments in specific technologies to improve the 

environmental and social impacts of product and processes to total R&D and capex investments made by 
the en�ty, respec�vely.

 

 2. a.  Does the en�ty have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing? (Yes/No)
  b.  If yes, what percentage of inputs were sourced sustainably?

. 

 3.  Describe the processes in place to safely reclaim your products for reusing, recycling and disposing at the 
  end of  life, for (a) Plas�cs (including packaging) (b) E-waste (c) Hazardous waste and (d) other waste.

R&D
Capex

Current Financial 
Year

Previous 
Financial Year

Details of improvements in
environmental and social impacts

NIL
4.81%

NIL
8.08%

N.A

 
Total number of awareness 
programmes held

Topics/principles covered 
under the training

%age of value chain partners covered 
(by value of business done with such 
partners) under the awareness programmes

- - -
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 4.  Whether Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) is applicable to the en�ty's ac�vi�es (Yes / No). If yes, 
whether the waste collec�on plan is in line with the Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) plan 
submi�ed to Pollu�on Control Boards? If not, provide steps taken to address the same. : 

Leadership Indicators
 1.  Has the en�ty conducted Life Cycle Perspec�ve / Assessments (LCA) for any of its products (for 

manufacturing industry) or for its services (for service industry)? If yes, provide details in the following 
format?

 

 

 
 2.  If there are any significant social or environmental concerns and / or risks arising from produc�on or 

disposal of your products / services, as iden�fied in the Life Cycle Perspec�ve / Assessments (LCA) or 
through any other means, briefly describe the same along-with ac�on taken to mi�gate the same.

 3.  Percentage of recycled or reused input material to total material (by value) used in produc�on (for 
manufacturing industry) or providing services (for service industry).

 4.  Of the products and packaging reclaimed at end of life of products, amount (in metric tonnes) reused, 
  recycled, and safely disposed, as per the following format:

 
 5.  Reclaimed products and their packaging materials (as percentage of products sold) for each product 
  category.

NIC 
Code

Name 
of Product

/Service

% of total 
Turnover

contributed

Boundary for which the
Life cycle Perspec�ve 

/ Assessment Was 
conducted

Whether
conducted by

independent external
agency (Yes/No)

Results 
Communicated in

 public domain
 (Yes/No) If yes, 

provide the web-link

Name of Product/
Service

Descrip�on of the risk/
concern

Ac�on Taken

Indicate input material
Recycled or re-used input material to total material

FY2024-2025
Current Financial Year

FY2023-2024
Previous Financial Year

FY2024 -2025 
Current Financial Year  

FY2023-2024 
Previous Financial Year  

Re-Used Recycled Safely 
Disposed 

Re-Used Recycled  Safely  
Disposed  

Indicate product category Reclaimed products and their packaging materials as % of total 
products sold in respec�ve category 
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  PRINCIPLE 3 Businesses should respect and promote the well-being of all employees, including those in 
their value chains

  Essen�al Indicators
  

 
  

  c.  Spending on measures towards well-being of employees and workers (including permanent and 
       other than permanent) in the following format - 

% of employees covered by  
Category Total  

(A)  
Health 
Insurance  

Accident 
Insurance  

Maternity 
Benefits  

Paternity 
Benefits  

Day Care 
Facili�es  

Number  
(B)  

%  
(B/A)  

Number  
(C)  

%  
(C/A)  

Number  
(D)  

%  
(D/A)

 

Number  
(E)  

%  
(E/A)

 

Number  
(F)  

%  
(F/A)  

Permanent employees  

Total  407 84 20.63% 185 45.45% - - - - - -
Other than Permanent employees  

            Total
 

41 - - - - - - - - - -

 
Category Total 

(A) 
Health 
Insurance 

Accident 
Insurance 

Maternity 
Benefits 

Paternity 
Benefits 

Day Care 
Facili�es 

Number (B)
 

% (B/A)
 

Number (C)
 

% (C/A)
 

Number (D)
 

% (D/A)

 

Number (E)
 

% (E/A)

 

Number (F)
 

% (F/A)
 

Permanent workers
 

Total

 

47 38 80.85% - - - - - - - -
Other than Permanent workers

 
          Total

 

842 337 40.02 - - - - - - - -

FY 2024-2025 
(Current Financial Year)

FY 2023-2024 
(Previous Financial Year)    

   

 2.  Details of re�rement benefits, for Current Financial Year and Previous Financial Year:

 Benefits

FY2024-2025 
Current Financial Year  

FY2023-2024 
Previous Financial Year  

No. of 
employees 

covered  as a % of total 
employees

 
*

 

No. of 
workers 
covered
as a % of 

total workers
 *

 

Deducted  
and 

deposited  with the 
authority

 (Y/N/N.A)*
 

No. of 
employees 

covered  as a % of total 
employees*

 

No. of 
workers 
covered  as a % of 

total 
workers*

 

Deducted 
and 

deposited with the 
authority

 (Y/N/N.A)*
 

 
 
 

Maithan Alloys Annual Report 2024-25 87



Yes/No (If Yes, then give details of the mechanism in brief)  
  

 3.  Accessibility to workplaces
Are the premises/ offices of the en�ty accessible to differently abled employees and workers, as per the 
requirements of the Rights of Persons with Disabili�es Act,2016? If not, whether any steps are being 
taken by the en�ty in this regard.

4. Does the en�ty have an equal opportunity policy as per the Rights of Persons with Disabili�es Act,2016? 
If so, provide a web-link to the policy.

 5.   Return to work and Reten�on rates of permanent employees and workers that took parental leave.
  

6.    Is there a mechanism available to receive and redress grievances for the following categories of employees and 
worker? If yes, give details of the mechanism in brief. 

 Permanent workers 
Reten�on Rate Return to work rate Reten�on Rate 

Permanent employees  
Return to work rateGender 

Total
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Category 

FY2024-2025 
(Current Financial Year) 

FY2023-2024 
(Previous Financial Year) 

Total 
employees/ 
workers in 
respec�ve 

category (A) 

No. of 
employees/ 
workers in 
respec�ve 

are part of 
associa�ons(s) 

or Union (B) 

% 
(B/A) 

Total 
employees/ 
workers in 
respec�ve 

category (C) 

No. of 
employees/ 
workers in 
respec�ve 

category, who 
are part of 

associa�ons(s) 
or Union (D) 

% (C/D) 

Total 
Permanent 
Employees 

Total 
Permanent  
Workers 

 
 
Category

    

FY2024-2025 
Current Financial Year 

FY2023-2024 
Previous Financial Year 

 (A)
 

On Health and 
Safety 

measures 

On Skill 
upgrada�on

 

Total 
(D) 

On Health and 
Safety 

measures 

On Skill 
upgrada�on 

No. 
(B) 

% 
(B/A) 

No. 
(C) 

% 
(C/A) 

No. 
(E) 

% 
(E/D) 

No. 
(F) 

% 
(F/D) 

Employees  

Total 499 148 29% 148 29%
Workers

Total 

448

 
 

Category 
FY2024-2025 

Current Financial Year 
FY2023-2024 

Previous Financial Year 
Total 

(A) 
No. 
(B) 

% 
(B/A) 

Total 
(C) 

No. 
(D) 

% 
(D/C) 

Employees

Total 464 93%
Workers

Total 

448

1141 114 10%

 8.  Details of training given to employees and workers:

 9.  Details of performance and career development reviews of employees and worker:

 7.  Membership of employees and worker in associa�on(s) or Unions recognized by the listed en�ty:

 

1141 219 19% 219 19%

133 29% 141 31%

889 188 21% 188 21%

403 499

889 106
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 10.  Health and safety management system:
 (a)  Whether an occupa�onal health and safety management system has been implemented by the          

en�ty? (Yes/No).If yes, the coverage of such system? 

 (b) What are the processes used to iden�ty work-related hazards and assess risks on a rou�ne and non-
rou�ne basis by the en�ty?

  (c ) Whether you have processes for workers to report the work related hazards and to remove 
themselves  from such risks.(Y/N)

(d) Do the employees /worker of the en�ty have access to non-occupa�onal medical and healthcare 
services? (Yes/No) .

 11.  Details of safety related incidents, in the following format

 
 
 12.  Describe the measures taken by the en�ty to ensure a safe and healthy work place.
  -

 13.  Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers:

 14.  Assessments for the year:

Safety Incident/Number Category* FY2024-2025 
Current Financial 

Year 

FY2023-2024 
Previous Financial 

Year 

   
 FY2024-2025 

(Current Financial Year) 
FY2023-2024 

(Previous Financial Year) 
Filed during  
the year 

Pending resolu�on 
at the end of year 

Remarks Filed during  
the year 

Pending resolu�on 
at the end of year 

Remarks 

Working 
Conditions 
Health & 
Safety 

 
% of your plants and offices that were assessed  
(by en�ty or statutory authori�es or third par�es)  

Health and safety prac�ces  
Working Condi�ons  
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 15.  Provide details of any correc�ve ac�on taken or underway to address safety-related incidents (if any) and 
on significant risks/ concerns arising from assessments of health & safety prac�ces and working 
condi�ons.

Leadership Indicators
 1.  Does the en�ty extend any life insurance or any compensatory package in the event of death of (A) 
  Employees (Y/N) (B) Workers (Y/N).
   

 2.  Provide the measures undertaken by the en�ty to ensure that statutory dues have been deducted  and  
  deposited by the value chain partners.

 3.  Provide the number of employees /workers having suffered high consequence work-related injury/ 
  ill-health/fatali�es (as reported in Q11 of Essen�al Indicators above), who have been are rehabilitated 
  and placed in suitable employment or whose family members have been placed in suitable 
  employment:

 4.  Does the en�ty provide transi�on assistance programs to facilitate con�nued employability and the  
  management of career endings resul�ng from re�rement or termina�on of employment? (Yes/No):  

 5.   Details on assessment of value chain partners

 
 6.  Provide details of any correc�ve ac�ons taken or underway to address significant risks/ concerns arising 

from assessments of health and safety prac�ces and working condi�ons of value chain partners. 
 
PRINCIPLE 4 Businesses should respect the interest of and be responsive to all its stakeholders
Essen�al Indicators
 1. Describe the processes for iden�fying key stakeholder groups of the en�ty.

Total no. of affected employees/workers No. of employees/workers that are rehabilitated  
and placed in suitable employment or whose  
family members have been  
placed in suitable employment 

FY2024-2025 
(Current Financial 

Year) 

FY2023 -2024 
(Previous Financial 

Year) 

FY2024-2025 
 (Current Financial 

Year) 

FY FY2023-2024 
(Previous Financial 

Year) 

 % of value chain partners (by value of business done with such partners) that 
were assessed 

Health and safety prac�ces 
Working condi�ons 
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Category  

FY2024-2025 
Current Financial Year  

FY2023-2024 
Previous Financial Year  

Total  
(A)  

No. of employees/  
workers  

covered (B)  

% (B/A)  Total  
(C)  

No. of employees/  
workers  

covered (D)  

% (D/C) 

Employees  

Total Employees  
Workers  

Total Workers  

Stakeholder 
Group 

Whether 
iden�fied as 
Vulnerable 
& 
Marginalised 
Group 
(Yes/No) 

Channels of 
communica�on (Email, 
SMS, Newspaper, 
Pamphlets, 
Adver�sement, 
Community Mee�ngs, 
No�ce Board, Website), 
Other 

Frequency of 
engagement 
(Annually/ 
Half yearly/ 
Quarterly/ 
others – 
please 
specify) 

Purpose and scope of engagement 
including key topics and concerns raised 
during such engagement 

2. List stakeholder groups iden�fied as key for your en�ty and the frequency of engagement with each 
stakeholder group.

PRINCIPLE 5 Businesses should respect and promote human rights
Essen�al Indicators  

1.  Employees and workers who have been provided training on human rights issues and policy(ies) of the 
en�ty, in the following format:
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 2.  Details of minimum wages paid to employees and workers, in the following format:

 3.  Details of remunera�on/ salary/wages, in the following format:
  a. Median remunera�on / wages: 

  b. Gross wages paid to females as % of total wages paid by the en�ty, in the following format:  

 

 4.  Do you have a focal point (Individual/ Commi�ee) responsible for addressing human rights  impacts or 
issues caused or contributed to by the business? (Yes/No)

 5. Describe the internal mechanisms in place to redress grievances related to human rights issues.

 
 

Category  

FY2024-2025  
Current Financial Year  

FY2023-2024
Previous Financial Year  

Total  
(A)  

Equal to  
Minimum Wage  

 
Minimum Wage  

Total  
(D)  

Equal to  
Minimum Wage  

 
Minimum Wage 

No.  
(B)  

%  
(B/A)  

No.  
(C)  

%  
(C/A)  

No.  
(E)  

%  
(E/D)  

No.  
(F)  

% 
(F/D) 

Employees  
Permanent  

Other than
 Permanent

Workers
Permanent

 

Other than
 Permanent

Male Female 
Number

 
Median remunera�on/salary/ 

Wages of respective 
category* 

Number Median 
remunera�on/salary/ 
Wages of respective 

category* 

 

FY 2024-2025 
(Current Financial Year)

FY 2023-2024 
  

   

(Previous Financial Year)  
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Parameter FY 2024-2025 
(Current Financial 

Year) 

FY2023-2024 
(Previous Financial Year) 

 % of your plants and offices that were assessed (by 
en�ty or statutory authori�es or third par�es) 

Child Labour 
Forced/Involuntary Labour 
Sexual harassment 
Discrimina�on at workplace 
Wages 
Others-please specify 

 6.  Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers:

 7.   Complaints filed under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on and 
   Redressal) Act, 2013 in the following format:

 

 8.  Mechanisms to prevent adverse consequences to the complainant in discrimina�on and harassment 
cases. The Company has a zero tolerance policy towards harassment of any kind, including sexual 
harassment.

• 

• 

9.  Do human rights requirements form part of your business agreements and contracts?(Yes/No)

10.  Assessments for the year: FY 2024-2025 

FY2024-2025 
Current Financial Year 

FY2023-2024 
Previous Financial Year 

Filed 
during 

the 
year 

Pending 
resolu�on 

at the end of year 

Remarks Filed 
during the 

year 

Pending 
resolu�on 

at the end of 
year 

Remarks 

Sexual Harassment 
Discrimination at 
workplace 
Child Labour 
Forced Labour/ 
Involuntary Labour 
Wages 
Other human rights 
related issues 
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 11.  Provide details of any correc�ve ac�ons taken or underway to address significant risks / concerns 
arising from the assessments at Ques�on 10 above.

  

Leadership Indicator

 1.  Details of a business process being modified / introduced as a result of addressing human rights 
grievances/complaints.

  

 2.  Details of the scope and coverage of any Human rights due-diligence conducted. 
 3.  Is the premise/office of the en�ty accessible to differently abled visitors, as per the requirements of the 

Rights of Persons with Disabili�es Act, 2016? 

 4.  Details on assessment of value chain partners:

 
 
 5.  Provide details of any correc�ve ac�ons taken or underway to address significant risks/ concerns 

arising from the assessments at Ques�on 4 above.
  

PRINCIPLE 6 Businesses should respect and make efforts to protect and restore the environment
Essen�al Indicators

  Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/evalua�on/assurance has been carried out by an 
external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency. 

 2.  Does the en�ty have any sites / facili�es iden�fied as designated consumers (DCs) under the 
Performance, Achieve and Trade (PAT) Scheme of the Government of India? (Y/N) If yes, disclose whether 
targets set under the PAT scheme have been achieved. In case targets have not been achieved, provide 
the remedial ac�on taken, if any. 

% of value chain partners (by value of business done with such partners) 
 ed 

Parameter FY 2024-2025 
(Current Financial  Year)  

FY2023-2024 
(Previous Financial Year) 

 Total energy consumed from renewable sources (A+B+C)
From non-renewable sources

Total energy consumed from non-renewable sources (D+E+F)
Total energy consumed (A+B+C+D+E+F)
Energy intensity per rupee of turnover

Energy intensity per rupee of turnover adjusted for
Purchasing Power Parity (PPP)

Energy intensity in terms of physical output
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 3.  Provide details of the following disclosures related to water, in the following format:

 

 4.  Provide the following details related to water discharged:

 

Parameter FY2023 2024
(Previous Financial Year)

Water withdrawal by source (in kiloliters)  

FY 2024 2025
(Current Financial Year)

 

Total volume of water withdrawal (in kiloliters) 
(i+ii+iii+iv+v) 
Total volume of water consumption (in kiloliters) 
Water intensity per rupee of turnover  

Water intensity per rupee of turnover adjusted for 
Purchasing Power Parity (PPP)

Water intensity in terms of physical output
Water intensity (op�onal) 

Parameter  

Water discharge by des�na�on and level of 
treatment (in kilolitres)

 

Total water discharged (in kilolitres)

 

 
FY2023-2024 

(Previous Financial Year) 
FY 2024-2025

(Current Financial Year)

2,99,240

2,99,240

0.011

NA

NA
NA

NA

3,59,890

3,59,890

0.020

NA

NA
NA

NA
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 5.  Has the en�ty implemented a mechanism for Zero Liquid Discharge? If yes, provide details of its 
coverage and implementa�on. 

 6.  Please provide details of air emissions (other than GHG emissions) by the en�ty, in the following 
format:

 7.  Provide details of greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions) & its intensity, in the 
following format:

  

 8.  Does the en�ty have any project related to reducing Green House Gas emission? If Yes, then provide 
details. YES

  

Parameter Please specify 
unit 

FY 2024 - 2025 
(Current Financial Year) 

FY 2023-2024 
(Previous Financial Year) 

Parameter Unit FY 2024-2025 
(Current Financial 

Year) 

FY2023-2024 
(Previous Financial 

Year) 
Total Scope 1 emissions 

CO2, CH4,N2O,HFCs,PFCs,SF6,NF3,

Total Scope 2 emissions 
CO2, CH4,N2O,HFCs,PFCs,SF6,NF3,

Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions per rupee of turnover

Total Scope 1 and Scope 2emission intensity per rupee of 
turnover adjusted for Purchasing Power Parity (PPP)

Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emission intensity in terms 
of physical output
Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emission intensity (op�onal)
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9.  Provide details related to waste management by the en�ty, in the following format:

  

 10.  Briefly describe the waste management prac�ces adopted in your establishments. Describe the strategy 
adopted by your company to reduce usage of hazardous and toxic chemicals in your products and 
processes and the prac�ces adopted to manage such wastes.

  

 11.  If the en�ty has opera�ons/offices in/around ecologically sensi�ve areas (such as na�onal parks, wildlife 
sanctuaries, biosphere reserves, wetlands, biodiversity hotspots, forests, coastal regula�on zones etc.) 
where environmental approvals / clearances are required, please specify details in the following format:

Parameter  FY2024-2025 
(Current financial Year)  

FY2023-2024 
(Previous Financial Year)  

Total Waste generated (in metric tonnes)  
(A)

(B)
 (C)

(D)
(E)

(F)

(G)   Used Oil
(H).

Total (A+B+C+D+E+F+G+H)

 
For each category of waste generated, total waste recovered through recycling, re -using or other recovery opera�ons (in metric tonnes)  

Category of waste 

Total 
For each category of waste generated, total waste disposed by nature of disposal method (in metric  tonnes)  

Category of waste 

Total 

Waste intensity per rupee of turnover

Waste intensity per rupee of turnover adjusted for
Purchasing Power Parity (PPP)

Waste intensity in terms of physical output
Waste intensity 

Loca�on of opera�ons/offices Type of opera�ons  Whether the condi�ons of environmental 
approval / clearance are being complied 
with? (Y/N) If no, the reasons there of 
and correc�ve ac�on taken, if any.
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  12.  Details of environmental impact assessments of projects undertaken by the en�ty based on applicable 
laws, in the current financial year:

13.   Is the en�ty compliant with the applicable environmental law/ regula�ons/ guidelines in India; such as 
the Water (Preven�on and Control of Pollu�on) Act, Air (Preven�on and Control of Pollu�on) Act, 
Environment Protec�on Act and Rules thereunder (Y/N). If not, provide details of all such non-
compliances, in the following format: 

Leadership Indicators 
 1. Water withdrawal, consump�on and discharge in areas of water stress (in kiloliters): 

 2.  Please provide details of total Scope 3 emissions & its intensity, in the following format:

 

 

 

Specify the law/ 
regula�on/ guidelines 

which was not 
complied with

Provide details
 of the 

non-compliance

Any fines/ penal�es/ 
ac�on taken by regulatory 
agencies such as pollu�on

 control boards or by courts

Correc�ve 
ac�on taken, 

if any

S.No.

Parameter Unit FY2024-2025 
(Current Financial 

Year) 

FY2023-2024 
(Previous Financial 

Year) 
Total Scope 3 emissions 

Total Scope 3 emissions per rupee of turnover 
Total Scope 3 emission intensity op�onal) –  

Name and 
brief details of 

project 

EIA 
No�fication 

No. 

Date Whether 
conducted by 
independent 

external 
agency 

(Yes/No) 

Results 
communicated 

in public 
domain 

(Yes/No) 

Relevant 
Web 
link 
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 3.  With respect to the ecologically sensi�ve areas reported at Ques�on 10 of Essen�al Indicators above, 

provide details of significant direct & indirect impact of the en�ty on biodiversity in such areas along-
with preven�on and remedia�on ac�vi�es. 

 4.  If the en�ty has undertaken any specific ini�a�ves or used innova�ve technology or solu�ons to improve 
resource efficiency, or reduce impact due to emissions / effluent discharge / waste generated, please 
provide details of the same as well as outcome of such ini�a�ves :  

.

 5.  Does the en�ty have a business con�nuity and disaster management plan? Give details in 100 words/ 
web link.

  

 6.  Disclose any significant adverse impact to the environment, arising from the value chain of the en�ty. 
What mi�ga�on or adapta�on measures have been taken by the en�ty in this regard.

  

 7.  Percentage of value chain partners (by value of business done with such partners) that were assessed for 
environmental impacts.

  

PRINCIPLE 7 Businesses, when engaging in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a manner that is 
responsible and transparent

Essen�al Indicators

 

S.No. Name of the trade and industry 
chambers/associa�ons 

Reach of trade and industry chambers/ 
associations (State/Na�onal) 
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Leadership Indicators
 1.  Details of public policy posi�ons advocated by the en�ty:

 
PRINCIPLE 8 Businesses should promote inclusive growth and equitable development
Essen�al Indicators

 1.  Details of Social Impact Assessments (SIA) of projects undertaken by the en�ty based on applicable laws,
  in the current financial year.
  
 2.  Provide informa�on on project(s) for which ongoing Rehabilita�on and Rese�lement (R&R) is being
  undertaken by your en�ty, in the following format:
  
 3.  Describe the mechanisms to receive and redress grievances of the community.
  Grievances of the community are reported to concerned officers at respec�ve loca�ons,.
  
 
4.  Percentage of input material (inputs to total inputs by value) sourced from suppliers:

 
5. Job crea�on in smaller towns – Disclose wages paid to persons employed (including employees or workers 

employed on a permanent or non-permanent / on contract basis) in the following loca�ons, as % of total wage 
cost (Place to be categorized as per RBI Classifica�on System - rural / semi-urban / urban / metropolitan)

S.No. Public 
Policy 

advocated 

Method 
resorted for such 

advocacy 

Whether informa�on 
available in public 

domain? 
(Yes/No) 

Frequency of review by 
 

Half yearly/ 
Quarterly/Others-please 

specify) 

Web-link, if 
available 

FY2024-2025
Current Financial Year 

FY2023-2024
Previous Financial Year 

 Name of authority Brief of the case Correc�ve ac�on taken

FY2024-2025
Current Financial Year 

FY2023-2024
Previous Financial Year 

Loca�on 
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Leadership Indicators
 

 

 2.  Provide the following informa�on on CSR projects undertaken by your en�ty in designated aspira�onal districts 
as iden�fied by government bodies: 

3.  (a) Do you have a preferen�al procurement policy where you give preference to purchase from suppliers 
comprising marginalized /vulnerable groups? 

 4.  Details of the benefits derived and shared from the intellectual proper�es owned or acquired by  your en�ty (in 
the current financial year), based on tradi�onal knowledge

 5.  Details of correc�ve ac�ons taken or underway, based on any adverse order in intellectual property related 
disputes wherein usage of tradi�onal knowledge is involved. 

 6.  Details  of beneficiaries of CSR Projects:

PRINCIPLE 9 Businesses should engage with and provide value to their consumers in a responsible manner
Essen�al Indicators

 1.  Describe the mechanisms in place to receive and respond to consumer complaints and feedback.
  Customer complaints:

 
  Export Sales: 

Details of nega�ve 
social impact iden�fied

Correc�ve ac�on taken
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 3.  Number of consumer complaints in respect of the following:
  
 4.  Details of instances of product recalls on account of safety issues:
  

 5.  Does the en�ty have a framework/policy on cyber security and risks related to data privacy? (Yes/No) If
  available, provide a web-link of the policy.
 

 6.  Provide details of any correc�ve ac�ons taken or underway on issues rela�ng to adver�sing, and delivery
  of essen�al services; cyber security and data privacy of customers; re-occurrence of instances of product
  recalls; penalty/ac�on taken by regulatory authori�es on safety of products/services.
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Maithan Alloys Limited 

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

Maithan Alloys Limited 

Independent Auditor's Report

Basis for Opinion

Key Audit Ma�ers
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Descriptions of the Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter 

Revenue Recogni�on 

Existence and Valua�on of Inventory
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Descriptions of the Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter 

Existence and Valua�on of Investment

Informa�on Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and 
Auditor's Report Thereon

Responsibili�es of Management and Board of Directors for the 
Standalone Financial Statements
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Auditor's Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Annexure A
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I. 

II. 

III.

IV. 

V. 

 

VI. 

For Singhi & Co.

(Shrenik Mehta)
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Annexure “A” to the
Independent Auditor's Report

Maithan Alloys Limited

Description of 
property

Gross Carrying
 Value

(Rs. In Cr)
Held in the name of

Whether promoter, 
director or their 

relative or 
employee

Period held 
since

Reason for not being held in the
 name of the company

Land at 
Visakhapatnam

     1.38 Anjaney Alloys Limited No Since 2016 till 
date

The title of asset transferred 
pursuant to the scheme of 

amalgamation in the year 2016 and 
the company is in process of 

transferring the title in the name of 
the company.

Maithan Alloys Annual Report 2024-25 109



Name of the 
Bank

Aggregate working 
capital limits sanctioned

Quarter Amount disclosed as per 
quarterly return/statements

Amount as per 
books of account Diff Reason

 540 Jun-24                  747.61  738.42 9.19

 540 Jun-23                  647.10  643.43 3.67

 540 Sep-24                  642.40  668.65 (26.25)

 540 Sep-23                  688.50  703.59 (15.09)

 540 Dec-24                  544.84  534.84 10.00

 540 Dec-23                  795.06  771.34 23.72

 540 Mar-25                  606.94        597.70 9.24

 540 Mar-24                  737.88 715.63 22.25

State Bank of 
India and 
consortium of 
banks

The Difference is due to 
exclusion of related party 
debtors, adjustments 
pertaining to cut-offs, goods 
in transit and adjustment of 
debit/ credit notes of 
provisional prices which are 
not considered in statements 
submitted to Banks.

Particulars Guarantees Security Loans Advances in nature
of loan

Aggregate amount granted/provided during the year:       

Subsidiaries Nil Nil 404.76 Nil

Others - Loan to Body Corporate Nil Nil     6.75 Nil

Balance outstanding as at Balance Sheet date in respect of above cases:    

Subsidiaries Nil Nil 427.76 Nil

(` In Cr.)

(` In Cr.)
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Type of Borrower

As at 31-Mar-2025 As at 31-Mar-2025

Amount of loan or advance in the nature of loan 
outstanding
(` in Crores)

Percentage of loans/ advances in nature of loans to the 
total loans

 (A) Repayable on demand  

 Promoters - -

 Directors - -

 KMPs - -

 Related Parties 409.94 94.72%

 Others      5.00 1.16%

Name of the statute Nature of dues Amount
(` in Crores)

Period to which the 
amount relates 
(Financial Year)

Forum where the dispute is pending 

The Central Excise Act, 1944  Excise Duty & Service Tax   0.25 2008-09 Additional commissioner,
    Bolpur Commissionerate 

Finance Act, 1994  Service Tax   0.05 2017-18 Commissioner (Appeal), Siliguri

The Central Excise Act, 1944  Excise Duty & Service Tax   0.46 2015-16 & 2016-17 CESTAT, Kolkata

The Central Excise Act, 1944  Excise Duty & Service Tax   2.83 2017-18 Additional commissioner,
    Bolpur Commissionerate 

The Central Excise Act, 1944  Excise Duty & Service Tax   1.73 2020-21 Hight Court Of Meghalaya at Shillong 

Income Tax Act,1961 Income Tax  0.50 2019-20 Assessing Ofcer
    (National Faceless Appeal Centre of
    Income Tax) 

Income Tax Act,1961 Income Tax  0.47 2017-18 Assessing Ofcer
    (National Faceless Appeal Centre of
    Income Tax) 
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Name of the statute Nature of dues Amount
(Rs. in Crores)

Period to which the 
amount relates 
(Financial Year)

Forum where the dispute is pending 

Goods & Service Tax Act Good and Service Tax   0.48 2017-2018 Commissioner (Appeal), Siliguri

Goods & Service Tax Act Good and Service Tax   0.38 2019-2020 Superintendent, Central Tax, Range-IV,
    Asansol-II Division, Bolpur Commissionerate

Goods & Service Tax Act Good and Service Tax  0.56 2020-21 Superintendent, Central Tax, Range-IV, 
   & 2021- 22 Asansol-II Division, Bolpur Commissionerate

Goods & Service Tax Act Good and Service Tax  0.04 2020-21  Commissioner (Appeal), Siliguri

Goods & Service Tax Act Good and Service Tax  0.46 2022-23 Superintendent, Central Tax, Range-IV,
    Asansol-II Division, Bolpur Commissionerate

Andra Pradesh VAT ACT Value Added Tax  0.13 2013-14 APVAT Appellate Tribunal

Nature of Fund 
Taken

Name of 
Lender

Amount Involved    
(` in Crore)

Name of the 
Subsidiary Relation Nature of transaction for 

which funds utilized
Remarks, 

if any

Flexi Loan Bajaj Finserv 80 Anjaney Minerals Pvt 
Ltd

Wholly Owned 
Subsidiary (WOS)

Obligation for acquisition 
of Land Bank (Inventory) 

by WOS

 Nil

Flexi Loan Bajaj Finserv 79 Salanpur Sinters Pvt 
Ltd

Wholly Owned 
Subsidiary (WOS)

Obligation for acquisition 
of Land Bank (Inventory) 

by WOS

 Nil
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For Singhi & Co.

(Shrenik Mehta)
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Annexure “B” to the
Independent Auditor's Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to 
Standalone Financial Statements under clause (i) of sub-sec�on 3 
of Sec�on 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

Maithan Alloys Limited

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

Auditor's Responsibility

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to 
Standalone Financial Statements
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Opinion

For Singhi & Co.

(Shrenik Mehta)
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ASSETS     
(1) Non-Current Assets     
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4  118.80   126.82 
(b) Capital Work in Progress 5  0.27   0.68 
(c) Intangible Assets 6  0.32   0.35 
(d) Right of Use Assets 7  16.48   17.46 
(e) Investment in subsidiaries 8  167.55   83.66 
(f) Financial Assets    
 (i)  Investments 9  1,076.01   59.64 
 (ii)  Loans 10  17.82   -   
 (iii)  Other Financial Assets 11  39.88   37.74 
(g) Non Current Tax Assets (Net) 12  11.06   12.66 
(h) Other Non-Current Assets 13  4.65   1.58 
Total Non-Current Assets  1,452.84   340.59 
(2) Current Assets     
(a) Inventories 14  588.04   339.67 
(b) Financial Assets    
 (i) Investments  15  1,977.82   1,725.70 
 (ii) Trade Receivables 16  145.40   387.61 
 (iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 17  16.36   35.69 
 (iv) Bank Balances (other than (iii) above) 18  35.57   31.47 
 (v) Loans 19  414.94   25.72 
 (vi) Other Financial Assets 20  33.27   444.66 
(c) Other Current Assets 21  51.90   27.14 
Total Current Assets   3,263.30   3,017.66 
Total Assets  4,716.14   3,358.25 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES     
Equity     
(a) Equity Share Capital 22  29.11   29.11 
(b)  Other Equity 23  3,655.48   3,041.25 
Total Equity   3,684.59   3,070.36 
Liabilities   
(1) Non-Current Liabilities     
(a) Financial Liabilities    
 (i) Lease Liabilities 24  3.12   3.22 
(b) Provisions 25  3.32   3.54 
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)  26  222.58   48.90 
(d) Other Non-Current Liabilities 27  0.05   0.08 
Total Non-Current Liabilities  229.07   55.74 
(2) Current Liabilities     
(a)  Financial Liabilities    
 (i)  Borrowings 28  561.86   13.90 
 (ii) Lease Liabilities 29  0.10   0.09 
 (iii) Trade Payables  30  
  - Trade Payables (outstanding to micro and small enterprises)  0.53   5.27 
  - Trade Payables (outstanding to other than micro and small enterprises)  111.63   78.96 
 (iv)  Other Financial Liabilities 31  74.87   70.60 
(b) Provisions 32  0.57   0.24 
(c) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 33  7.14   19.64 
(d) Other Current Liabilities 34  45.78   43.45 
Total Current Liabilities  802.48   232.15 
Total Liabilities  1,031.55   287.89 
Total Equity and Liabilities  4,716.14   3,358.25 

As At 31 March 2024As At 31 March 2025Particulars 

(` In Cr.)

The accompanying notes 1 to 64 are an integral part of the nancial statements.
In terms of our report attached

For Singhi & Co.  
Chartered Accountants  
FRN.: 302049E  

Shrenik Mehta  
Partner  
Membership No.: 063769   

Place: Kolkata  
Date: 28 May 2025  

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

S. C. Agarwalla
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00088384

Subodh Agarwalla
Whole-time Director & CEO

DIN: 00339855

Sudhanshu Agarwalla
President & CFO

Rajesh K. Shah
Company Secretary

Notes
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Income    

Revenue from Operations 35  1,819.65   1,723.00 

Other Income 36  726.62   356.94 

Total Income  2,546.27   2,079.94 

Expenses    

Cost of Material Consumed 37  773.20   912.57 

Purchases of Stock In Trade 38  350.93   79.51 

Changes in Inventories of Finished goods, Stock in trades and Work in progress 39  (43.01)  (86.83)

Employee Benets Expenses 40  36.48   44.61 

Power Cost  41  371.76   493.99 

Finance Cost 42  20.91   1.55 

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 43  14.90   15.17 

Other Expenses 44  162.63   170.30 

Total Expenses  1,687.80   1,630.87 

Profit Before Tax and Exceptional Item   858.47   449.07 

Exceptional Item   -     -   

Profit Before Tax   858.47   449.07 

Tax Expenses    

(a) Current Tax 46  49.71   71.85 

(b) Deferred Tax 46  173.62   25.61 

(c) Tax for Earlier Year 46  (5.09)  0.58 

Total Tax Expenses   218.24   98.04 

Profit for the year (A)   640.23   351.03 

Other Comprehensive Income    

A (i) Items that will not be reclassied to prot or loss    

   -  Re-measurements of the Net Dened Benet Plans 47  0.26   0.12 

   -  Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income   -     6.25 

   (ii) Income tax relating to above items 46  (0.06)  (0.26)

Other Comprehensive Income for the year (B)   0.20   6.11 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (A+B)   640.43   357.14 

Earnings Per Share (of ` 10/- each)    

(1) Basic (in `) 45  219.92   120.58 

(2) Diluted (in `) 45  219.92   120.58 

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025Particulars 

(` In Cr.)

Notes

The accompanying notes 1 to 64 are an integral part of the Standalone nancial statements.
In terms of our report attached

For Singhi & Co.  
Chartered Accountants  
FRN.: 302049E  

Shrenik Mehta  
Partner  
Membership No.: 063769   

Place: Kolkata  
Date: 28 May 2025  

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

S. C. Agarwalla
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00088384

Subodh Agarwalla
Whole-time Director & CEO

DIN: 00339855

Sudhanshu Agarwalla
President & CFO

Rajesh K. Shah
Company Secretary
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Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2025  
(` In Cr.)

As At 1 April 2023  1,558.91   (45.44)  (1,444.75)  33.62   32.50   (19.03)  2,585.65   0.12   2,701.58 

Prot for the year  -     -     -     -     -     -     351.03   -     351.03 

Other Comprehensive Income for the year          

- Remeasurement of net dened benet plan  -     -     -     -     -     -     0.09   -     0.09 

- Net change in fair value of Equity investments  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     6.02   6.02 

Transfer to Retained Earnings  -     -     -     -     -     -     5.43   (5.43)  -   

Dividend  -     -     -     -     -     -     (17.47)  -     (17.47)

Adjustment on account of composite   -     -     4.43   -     -     -     (4.99)  0.56   -   
scheme of arrangement*

As At 31 March 2024  1,558.91   (45.44)  (1,440.32)  33.62   32.50   (19.03)  2,919.74   1.27   3,041.25 

          

Prot for the year  -     -     -     -     -     -     640.23   -     640.23 

Other Comprehensive Income for the year         

- Remeasurement of net dened benet plan  -     -     -     -     -     -     0.20   -     0.20 

- Net change in fair value of Equity investments  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -   

Transfer to Retained Earnings  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -   

Dividend  -     -     -     -     -     -     (26.20)  -     (26.20)

Adjustment on account of composite   -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -   
scheme of arrangement*

          

As At 31 March 2025  1,558.91   (45.44)  (1,440.32)  33.62   32.50   (19.03)  3,533.97   1.27   3,655.48 

Capital Reserve 
(Amalgamation 

adjustment 
deficit account)

Capital 
Reserve

Capital 
Reserve on 
Demerger

Securities 
Premium

Statutory 
Reserve 

Fund

Amalgamation 
Adjustment 

Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Equity 
Instruments 
through OCI

TotalParticulars

Reserves and Surplus
Items of Other 

Comprehensive 
Income

b. Other Equity

a. Equity Share Capital

Equity Shares of ` 10 each Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid          

Balance at the beginning of the reporting year  29.11   29.11 

Change in Equity Share Capital to prior errors - -

Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 29.11  29.11 

Change in Equity Share Capital during the year -    -          

Balance at the end of the reporting year  29.11   29.11 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025Particulars

*Refer note 56          

The accompanying notes 1 to 64 are an integral part of the Standalone nancial statements.          
          
In terms of our report attached 

For Singhi & Co.  
Chartered Accountants  
FRN.: 302049E  

Shrenik Mehta  
Partner  
Membership No.: 063769   

Place: Kolkata  
Date: 28 May 2025  

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

S. C. Agarwalla
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00088384

Subodh Agarwalla
Whole-time Director & CEO

DIN: 00339855

Sudhanshu Agarwalla
President & CFO

Rajesh K. Shah
Company Secretary
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Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2025

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES       

     Profit Before Tax after Exceptional Items  858.47   449.07 

     Adjusted for :       

     Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 14.90   15.17 

     Finance Cost 20.91   1.55 

     Interest Income  (23.14)  (53.77)

     Irrecoverable Balances Written Off 0.33   0.21 

     Liability no Longer Required Written Back (2.58)  (10.91)

     Impairment Allowance for Investment -     6.41 

     Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts (0.36)  6.43 

     Net Gain on Investment measured at Fair value through Prot & Loss (832.01)  (177.32)

     Unrealised Forex Loss / (Gain) (2.74)  0.25 

     Net Fair value Loss/ (Gain) on Forward Contracts (0.32)  0.64 

     Deferred Revenue Income (0.03)  (0.03)

     Dividend Received  (45.63)  (9.13)

     Net Gain realised on Sale of Investments 184.21   (94.48)

     Loss/(Gain) on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment & Capital work in Progress (0.36)  (1.43)

  (686.82)  (316.41)

     Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 171.65   132.66 

     Adjusted for Increase or Decrease in Operating Assets:       

     Decrease / (Increase) Trade Receivables  242.18   29.02 

     Decrease / (Increase) in  Inventories  (248.38)  (67.23)

     Decrease / (Increase) in Other Current Assets (24.77)  10.67 

     Decrease / (Increase) in Other Current Financial  Assets 413.63   (437.46)

     Decrease / (Increase) in Other Non Current Assets (3.07)  (0.23)

     Decrease / (Increase) in Other Non Current Financial Assets (0.00)  (4.83)

     Adjusted for Increase or Decrease in Operating Assets:       

     Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payable 30.85   (47.26)

     Increase / (Decrease) in Current Financial Liabilities 2.37   19.72 

     Increase / (Decrease) in Current  Liabilities 2.33   (1.25)

     Increase / (Decrease) in Provision 0.38   0.34 

  415.52   (498.51)

     Cash Generated from Operations   587.17   (365.85)

     Direct Tax Paid (Net of Refunds) 55.51   74.09 

     NET CASH GENERATED / (USED) IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES   (A)  531.66   (439.94)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES        

    Expenditure on Property Plant and Equipments & Capital Work In progress (5.74)  (10.33)

    Proceeds from Sale of Property Plant and Equipments & Capital Work In progress 0.64   3.79 

    Purchase of Investment in Subsidiaries (81.42)  (20.00)

    Purchase of Current Investments (4,528.42)  (4,761.03)

    Sale proceeds from Current Investments 4,264.72   4,164.89 

    Purchase of Non-Current Investments (660.59)  (54.96)

    Sale proceeds from Non-Current Investments 301.14   11.37 

    Short Term Loan Given (389.22)  47.50 

    Long Term Loan Given (17.82)  -   

    Dividend Received 45.63   9.13 

    Interest  Received 21.22   53.28 

    Net Investments in Bank Deposits (6.24)  972.72 

    NET CASH GENERATED / (USED) IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES  (B) (1,056.10)  416.36 

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025Particulars 

(` In Cr.)
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Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2025

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES        

 Interest Paid  (19.01)  (1.55)

     Dividend Paid  (26.20)  (17.47)

     Proceeds  from short term Borrowings   550.42   5.50 

     Proceeds  from Long term Borrowings  -     -   

     Payment of Lease Obligations  (0.10)  (0.09)

    NET CASH GENERATED / (USED) IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES    (C)  505.11  (13.61)

    Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  (19.33)  (37.19)

    Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year  35.69   72.88 

    Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year  16.36   35.69 

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025Particulars

(` In Cr.)

Notes:      
1 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard.     
2 Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year consist of:     

Cash on Hand 0.11   0.14 

Cheques in Hand -     0.05 

Balance with Banks      

- In Current Accounts 7.13   5.55 

- Debit Balances in Cash Credit Accounts 9.12   29.95 

   16.36   35.69 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025Cash and Cash Equivalents 

3. Ind AS 7 Cash Flow Statements requires the entities to provide disclosures that enable users of nancial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from nancial 
activities, including both changes arising from cash ows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the Balance 
Sheet for liabilities arising from nancing activities, to meet the disclosures requirement. This amendment has become effective from 1 April 2017 and the required disclosure is 
made below. There is no other impact on the nancial statements due to this amendment.

Borrowings - Current 13.90   550.42   (2.46)  20.59   (19.01)  561.86 

Lease Liabilities 3.31   (0.41)  -     0.32   -     3.22 

As at  31 March 2025Interest PaidParticulars As at 31 March 2024 Cash Inflow / (Outflow) Interest ExpensesForeign Exchange Movement

Borrowings - Current  8.41   5.50   -     0.47   (0.48)  13.90 

Lease Liabilities  3.40   (0.41)  -     0.32   -     3.31 

As at  31 March 2024Interest PaidParticulars As at 31 March 2023 Cash Inflow / (Outflow) Interest ExpensesForeign Exchange Movement

This is the Cash Flow statement referred to in our report of even date. 

The accompanying notes 1 to 64 are an integral part of the Standalone nancial statements. 

In terms of our report attached 

For Singhi & Co.  
Chartered Accountants  
FRN.: 302049E  

Shrenik Mehta  
Partner  
Membership No.: 063769   

Place: Kolkata  
Date: 28 May 2025  

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

S. C. Agarwalla
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00088384

Subodh Agarwalla
Whole-time Director & CEO

DIN: 00339855

Sudhanshu Agarwalla
President & CFO

Rajesh K. Shah
Company Secretary
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

1. Corporate Informa�on

2. Statement of compliance and basis of prepara�on of Financial 
Statements

a. Statement of Compliance

b. Basis of Prepara�on

c. Func�onal Currency and Presenta�on Currency
`

d. Current and Non-Current Classifica�on 

 'Presenta�on of Financial Statements'

e. Applica�on of New Accoun�ng Pronouncements

3. Summary of Material Accoun�ng Policies

a. Property, Plant and Equipments
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b. Deprecia�on

c. Leases

 As a Lessee

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
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 Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

d. Intangible Assets and Amor�za�on

Intangible assets Amortization Method Used

Mining rights Over the period of respective mining agreement

Software Amortized on a straight-line basis over the useful life.

e. Impairment of Non- Financial Assets

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

f. Government Grants and Subsidies

g. Foreign Currency Transla�on

h. Financial Instruments

(i) Financial Assets 

Recogni�on and Ini�al Measurement

Subsequent Measurement

Financial assets at Amor�zed Cost:
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Financial assets at FVOCI:

Financial assets at FVTPL:

Equity Instruments:

Financial Assets -derecogni�on

Impairment of Financial Assets

(ii) Financial Liabili�es
Recogni�on And Ini�al Measurement

Subsequent Measurement

Financial liabili�es at FVTPL 
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

 Financial liabili�es at amor�sed cost (Borrowings and Trade and 
Other payables)

Financial Liabili�es- derecogni�on

Equity Instruments

Offse�ng Financial Instruments

(iii) Deriva�ve Financial Instruments

j. Revenue Recogni�on

(i) Revenue from Opera�on
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

For Certain Contracts

a. Sale of Goods

b. Revenue Recogni�on of Real Estate segment

c.  Other Opera�ng Revenue

(ii)  Other Income

k. Employee Benefits 
a) Short-Term Benefits 

b) Defined Contribu�on Plans

c) Defined Benefit Plans
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

d) Compensated absences

l. Taxa�on 

a) Current Tax

b) Deferred Tax

m. Borrowing Costs

n. Cash and Cash Equivalents
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

o. Cash Flow Statement

p. Provisions, Con�ngent Liabili�es and Con�ngent Assets
Provisions

Con�ngent Liabili�es

Con�ngent Assets

q. Earnings per share

r. Dividends

s. Segment Repor�ng

t. Excep�onal items

u.  Key Accoun�ng Es�mates and Judgments
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
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Freehold 
Land

Factory 
Building

Administrative 
and Other 
Building

Plant and 
Machinery

Furniture 
and 

Fixture

Office 
Equipment

Vehicle Computers TotalParticulars

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year period ended 31 March 2025
(` In Cr.)

Gross Carrying Value         

Balance at the beginning of the reporting year  1.78   11.19   16.09   192.38   0.83   0.55   7.30   1.24   231.36 

Additions  -     -     5.37   2.66   0.11   0.10   0.41   0.24   8.89 

Deletion/Adjustments  -     -     -     0.06   -     -     0.22   -     0.28 

As At 31 March 2024  1.78   11.19   21.46   194.98   0.94   0.65   7.49   1.48   239.97 

Additions  -     -     0.04   5.69   0.01   0.09   0.29   0.03   6.15 

Deletion/Adjustments  -     -     -     0.47   -     -     0.17   -     0.64 

As At 31 March 2025  1.78   11.19   21.50   200.20   0.95   0.74   7.61   1.51   245.48 

         

Accumulated Depreciation         

Balance at the beginning of the reporting year  -     5.13   5.46   83.80   0.69   0.36   2.85   0.90   99.19 

Depreciation charged during the year  -     0.59   0.81   11.69   0.02   0.04   0.77   0.23   14.15 

Deletion/Adjustments  -     -     -     0.04   -     -     0.15   -     0.19 

As At 31 March 2024  -     5.72   6.27   95.45   0.71   0.40   3.47   1.13   113.15 

Depreciation charged during the year  -     0.58   0.87   11.44   0.03   0.06   0.76   0.15   13.89 

Deletion/Adjustments  -     -     -     0.27   -     -     0.09   -     0.36 

As At 31 March 2025  -     6.30   7.14   106.62   0.74   0.46   4.14   1.28   126.68 

         

Net Carrying Value         

As At 31 March 2025  1.78   4.89   14.36   93.58   0.21   0.28   3.47   0.23   118.80 

As At 31 March 2024  1.78   5.47   15.19   99.53   0.23   0.25   4.02   0.35   126.82 

(i) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant & Equipment during the Financial Year 2024-25.         

(ii) As at 31 March 2025, Property, Plant and Equipment with net carrying amount of ̀  118.80 Cr. (31 March 2024: ̀  126.82 Cr. ) are subject to rst charge to secure borrowings (refer note 28).         

(iii) For contractual commitment with respect to Property, Plant and Equipment, refer note 55.         

(iv) No indicator of impairment were identied during the current year, hence Property, Plant and Equipment including Capital work-in-Progress were not tested for impairment.         

(v) The Title deeds of the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name of 
the Company, except for the following which are not held in the name of the Company:         

Description of property Gross carrying 
value (` in Cr.)

Held in the name of
Whether promoter, 

director or their 
relative or employee

Period held
indicate range, 

where appropriate

Reason for not being held in the name of 
the Company. Also indicate if in dispute

Free Hold Land 1.38  Anjaney Alloys Limited ( 
Former subsidiary of 

Maithan Alloys Limited )

No Since 2016 to 
till date

The title of asset transferred pursuant to the 
Scheme of Amalgamation in the year 2016 
and the Company is in process of transferring 
the title in the name of the Company.

As at 1 April 2023   1.52 

Add: Expenditure during construction for Plant and Machinery   1.43 

Less : Capitalised during the year   0.06 

Less : Sale during the year   2.21 

As At 31 March 2024   0.68 

Add: Expenditure during construction for Plant and Machinery   3.02 

Less : Capitalised during the year   3.43 

Less : Sale during the year   -   

As At 31 March 2025   0.27 

AmountParticulars

(5)  Capital work in progress

(4) Property, Plant and Equipment
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(` In Cr.)

(a) Ageing Analysis of Capital work in progress as on 31 March 2025. 

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

1. Projects in progress -  0.27   -     -     0.27 

2. Projects temporarily suspended  -     -     -     -     -   

TOTAL  -     0.27   -     -     0.27 

(b) Ageing Analysis of Capital work in progress as on 31st March, 2024.

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

1. Projects in progress  0.68   -     -     -     0.68 

2. Projects temporarily suspended  -     -     -     -     -   

TOTAL  0.68   -     -     -     0.68 

Note:
(I) There is no Project/ Asset where actual cost of an asset/project has already exceeded the estimated cost as per original plan or actual timelines for completion of an asset/project 

have exceeded the estimated timelines as per original plan.     
     

(6) Intangible Assets

Particulars Software Mining Rights Total

Gross Carrying Value    

Balance at the beginning of the reporting year  0.47   0.42   0.89 

Additions  -     -     -   

Deduction/Adjustment  -     -     -   

As At 31 March 2024  0.47   0.42   0.89 

Additions  -     -     -   

Deduction/Adjustment  -     -     -   

As At 31 March 2025  0.47   0.42   0.89 

    

Amortisation and Impairment    

Balance at the beginning of the reporting year  0.45   0.06   0.51 

Depreciation charged during the year  0.01   0.02   0.03 

Deduction/Adjustment  -     -     -   

As At 31 March 2024  0.46   0.08   0.54 

Depreciation charged during the year  0.01   0.02   0.03 

Deduction/Adjustment  -     -     -   

As At 31 March 2025  0.47   0.10   0.57 

    

Net Carrying Value    

As At 31 March 2025  0.00   0.32   0.32 

As At 31 March 2024  0.01   0.34   0.35 

Note:    
(i) Intangible assets under development - Nil    
(ii) No indicator of impairment were identied during the current year, hence intangible assets were not tested for impairment.    
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(` In Cr.)

(7) Right of Use Asset

The changes in the carrying value of Right of Use (ROU) assets are as follows:

Gross Carrying Value    

Balance at the beginning of the reporting year  22.41   22.41 

Additions  -     -   

Deletion/ Adjustments  -     -   

Balance at the end of the reporting year  22.41   22.41 

    

Accumulated Depreciation    

Balance at the beginning of the reporting year  4.95   3.96 

Depreciation charged during the year  0.98   0.99 

Deletion/Adjustments  -     -   

Balance at the end of the reporting year  5.93   4.95 

Net Carrying Value  16.48   17.46 

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025
Particulars

 ROU_ Land  

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortization expense in the Statement of Prot and Loss.     

(i) Lease payments not included in measurement of lease liability    
The expense relating to payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability is as follows:    

Short-term leases  0.42   0.45 

Leases of low value assets -     -   

Variable lease payments -     -   

Particulars

(ii) Total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 March 2025 was ̀  0.41 Cr. (31 March 2024 : ̀  0.41 Cr.)    
    
(iii) Maturity of lease liabilities    

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities of non-cancellable contractual commitments as on an undiscounted 
basis.    

Not later than 1 year  0.41   0.41 

Later than 1 year not later than 5 years  2.04   2.04 

Later than 5 years  3.86   4.27 

 Total   6.31   6.72 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025
Particulars

Lease payments

The Company does not face a signicant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufcient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as 
and when they fall due.

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(` In Cr.)

 (iv) The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities is as follows:

Non-current lease liabilities  3.12   3.22 

Current lease liabilities  0.10   0.09 

Total   3.22   3.31 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025Particulars

(v) The following are the amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss:

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets  0.98   0.99 

Interest expense on lease liabilities  0.32   0.32 

Rent Expenses  0.42   0.45 

Total  1.72   1.76 

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025Particulars

(vi) Information about extension and termination options for the FY ended on 31 March 2025.

Number of leases  8

Range of remaining term (in years)  1-20

Average remaining lease term (in years)  12

Number of leases with extension option   -   

Number of leases with termination option   -   

Leasehold LandParticulars

(vii) Disclosure on revaluation of Right of use Assets 
The Company has not revalued it’s Right of use assets  during the reporting period. 
    
(viii) The movement in lease liabilities is as follows:

(ix) The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to these leases is 9.5%. 

Balance at the beginning  3.31   3.40 

Addition  -     -   

Cancellation  -     -   

Interest expense during the period  0.32   0.32 

Payment of lease liabilities  0.41   0.41 

Balance at the year end  3.22   3.31 

Current  0.10   0.09 

Non-Current  3.12   3.22 

2023-242024-25Particulars
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(` In Cr.)

Investment in Unquoted Equity Shares (fully paid up)         

Anjaney Minerals Limited  10.00   1,10,00,000   1,10,00,000   10.62   10.62 

Salanpur Sinters Private Limited  10.00   60,40,000   60,40,000   6.03   6.03 

Maithan Ferrous Private Limited  10.00   40,00,000   40,00,000   4.00   4.00 

Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Limited  10.00   10,00,000   10,00,000   1.00   1.00 

Ramagiri Renewable Energy Limited  10.00   1,72,97,000   1,72,97,000   9.86   9.86 

AXL-Exploration Private Limited  100.00   3,49,380   3,49,380   6.56   6.56 

Less Impairment Loss of Investment in AXL-Exploration Pvt. Ltd.     (6.41)  (6.41)

Dadhichi Rail And Defence Operations Limited  10.00   1,00,000   -     0.10   -   

Eloise Builders & Constructions Private Limited  10.00   10,000   -     73.00   -   

         

Investment in Unquoted 1% Non-Cummulative,
Non-Convertible Preference Share (Equity Component)         

Maithan Ferrous Private Limited  10.00   6,00,00,000   5,20,00,000   33.00   28.48 

         

Investments in Subsidiaries measured at PL (FVTPL)         

         

Investment in Unquoted  1% Non-Cummulative,
Non-Convertible Preference Share (Debt Component)         

Maithan Ferrous Private Limited  10.00   6,00,00,000   5,20,00,000   29.79   23.52 

     167.55   83.66 

(i) Aggregate Amount of Unquoted Investments     167.55   83.66 

 Aggregate amount of Impairment in value of Investment     6.41   6.41 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(8) Investment in subsidiaries

Investments in Subsidiaries measured at Cost
Face Value

(`)
No. of Shares

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

(ii) During the Year, the Company had entered into a Shares Purchase Agreement (SPA) with existing shareholders of Eloise Builders & Constructions Private Limited (EBCPL), situated 
in New Delhi for the acquisition of 100% of the share capital. On completion of the condition precedent to SPA, EBCPL has become wholly owned subsidiary of the Company w.e.f. 
25 February 2025. The acquisition was carried out for a purchase consideration of ` 73.00 Cr.Based on guidance on denition of business under lnd AS 103, Management has 
classied the above acquisitions as asset acquisitions.

(iii) During the year, The Board of Directors of the company in its meeting held on 28 May 2025 have approved a Scheme of Merger by Absorption ('Scheme') of lmpex Metal & Ferro 
Alloys Limited ('Impex') and Maithan Alloys Limited (MAL) under the provisions of Section 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.The Scheme 
provides for the merger of Impex into MAL. The Scheme is conditional upon and subject to necessary statutory and regulatory applications and approvals under applicable laws, 
including the jurisdictional National Company Law Tribunal.        

(iv) During the Year, Dadhichi Rail And Defence Operations Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary having its registered ofce at Kolkata in the State of West Bengal has been incorporated 
on 20 July 2024 with the objects to manufacture specialized parts for railway, tramway, locomotives or of rolling stock and to manufacture and deal in goods and products used in 
defence sector & also engaged in Real Estate Business.        

(v) During the Year, the Company has made investment of ̀  8 Cr. in the 1% Non-Cummulative, Non-Convertible Preference Share (NCPS) of ̀  10/- each of Maithan Ferrous Private 
Limited ("Subsidiary") which are redeemable at par at any time at the option of the Maithan Ferrous Private Limited, but not later than ten years from the date of allotment i.e. 16 
April 2024. The NCPS shall carry the voting right as prescribed under the provision of Companies Act, 2013.        

(vi) During the Year, The company has entered into a partnership in Maiuni Ventures LLP wherein it holds a 99.99% share. As at 31 March 2025, no capital contribution or other 
payment has been made by the company towards Maiuni Ventures LLP.        

(vii) During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Company had made investment of ` 20 Cr. in the 1% Non-Cummulative, Non-Convertible Preference Share (NCPS) of ` 10/- each of 
Maithan Ferrous Private Limited ("Subsidiary") which are redeemable at par at any time at the option of the Maithan Ferrous Private Limited, but not later than ten years from the 
date of allotment i.e. 8 January 2024. The NCPS shall carry the voting right as prescribed under the provision of Companies Act, 2013.        

(viii) During the Financial Year 2023-24, the investment in AXL-Exploration Private Limited, has been tested for impairment by the management and accordingly an amount of Rs. 6.41 
Cr. had been provided for as impairment and is part of other expenses.        

(ix)  During the Financial Year 2023-24, Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Limited ("wholly owned subsidiary of Maithan Alloys Limited") had closedown its production w.e.f. 1 May 2023 due 
to a steep increase in power tariff. Based on the detailed assessment, the fair value less costs to sell is higher than the carrying amount and hence there is no impairment at the 
reporting date.        

(x) The Company had entered into a Shares Purchase Agreement (SPA) with existing shareholders of Goldtree Impex Private Limited, situated in the state of West Bengal for the 
acquisition of 80% of the share capital . On completion of the condition precedent to SPA,  Goldtree Impex Private Limited has became subsidiary of the Company w.e.f. 12 May 
2025 i.e. after the reporting period but before the approval of the Financial Statements.        

(Refer Note 50 for information about fair value measurement and Note 48 for credit risk and market risk of investments)         
(Refer Note 53 for Related party transactions).         

Maithan Alloys Annual Report 2024-25 135



Advance Tax and TDS Receivables (Net of Provisions)  11.06   12.66 

   11.06   12.66 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(12)  Non-Current Tax Asset (Net)

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(` In Cr.)

Investment in Government Securi�es (Quoted)         

7.30% GOI2053 Bond 100.00    40,00,000   -     38.96 

Investments measured through OCI (FVOCI)         

Investment in Unquoted Equity Shares (fully paid up)         

Ideal Centre Services (P) Ltd. 10.00   1,500   1,500   0.00   0.00 

Investments measured through PL (FVTPL)         

Share in Partnership Firm LLP         

Belved Property LLP (Share 18.15%) -     -     -     0.00   0.00 

Investment in Unquoted equity shares (fully paid up)         

National Stock Exchange of India Limited 10.00   57,99,000   50,000   931.90   20.68 

Bgauss Auto Private Limited 10.00   3,34,543   -     19.47   -   

Veira Electronics Private Limited 10.00   73,970   -     5.09   -   

Investments in Alternate Investment Fund         

ABAKKUS FOUR2EIGHT OPPORTUNITIES FUND -     1,99,990   -     19.60   -   

OISTER INDIA SCHEME V -     1,000   -     10.28   -   

Bharat Value Fund - AIF (Series iii) -     200   -     2.01   -   

Bharat Value Fund  -     9,000   -     87.66   -   

     1,076.01   59.64 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(9)  Non-Current Investments

Investments measured at Amortized Cost
Face Value

(`)
No. of Shares / Bonds

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

(I) Aggregate Cost of Quoted Investments    122.00   38.96 

 Market Value of Quoted Investments    119.55   38.96 

 Aggregate Amount of Unquoted Investments    956.46   20.68 

 Aggregate amount of Impairment in value of Investment    -     -   

Unsecured, Considered Good         

Security Deposits  37.39   37.39 

Bank Deposit with banks with original maturity of more than 12 months 2.49   0.35 

   39.88   37.74 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(11)  Other Non-Current Financial Assets

Unsecured, Considered Good         

Loan to Subsidiary company 17.82   -   

   17.82   -   

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(10)  Loans - Non Current

Note      
(I) The company has given unsecured loan to subsidiaries at interest rate of 9.25 % for business purpose repayable after 3 years.      
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(` In Cr.)

Note         
(i) Inventories have been hypothecated as security against certain bank borrowings of the Company except for Land Bank (Refer note 28 for details).          
(ii) During the Year, the Company acquired 92 Bighas of Land in the Union Territory of New Delhi for the purpose of real estate business.          

(Valued at Lower of Cost or Net Realisable Value as per Ind AS 2         

Raw Materials  257.55   175.53 

Raw Materials in Transit -     0.77 

Work - In - Progress  1.60   1.47 

Finished Goods   53.38   79.34 

Finished Goods in Transit  74.76   67.42 

Stock-in-Trade 2.37   2.19 

Stock-in-Trade in Transit  61.02   -   

Slag and Waste 1.61   1.31 

Stores and Spares Parts  10.81   11.64 

Land Bank  124.94   -   

   588.04   339.67 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(14)  Inventories

Unsecured, Considered Good         

Capital Advances 4.55   1.46 

Prepaid Expenses 0.10   0.12 

  4.65   1.58 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(13)  Other Non-Current Assets

Investments in Quoted Equity Share - FVTPL 

Balmer Lawrie & Co. Limited -     1,73,400   -     4.13 

Bank of Baroda -     12,16,100   -     32.11 

Bank of India -     3,63,500   -     4.98 

Bharat Dynamics Limited 2,13,412   2,500   27.35   0.44 

Bharat Electronics Limited 56,02,000   10,72,000   168.80   21.60 

Canara Bank 14,84,700   5,93,083   13.21   34.46 

CARE Ratings Limited 1,84,032   1,84,032   20.35   20.60 

CIE Automotive India Limited -     1,03,100   -     4.76 

Cochin Shipyard Limited -     57,000   -     4.97 

DCB Bank Limited -     12,39,156   -     14.80 

EID Parry India Limited 3,08,500   3,08,500   24.24   16.83 

Engineers India Limited 14,30,013   14,30,013   22.96   28.88 

Escorts Kubota Limited 34,650   34,650   11.26   9.62 

Exide Industries Limited 15,000   15,000   0.54   0.46 

Gail (India) Limited 75,51,700   38,34,000   138.23   69.41 

Gujarat Alkalies & Chemicals Limited -     21,717   -     1.46 

HDFC Bank Limited -     10,00,300   -     144.83 

Hindustan Aeronautics Limited 4,65,778   66,678   194.58   22.18 

Housing & Urban Development Corporation Limited -     66,41,000   -     124.35 

ICICI Bank Limited -     2,01,000   -     21.98 

ICICI Lombard General Insurance Co. Limited -     32,860   -     5.54 

ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Co. Limited -     3,86,500   -     23.52 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(15)  Current Investments As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

No. of Shares
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Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited -     9,03,500   -     15.21 

Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited- Right Issue -     8,30,663   -     5.63 

Indian Bank -     2,30,500   -     12.00 

Ircon International Limited -     2,10,800   -     4.63 

JK Cement Limited 11,470   11,470   5.66   4.68 

Jubilant Pharmova Limited 1,435   3,12,166   0.13   17.79 

Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited 2,585   2,585   0.12   0.17 

KPIT Technologies Limited 2,500   2,500   0.33   0.37 

Life Insurance Corporation of India -     1,95,937   -     17.95 

Mahanagar Gas Limited 32,670   32,670   4.53   4.46 

Mishra Dhatu Nigam Limited -     94,800   -     3.74 

Natco Pharma Limited -     5,77,140   -     54.95 

NlC India Limited -     1,90,700   -     4.35 

Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited -     10,22,850   -     27.42 

Panama Petrochem Limited 4,45,000   4,45,000   16.94   14.80 

PCBL Limited 17,23,900   7,55,400   72.98   20.22 

Petronet LNG Limited -     92,950   -     2.45 

Poly Medicure Limited 5,000   2,500   1.12   0.40 

Poonawalla Fincorp Limited -     4,48,300   -     20.87 

Power Finance Corporation Limited 49,97,842   4,41,600   207.04   17.23 

Rail Vikas Nigam Limited -     6,62,230   -     16.75 

Railtel Corporation of India Limited -     4,53,100   -     16.48 

REC Limited 3,97,000   3,97,000   23.69   17.90 

Reliance Industries Limited -     76,850   -     22.84 

RITES Limited 15,54,606   13,70,943   34.73   91.00 

Shalby Limited -     6,77,926   -     16.21 

Shree Digvijay Cement Co. Limited 50,000   50,000   0.34   0.49 

SKF India Limited -     10,600   -     4.41 

Spandana Sphoorty Financial Limited -     47,610   -     4.00 

State Bank of India 13,22,817   16,32,900   102.06   122.85 

Steel Strips Wheels Limited 1,78,700   1,78,700   3.19   3.95 

Tata Consultancy Services Limited 1,400   4,800   0.50   1.86 

Union Bank of India -     22,04,800   -     33.84 

Varun Beverages Limited 25,000   3,000   1.35   0.42 

Vedanta Limited 3,40,500   20,000   15.78   0.54 

Bank Of Maharashtra 1,45,000   -     0.67   -   

Adani Enterprises Limited 5,000   -     1.16   -   

Adani Ports & Special Economic Zone Limited 7,500   -     0.89   -   

KCP Limited 12,54,855   -     25.26   -   

NTPC Limited 23,000   -     0.82   -   

The Ramco Cement Limited 1,91,932   -     17.21   -   

Adani Energy Solutions Limited 49,500   -     4.32   -   

Asian Granito India Limited 18,97,583   -     8.18   -   

Astra Microwave Products Limited  2,90,500   -     19.53   -   

Azad Engineering Limited 5,000   -     0.68   -   

BLS International Services Ltd. 25,000   -     1.00   -   

Computer Age Management Services Limited 3,000   -     1.12   -   

Central Depository Services (India) Limited 10,000   -     1.22   -   

Eveready Industries India Limited 7,09,098   -     21.50   -   

Greenply Industries Limited 3,09,773   -     8.87   -   

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(15)  Current Investments As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

No. of Shares

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(` In Cr.)
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(` In Cr.)

Guc Biosciences Limited 5,00,220   -     16.82   -   

INOX India Limited 5,000   -     0.50   -   

Jindal Saw Limited 3,46,000   -     9.35   -   

Jindal Stainless Limited 10,000   -     0.58   -   

Orient Paper & Industries Limited 17,65,640   -     4.03   -   

Ramkrishna Forgings Limited 2,15,300   -     16.65   -   

RPSG Ventures Limited 1,29,658   -     10.97   -   

S H Kelkar & Company  Limited 8,712   -     0.15   -   

Sammaan Capital Limited 15,69,775   -     16.81   -   

Sansera Engineering Limited 5,000   -     0.61   -   

Solar Industries India Limited  9,256   -     10.41   -   

SPICEJET LTD 14,03,542   -     6.22   -   

Star Health & Allied Insurance  Company Limited 81,000   -     2.89   -   

The New India Assurance Company Limited 88   -     0.00   -   

VST Industries Limited 1,12,336   -     2.96   -   

Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited 69,48,000   -     68.33   -   

Amara Raja Energy & Mobility Limited 1,650   -     0.17   -   

Apar Industries Limited 1,000   -     0.55   -   

NBCC (India) Limited 18,86,250   -     15.45   -   

NHPC Limited 86,000   -     0.71   -   

ABB India Limited  1,170   -     0.65   -   

Bharti Airtel Limited 1,23,000   -     21.32   -   

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 3,86,000   -     3.47   -   

Healthcare Global Enterprises Limited 2,92,747   -     15.87   -   

KEI Industries Limited  2,500   -     0.72   -   

Larsen & Toubro Limited 1,375   -     0.48   -   

Nuvama Wealth Management Limited 1,13,212   -     68.78   -   

Techno Electric & Engineering Company Limited  5,000   -     0.50   -   

Tega Industries Limited 6,000   -     0.89   -   

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 65,000   -     0.83   -   

VRL Logistics Limited 65,400   -     3.09   -   

  

PMS

Ambit Investment Advisors Private Limited -     -     -     5.62 

Buoyant Capital Pvt. Limited - Opportunities scheme -     -     10.39   8.68 

Carnelian Asset Management & Advisors Private Limited -     -     8.07   6.54 

ICICI Prudential Asset Management Company Limited - PIPE Strategy -     -     10.53   9.92 

Stallion Asset Private Limited -     -     87.03   47.80 

Uni Capital Private Limited -     -     10.03   8.24 

Vallum Capital Advisors Private Limited -     -     -     5.68 

SBI Funds Management Limited -     -     9.70   9.53 

360 ONE ND- PMS -     -     6.91   -   

Buoyant Capital Pvt. Limited -     -     18.69   -   

Carnelian Asset Management & Advisors Private Limited - Bespoke -     -     26.46   -   

Dynamic Equities Pvt. Ltd. - Small Cap -     -     0.40   -   

ICICI Prudential Asset Management Company Limited - Contra Strategy -     -     18.33   -   

Incred Asset Management Pvt Ltd -     -     35.34   -   

Motilal Oswal Wealth Management Limited -     -     20.47   -   

Sohum Asset Managers Private Limited -     -     11.04   -   

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(15)  Current Investments As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

No. of Shares
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(` In Cr.)

Investments in Mutual Funds - FVTPL (Quoted)         

Quant Mid Cap Fund (OF-DG) -     4,96,105.63   -     11.57 

SBI Magnum Ultra Short Duration Fund Direct Growth -     1,33,715.85   -     74.11 

SBI Liquid Fund Direct Growth -     1,08,630.69   -     41.05 

Axis Fixed Term Plan 1,99,99,000.00   1,99,99,000.00   23.23   21.55 

         

Investments in Alternate Investment Fund - FVTPL (Quoted)         

IIFL Commercial Yield Fund 9,58,18,281.37   9,58,18,281.37   109.77   106.12 

Ace Lansdowne India Large Cap Fund -     14,890.65   -     2.02 

IKIGAI EMERGING EQUITY FUND - CLASS B2 9,78,699.83   -     8.69   -   

VQ FASTERCAP FUND 40,55,061   -     37.54   -   

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(15)  Current Investments As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

No. of Units

Investments in Debenture - FVTPL (Quoted)

IIFL Home Finance Ltd Series C12 BR 10,00,000   -     148.00   -     23.30 

IIFL Home Finance Ltd Series C14 BR  10,00,000   -     2.00   -     0.33 

Mindspace Business Parks Reit SR 2 BR  10,00,000   -     845.00   -     102.69 

Piramal Enterprises Limited BR  10,00,000   -     225.00   -     26.18 

     1,977.82   1,725.70 

No. of Debentures
Face Value

(`)

(i) Aggregate Cost of Quoted Investments     2,013.88   1,550.24 

 Market Value of Quoted Investments     1,977.82   1,725.70 

Unsecured, Considered Good         

Trade Receivables  145.40   387.61 

Trade Receivables- which have credit impaired  11.89  12.25 

   157.29   399.86 

Less: Allowance for Trade Receivables which have credit impaired  11.89  12.25 

  145.40   387.61 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(16)  Trade Receivables

Note:          

(i)  In determining allowances for credit losses of trade receivables, the Company has used the practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance based on a 
provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is 
based on ageing of the receivables and rates used in the provision matrix        

(ii)   Trade Receivables have been hypothecated as security against bank borrowings of the Company (Refer note 28).         

(iii)   There are no debts due by directors or other ofcers of the Company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person or debts due by rms or private companies 
respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or a member.         

(iv)   The Company considers its maximum exposure to credit risk with respect to customers as at 31 March 2025 to be  ̀  145.40 Cr. (31 March 2024: ̀  387.61 Cr.), which is the carrying 
value of trade receivables after allowance for credit loss         

(v)  The Company exposure to customer is diversied and only four customers contribute more than 10% of the outstanding receivable for an amount  ̀  98.46 Cr. as at 31 March 2025 
(three customers contribute more than 10% of the outstanding receivable for an amount  ̀  239.93 Cr. as at 31 March 2024)        

 ( Refer Note 48 for credit risk of trade receivables.) 
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(vi) Ageing of Outstanding Trade Receivable and Credit Risk as on 31 March 2025 arising there from due date of payment

UnbilledNot dueParticulars Less than
6 months

6 months -
1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than

3 years Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables –considered good 11.50   113.87   7.38   6.88   0.03   5.74   -     145.40 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -   
 signicant increase in credit risk 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables –credit impaired  -     0.01   0.28   0.03   0.01   5.74   -     6.07 

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables–considered good  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -   

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which have  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -   
 signicant increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired -     -     -     -     -     5.82   -     5.82 

Total 11.50   113.88   7.66   6.91   0.04   17.30   -     157.29 

Less: Allowance for credit impaired  -     0.01   0.28   0.03   0.01   11.56   -     11.89 

Total Trade Receivable 11.50   113.87   7.38   6.88   0.03   5.74   -     145.40 

(vii) Ageing of Outstanding Trade Receivable and Credit Risk as on 31 March 2024 arising there from due date of payment

UnbilledNot dueParticulars Less than
6 months

6 months -
1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than

3 years Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables –considered good   216.83   151.01   10.03   2.74   1.70   5.30   -     387.61 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables –  -     -     -     -     -     -   -     - 
 which have signicant increase in credit risk 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables –credit impaired  -     0.18     0.46     0.25     0.24     5.29     -     6.42   

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables–considered good -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -   

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables –  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -   
 which have signicant increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired -     -     -     -     -     5.83     -     5.83   

Total 216.83   151.19   10.49   2.99   1.94   16.42   -     399.86 

Less: Allowance for credit impaired -     0.18   0.46   0.25   0.24   11.12   -     12.25 

Total Trade Receivable 216.83   151.01   10.03   2.74   1.70   5.30   -     387.61 

Balance at the beginning of the year  12.25   5.83 

Add/(less): Expected credit loss provided / (reversed)  (0.36)  6.42 

Balance at the end of the year   11.89   12.25 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025Particulars

Cash on Hand 0.11   0.14 

Cheques in Hand -     0.05 

Balance with Banks 

- In Current Accounts 7.13   5.55 

- Debit Balances in Cash Credit Accounts 9.12   29.95 

   16.36   35.69 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(17)  Cash and Cash Equivalents

(i) Cheques in hand are cleared subsequent to the year end.          

(ii) There are no restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalent as at the end of reporting period and prior period.           

(viii)  Movement in the allowance for expected credit losses   
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Bank Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months and up to 12  months  23.13   30.28 

Bank Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months and upto 12 months (as margin money) 12.36   1.11 

Earmarked Unpaid Dividend Accounts 0.08   0.08 

   35.57   31.47 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(18)  Other Bank Balances (other than note 17 above)

Loans to Related Parties (Refer Note 53)         

Unsecured, Considered Good         

Loans to Subsidiary Companies  409.94   23.21 

Unsecured, Considered good         

Loans to Body Corporate  5.00   2.51 

   414.94   25.72 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(19)  Loans - Current

(i) The company has given loan to subsidiaries at interest rate of 9.25 % and to Body Corporate at interest rate of 10 % for business purpose.         

(ii) The Company has not given any advances to directors or other ofcers of the Company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other persons or advances to rms or private 
companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or a member.          

(iii) Refer Note 58 for Disclosure as per Regulation 34 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.         

Unsecured, Considered Good         

Financial Asset on Forward Contract 0.32   -   

Interest Accrued  5.64   3.71 

Staff Advance 0.41   0.33 

Receivable Against Sale of Investment with Portfolio Management Services  25.16   10.97 

Advances for Purchase of Equity share**  -     429.65 

Other Receivable***  1.74   -   

   33.27   444.66 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(20)  Other Current Financial Assets

***Based on the prot threshold as of 31 March 2025 , out of remuneration accrued to Directors upto 31 December 2024, remuneration amountirg to ̀   10.63 crores had been accrued 
in excess of the limits approved by the shareholders. This excess Remuneration was reversed during the quarter ended 31 March 2025. Subsequent to the reversal, the amount paid to 
directors which remained in excess of the permissible limits as of 31 March 2025 has since been refunded by the directors on 28 May 2025.         

*Advance of  ̀  429.65 Cr. has been given for purchase of equity share of National Stock Exchange Ltd. 325000 No. of shares amounting to ̀  105.63 Cr. received on 27 April 2024 and 
1000000 No. of shares amounting to ̀  324.00 Cr. received on 30 April 2024.         

(` In Cr.)

Unsecured, Considered Good         

Advance for Raw Materials & Stores 7.04   9.99 

Balances with Statutory/Government Authorities  26.95   7.36 

Export Incentives Receivable 0.74   0.24 

Prepaid Expenses  12.47   8.10 

Other  Advances 4.70   1.45 

   51.90   27.14 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(21)  Other Current Assets

Notes:         

(i) No advances are due by directors or other ofcers of the Company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person (except for advance disclosed in Note 20). Further, 
no advances are due by rms or private companies in which any director is a partner,  director or member.        
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Authorised Share Capital*      

Equity Shares of ` 10/- each 16,76,45,000   167.65   16,76,45,000   167.65 

Preference share of ` 10/- each 45,000   0.05   45,000   0.05 

      

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital       

Equity Shares of ` 10/- each (fully paid up) 2,91,11,550   29.11   2,91,11,550   29.11 

Nos. 
Particulars

As at 31 March 2024

(22) Share Capital

As at 31 March 2025

Amount Nos. Amount

*Refer note 56

Equity Shares      

Outstanding at beginning of the year 2,91,11,550   29.11   2,91,11,550   29.11 

Add : Shares issued during the year* -     -     1,72,70,176   17.27 

Less: Share cancelled during the year* -     -     1,72,70,176   17.27 

Outstanding at end of the year 2,91,11,550   29.11   2,91,11,550   29.11 

Nos. 
Particulars

As at 31 March 2024

(i) Reconciliation of number of shares 

As at 31 March 2025

Amount Nos. Amount

*Refer note 56

(ii) Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to Equity Shares     
The Company has only one class of equity share having a face value of  ̀  10/- per share with one vote per equity share. The dividend proposed by board of directors is subject 
to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive 
remaining assets of the Company, after settling off all outside liabilities. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.       

1 Mr. Subhas Chandra Agarwalla 61,86,803  21.25%  44,13,427  15.16%

2 Mr. Prahlad Rai Agarwalla 31,60,295  10.86%  31,60,295  10.86%

3 Mrs. Sheela Devi Agarwalla 63,50,337  21.81%  21,16,584  7.27%

4 Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla 25,000  0.09%  14,69,789  5.05%

5 Mr. Subodh Agarwalla 25,000  0.09%  42,43,753  14.58%

6 Mr. Siddhartha Shankar Agarwalla 48,91,285  16.80%  48,91,285  16.80%

No. of Shares
Name of shareholders

As at 31 March 2024

(iii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company*

As at 31 March 2025

% of holding No. of Shares % of holding

*Refer note 56
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 Promoter:     

1 Mr. Subhas Chandra Agarwalla 44,13,427   61,86,803  21.25% 40.18%

 Promoters Group:     

2 Mr. Prahlad Rai Agarwalla 31,60,295   31,60,295  10.86% 0.00%

3 Mrs. Sarita Devi Agarwalla 6,67,198   6,67,198  2.29% 0.00%

4 Mrs. Sheela Devi Agarwalla 21,16,584   63,50,337  21.81% 200.03%

5 Mr. Avinash Agarwalla 19,525   19,525  0.07% 0.00%

6 Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla 14,69,789   25,000  0.09% -98.30%

7 Mr. Subodh Agarwalla 42,43,753   25,000  0.09% -99.41%

8 Mr. Siddhartha Shankar Agarwalla 48,91,285   48,91,285  16.80% 0.00%

9 Mrs. Sonam Agarwalla 3,69,615   3,69,615  1.27% 0.00%

10 Subhas Chandra Agarwalla HUF# 3,44,275   -    0.00% -100.00%

11 Prahlad Rai Agarwalla HUF 1,07,668   1,07,668  0.37% 0.00%

12 Shankar Lal Agarwalla HUF## 7,040   -    0.00% -100.00%

13 Mrs. Mitu Agarwalla 9,533   10,000  0.03% 4.90%

14 Mrs. Tripti Agarwalla 9,379   9,600  0.03% 2.36%

  2,18,29,366   2,18,22,326  74.96% -0.03%

No. of Shares
Promoters & Promoters Group 

(iv) Shares held by Promoters & Promoters Group*

As at 31 March 2024

# Dissolved consequent upon execution of “Deed of Partition” between the members of  HUF on 22 January 2025.      
## Dissolved consequent upon execution of “Deed of Partition” between the members of HUF on and 4 March 2025.      
*Refer note 56      

 Promoter:     

1 Mr. Subhas Chandra Agarwalla 12,58,250   44,13,427  15.16% 250.76%

 Promoters Group:     

2 Mr. Shankar Lal Agarwalla 9,55,865   -    0.00% -100.00%

3 Mr. Prahlad Rai Agarwalla 1,00,000   31,60,295  10.86% 3060.30%

4 Mrs. Sarita Devi Agarwalla 25,000   6,67,198  2.29% 2568.79%

5 Mrs. Sheela Devi Agarwalla 9,91,650   21,16,584  7.27% 113.44%

6 Mr. Avinash Agarwalla 19,525   19,525  0.07% 0.00%

7 Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla 2,59,650   14,69,789  5.05% 466.07%

8 Mr. Subodh Agarwalla 6,59,250   42,43,753  14.58% 543.72%

9 Mr. Siddhartha Shankar Agarwalla 1,80,000   48,91,285  16.80% 2617.38%

10 Mrs. Sonam Agarwalla 1,10,000   3,69,615  1.27% 236.01%

11 Subhas Chandra Agarwalla HUF -     3,44,275  1.18% 100.00%

12 Prahlad Rai Agarwalla HUF -     1,07,668  0.37% 100.00%

13 Shankar Lal Agarwalla HUF -     7,040  0.02% 100.00%

14 Mrs. Mitu Agarwalla -     9,533  0.03% 100.00%

15 Mrs. Tripti Agarwalla -     9,379  0.03% 100.00%

16 Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private Limited 1,72,70,176   -    0.00% -100.00%

  2,18,29,366   2,18,29,366  74.99% 0.00%

No. of Shares
Promoters & Promoters Group 

% of holding

(v) As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declaration received from shareholders regarding benecial interest, the above 
shareholding represent both legal and benecial ownership.      

As at 31 March 2025

No. of Shares

% of Total 
Shares 

% Change during 
the Year 

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2024 % of Total 
Shares 

% Change during 
the Year 
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(23) Other Equity

Capital Reserve      

 Balance at the beginning of the reporting period  1,558.91   1,558.91 

 Adjustment on account of composite scheme of arrangement* -     -   

 Balance at the end of reporting period  1,558.91   1,558.91 

      

Capital Reserve on Demerger      

 Balance at the beginning of the reporting period  (45.44)  (45.44)

 Adjustment on account of composite scheme of arrangement* -     -   

 Balance at the end of reporting period  (45.44)  (45.44)

      

Capital Reserve ( Amalgamation adjustment decit account)      

 Balance at the beginning of the reporting period  (1,440.32)  (1,444.75)

 Adjustment on account of composite scheme of arrangement* -     4.43 

 Balance at the end of reporting period  (1,440.32)  (1,440.32)

      

Securities Premium       

 Balance at the beginning of the reporting period  33.62   33.62 

 Adjustment on account of composite scheme of arrangement* -     -   

 Balance at the end of reporting period  33.62   33.62 

      

Statutory Reserve Fund      

 Balance at the beginning of the reporting period  32.50   32.50 

 Adjustment on account of composite scheme of arrangement* -     -   

 Balance at the end of reporting period  32.50   32.50 

      

Amalgamation Adjustment Reserve      

 Balance at the beginning of the reporting period  (19.03)  (19.03)

 Adjustment on account of composite scheme of arrangement*     -    

 Balance at the end of reporting period  (19.03)  (19.03)

      

Retained Earnings      

 Balance at the beginning of the reporting period  2,919.74   2,585.65 

 Add: Prot for the year  640.23   351.03 

 Add: Other Comprehensive Income for the year      

    -  Re-measurements of the Net Dened Benet Plans 0.20   0.09 

 Add: Transfer from Equity Instruments Through OCI -     5.43 

 Adjustment on account of composite scheme of arrangement* -     (4.99)

         Less:  Dividend  26.20   17.47 

 Balance at the end of reporting period  3,533.97   2,919.74 

   3,654.21   3,039.98 

Equity Instruments Through OCI      

 Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 1.27   0.12 

 Add/Less: Other Comprehensive Income for the year -     6.02 

 Less: Transfer to Retained Earnings -     (5.43)

 Adjustment on account of composite scheme of arrangement* -     0.56 

 Balance at the end of reporting period 1.27   1.27 

TOTAL   3,655.48   3,041.25 

Proposed dividend on equity shares:      

"Final cash dividend for the year ended on 31 March 2025: ` 6.00 per share ( 31 March 2024 : ` 6.00)"  17.47   17.47 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025Particulars

*Refer note 56

(` In Cr.)
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(i) Other comprehensive income accumulated in other equity (net of income-tax)     
The disaggregation of changes in other comprehensive income by each type of reserve in equity is shown below:     

As at 1 April 2023 0.12 

Equity instruments through other comprehensive income - net change in fair value 6.25 

Tax on above items  (0.23)

Less: Transfer to Retained Earnings  (5.43)

Adjustment on account of Composite Scheme of Arrangement* 0.56 

As at 31 March 2024 1.27 

Equity instruments through other comprehensive income - net change in fair value -   

Tax on above items -   

Less: Transfer to Retained Earnings -   

Adjustment on account of Composite Scheme of Arrangement* -   

As at 31 March 2025 1.27 

Equity instruments through other comprehensive incomeParticulars

(` In Cr.)

*Refer note 56

(ii) The description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows:      
Capital Reserve*      
This reserve represents the difference between value of the net assets transferred  and consideration paid for such assets in the course of amalgamation and also relates to forfeiture of 
shares.      
      
Capital Reserve on Demerger*      
This reserve represents the aggregate of excess assets over liabilities amounting to ̀  45.44 Cr. relating to the Real Estate and Ancillary Business of Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private 
Limited was transferred to Anjaney Land Assets Private Limited  and the cancellation of the equity shares held by Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private Limited in the paid-up capital of 
Anjaney Land Assets Private Limited  was debited to Capital Reserve (“Capital Reserve due to Demerger”) w.e.f. 1 January 2024, being the Appointed date as per the NCLT Order. As a 
result of this demerger a Capital Reserve having a debit balance of ̀  45.44 Cr. was created in Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private Limited on 1 January 2024. Upon amalgamation of Ma 
Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private Limited with Maithan Alloys Limited, this reserve has been transferred to Maithan Alloys Limited.       
      
Capital Reserve ( Amalgamation adjustment deficit account)*      
Upon Amalgamation of Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private Limited with Maithan Alloys Limited, the difference between the asset, liabilities, reserves including amalgamation 
adjustment account are recorded as Capital Reserve (Amalgamation adjustment decit account) having debit balance of  ̀  1,440.32 Cr. in the books of the Company.      
      
Securities Premium*      
This reserve represents the premium on issue of shares and can be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.      
      
Statutory Reserve Fund*      
Statutory Reserve represents the Reserve Fund created under Section 45 IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly an amount representing 20% of Prot for the period is 
transferred to the fund. Upon amalgamation of Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private Limited with Maithan Alloys Limited, this reserve has been transferred to Maithan Alloys Limited.       
      
Amalgamation Adjustment Reserve*      
Upon amalgamation of Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private Limited with Maithan Alloys Limited, this reserve has been transferred to Maithan Alloys Limited.  This reserve  is the 
corresponding debit balance of the statutory reserves of the  transferor companies which was recorded in the Books of  Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private Limited.      
      
Retained Earnings*      
This reserve represents the cumulative prots of the Company and effects of remeasurement of dened benet obligations. This reserve can be utilized in accordance with the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013.      
      
Other items of other comprehensive income*      
Other items of other comprehensive income consist of re-measurement of net dened benet liability.      
      
Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income*      
This reserve represents the cumulative gains (net of losses) arising on the revaluation of equity instruments measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income, net of tax. The 
same shall be transferred to retained earnings when those instruments are disposed off.     

*Refer note 56
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(` In Cr.)

Lease Liabilities 3.12   3.22 

  3.12   3.22 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(24)  Lease Liabilities - Non-Current

For Employee Benets 3.32   3.54 

  3.32   3.54 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(25)  Non-Current Provisions 

(i)  Movements in Deferred Tax (Liabilities) / Assets         

The Company has accrued signicant amounts of deferred tax.  Signicant components of Deferred tax assets & (liabilities) recognized in the Balance Sheet are as follows:         

Deferred Tax Liabilities         

- Property, Plant and Equipment  15.49   16.92 

- Right of Use Asset 3.34   3.57 

- Investments  207.65   32.61 

- Financial asset on Forward contract 0.08   -   

Gross Deferred Tax Liabilities  226.56   53.10 

         

Deferred Tax Assets         

- Employee Benets and Others 0.98   0.95 

- Financial Liabilities on Forward contract -     0.16 

- Impairment Allowance for Investment 1.47   1.47 

- Provision for Expected Credit Loss 1.53   1.62 

Gross Deferred Tax Asset 3.98   4.20 

Deferred Tax Liabilities / (Assets) (Net)   222.58   48.90 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(26)  Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

As At 1 April 2023  (18.54)  (3.80)  (0.77)  (1.14)  0.90   -     -     -     (23.35)

(Charged) / credited to :         

 - Prot or Loss  1.62   0.23   0.77   (31.56)  0.08   0.16   1.47   1.62   (25.61)

 - Other Comprehensive Income  -     -     -     0.09   (0.03)  -     -     -     0.06 

As At 31 March 2024  (16.92)  (3.57)  -     (32.61)  0.95   0.16   1.47   1.62   (48.90)

(Charged) / credited to :         

 - Prot or Loss  1.43   0.23   (0.08)  (175.04)  0.09   (0.16)  -     (0.09)  (173.62)

 - Other Comprehensive Income  -     -     -     -     (0.06)  -     -     -     (0.06)

As At 31 March 2025  (15.49)  (3.34)  (0.08)  (207.65)  0.98   -     1.47   1.53   (222.58)

Property 
Plant & 

Equipment Particulars
Right Of Use 

Asset

Financial 
asset on 
Forward 
contract

Investments
Employee 

Benefits and 
Others

Financial 
Liabilities on 

Forward 
contract

Impairment 
Allowance for 

Investment

Provision for 
Expected 

Credit Loss 

Total

Deferred Government Grant 0.05   0.08 

  0.05   0.08 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(27)  Other Non-Current Liabilities

(I) The Company does not face a signicant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufcient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and 
when they fall due.
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Secured         

Loan repayable on demand         

From Bank         

     - Cash Credit from Bank 0.39   13.90 

     - Working Capital Demand Loan 15.96   -   

From Others         

     - Flexi Loan  280.00   -   

Buyers Credit  265.51   -   

   561.86   13.90 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(28)  Current Borrowings

Lease Liabilities 0.10   0.09 

  0.10   0.09 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(29)  Lease Liabilities

Creditors         

(i) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (Refer Note 30(iii)) 0.53   5.27 

(ii) Total outstanding other than above 111.63   78.96 

   112.16   84.23 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(30)  Trade Payables

(i) Cash Credit from Bank & Working capital demand Loan are secured by rst charge and hypothecation of raw materials, work in progress, nished goods, stores and consumables, 
receivables, bills, etc. These are further secured by rst pari-pasu charged basis on moveable and immoveable property, plant and equipment both present and future of the 
Company.          

(ii) The company has not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or nancial institution or any other lender.         

(iii) Flexi Loan from Bajaj Finance Ltd. having sanctioned limit of  ̀  300.00 Cr. and outstanding of  ̀  280.00 Cr. are secured by hypothecation of Investment in Quoted Equity Shares of  ̀   
601.10 Cr.         

(iv)  The Company has led quarterly returns or statements with the banks in lieu of the sanctioned working capital facilities, which are in agreement with the books of account other than 
those as set out below.         

  540.00  Jun-24  747.61   738.42   9.19 

  540.00  Jun-23  647.10   643.43   3.67 

       

  540.00  Sep-24  642.40   668.65   (26.25)

  540.00  Sep-23  688.50   703.59   (15.09)

State Bank of India and consortium of banks       

  540.00  Dec-24  544.84   534.84   10.00 

  540.00  Dec-23  795.06   771.34   23.72 

       

  540.00  Mar-25  606.94   597.70   9.24 

  540.00  Mar-24  737.88   715.63   22.25 

Name of the Bank

Aggregate 
working capital 

limits 
sanctioned

Quarter ended

Amount 
disclosed as per 
quarterly return 

/ statements

Amount as per 
books of 
account Diff Reason

The Difference is due to exclusion of 
related party debtors, adjustments 
pertaining to cut-offs, goods in transit 
and adjustment of debit/ credit notes 
of provisional prices which are not 
considered in statements submitted 
to Banks.

Amount disclosed as per quarterly return/statements constitute Trade Receivables upto 90 days (from due date) and Inventories excluding stores & spares but in books of accounts it 
constitute Trade Receivables and Inventories excluding stores and spares & Land.         

(v) The Company has not utilised the Flexi Loan of Rs. 159.00 Cr for the purpose for which it has borrowed & it has been utilised for giving loan to subsidiaries.         
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(i) Ageing of Outstanding Trade Payable as on 31 March 2025 from the Due Date of Payment

Not dueParticulars
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Undisputed dues - micro and small enterprises 0.35   0.18   -     -     -     0.53 

Undisputed dues - Others 94.35   13.23   0.79   1.41   1.85   111.63 

Disputed dues - micro and small enterprises -     -     -     -     -     -   

Disputed dues - Others -     -     -     -     -     -   

Total 94.70   13.41   0.79   1.41   1.85   112.16 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments

(ii) Ageing of Outstanding Trade Payable as on 31 March 2024 from the Due Date of Payment

Not dueParticulars
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Undisputed dues - micro and small enterprises 4.23   1.04   -     -     -     5.27 

Undisputed dues - Others 59.60   13.24   2.18   0.20   3.73   78.96 

Disputed dues - micro and small enterprises -     -     -     -     -     -   

Disputed dues - Others -     -     -     -     -     -   

Total 63.83   14.28   2.18   0.20   3.73   84.23 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments

(iii) Information as required to be furnished as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) for the year ended 31 March 2025 and 
year ended 31 March 2024 is given below. This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identied on the basis of information available with the 
Company. The disclosures relating to Micro and Small Enterprises are as under:       

 (a) The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small suppliers as at the end of each accounting year:          

 - Principal 0.53   5.27 

 - Interest -     -   

(b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and -     -   
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

(c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been -     -   
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specied under
MSMED Act, 2006.

(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. -     -   

(e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date -     -   
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance
as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025Particulars

Financial Liability on Forward Contract -     0.64 

Accrued Interest on Secured Loan 1.90   -   

Creditors for Capital Goods 0.21   -   

Unclaimed Dividend* 0.08   0.08 

     - Employee Dues (` 0.09 Cr. due to Related Parties. Refer Note No - 53) 3.00   5.94 

     - Liability for Expenses 69.68   63.94 

         

   74.87   70.60 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(31)  Other Current Financial Liabilities

* There are no amount due for transfer to the Investors Education and Protection Fund at the year end.
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Other Liabilities         

    - Statutory Dues 2.63   10.03 

    - Advance from Customer  41.54   29.12 

    - Others  1.61   4.30 

  45.78   43.45 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(34)  Other Current Liabilities

Sale of Products   

Manufactured Goods   

 - Ferro Alloys 1,478.37   1,609.12 

 - Wind Power 1.18   1.53 

Traded Goods   

 - Ferro Alloys 123.07   67.76 

 - Manganese Ore 181.01   14.53 

 - Others 2.33   3.66 

Total of Sale of Products 1,785.96   1,696.60 

   

Other Operating Revenue   

 - Realisation from sale of Slag and Waste 32.85   25.18 

 - Export Incentives 0.84   1.22 

Total of Other Operating Revenue 33.69   26.40 

   1,819.65   1,723.00

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025(35)  Revenue from Operations

(i) Reconciliation of Revenue from sale of products with the contracted price

Contracted price 1,785.96   1,703.78 

Add/(less): Adjustment for variable consideration -     (7.18)

Net Revenue Recognised from Contracts with Customers 1,785.96   1,696.60 

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025Particulars

(ii) Contract Assets

Trade receivables (refer note 16) 145.40   387.61 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025Particulars

(` In Cr.)

For Employee Benets 0.57   0.24 

  0.57   0.24 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(32)  Provisions - Current 

Refer note 47 for note on employee benets obligations.

Provision for Tax (Net of Advance Tax) 7.14   19.64 

  7.14   19.64 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(33)  Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
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(` In Cr.)

(iii) Contract Liabilities

Advance from Customer (refer note 34) 41.54   29.12 

   41.54   29.12 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025Particulars

Interest Income measured at Amortised cost on:   

Loans 4.90   2.34 

Customers 0.55   0.20 

Bank Deposits 1.72   41.65 

Bonds 0.51   1.32 

Security Deposits 2.53   2.42 

Alternate Investment Fund 9.90   5.52 

Others 3.02   0.00 

Sub-total (A) 23.13   53.45 

   

Dividend Received 45.63   9.13 

Sub-total (B) 45.63   9.13 

   

Deferred Revenue Grant 0.03   0.03 

Fair value gain on investments measured at fair value through prot or loss 832.01   177.64 

Net Gain arising from Forward contract measured at fair value through prot or loss 0.32   -   

Net Gain realised on sale of Investments (184.21)  94.48 

Insurance Claim Received 0.01   0.40 

Net Gain on Foreign Currency Transactions 6.50   4.30 

Prot on Sale of Property Plant and Equipment & Capital Work in Progress 0.36   1.43 

Liability no longer required Written Back 2.58   10.91 

Miscellaneous Income 0.26   5.17 

   726.62   356.94 

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025(36)  Other Income
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Stock at the end of the year   

Finished Goods 53.38   79.34 

Finished Goods in Transit 74.76   67.42 

Stock in Trade in Transit 61.02   -   

Stock in Trade 2.37   2.19 

Work-In-Progress 1.60   1.47 

Slag and Waste 1.61   1.31 

   194.74   151.73 

   

Less : Stock at the beginning of the year   

Finished Goods 79.34   41.44 

Finished Goods in Transit 67.42   19.47 

Stock in Trade in Transit  -     -   

Stock in Trade 2.19   0.41 

Work-In-Progress 1.47   1.97 

Slag and Waste 1.31   1.61 

   151.73   64.90 

   

(Increase) / Decrease in stock of   

Finished Goods 25.96   (37.90)

Finished Goods in Transit (7.34)  (47.95)

Stock in Trade in Transit (61.02)  -   

Stock in Trade (0.18)  (1.77)

Work-In-Progress (0.13)  0.50 

Slag and Waste (0.30)  0.29 

  

Total (Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (43.01)  (86.83)

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025(39)  Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, stock in trades and Work in Progress

(` In Cr.)

Ferro Alloys 167.85   63.61 

Manganese Ore 180.71   12.37 

Others 2.37   3.53 

   350.93   79.51 

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025(38)   Purchases of Stock In Trade

Opening Stock 175.53   184.40 

 Add: Transfer from Stores and Spares Parts -     0.16 

 Add: Purchases  858.41   903.58 

   1,033.94   1,088.14 

Less: Closing Stock 257.55   175.53 

 Less: Sale of Raw Material 3.19   0.04 

 Raw Material Consumed 773.20   912.57 

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025(37)  Cost of Material Consumed

(i) Raw material purchases are net of sale of unusable raw materials.
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(` In Cr.)

Salaries and Wages 24.19   26.56 

Directors' Remuneration  10.47   15.66 

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 1.18   1.14 

Staff Welfare Expenses 0.64   1.25 

   36.48   44.61 

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025(40)  Employee Benefits Expenses

Interest Expense on:   

Borrowings 20.59   0.47 

Lease Liabilities 0.32   0.32 

Statutory Dues 0.00   0.76 

   20.91   1.55 

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025(42)  Finance Cost

(i) On adoption of Ind AS 116 'Leases', the Company has recognised Right of use of assets and created lease obligation representing present value of future minimum lease payments. 
The unwinding of such obligation is recognised as interest expense.  

(ii)  Interest on Statutory Dues includes interest on Income Tax ̀  Nil. (FY 23-24 ̀  0.71 Cr.)  

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025(41)  Power Cost

Electricity Charges and Duties 371.76   493.99 

   371.76   493.99 

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer Note 4) 13.89   14.15 

Depreciation on Right of Use Asset  (Refer Note 7) 0.98   0.99 

Amortisation of Intangible Assets (Refer Note 6) 0.03   0.03 

   14.90   15.17

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025(43)  Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
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Export Expenses  57.29   51.99 

Consumption of Stores and Packing Materials  11.08   13.38 

Packing and Forwarding Expenses 8.99   9.80 

Carriage Outward 8.38   13.68 

Rebate and Discounts 3.51   2.18 

Other Manufacturing Expenses  13.69   14.73 

Brokerage and Commission 2.84   3.60 

Bank Commission and Charges 2.31   1.37 

Repairs to Machinery 8.49   8.90 

Repairs to Building 0.65   0.71 

Repairs to Others 1.26   0.93 

Rates and Taxes 5.41   5.87 

Professional Charges 1.57   1.77 

CSR Expenses (Refer note 44(i))  19.98   12.73 

Irrecoverable Balances and Debts Written Off 0.33   0.21 

Insurance Premium 0.84   0.91 

Directors' Sitting Fees 0.08   0.07 

Rent  0.42   0.45 

Auditors Remuneration

 - Statutory Audit Fee 0.22   0.17 

 - Tax Audit Fee 0.03   0.02 

 - Other Services 0.14   0.16 

 - Out of Pocket Expenses 0.01   0.02 

Impairment of Investment in Subsidiary -     6.41 

Provision for Bad and Doubtful debt (0.36)  6.43 

Net Loss arising from Forward contract measured at fair value through prot & loss -     0.64 

Loss on Property, Plant & Equipment discarded 0.20   -   

Miscellaneous Expenses 15.27   13.17 

   162.63   170.30 

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025(44)  Other Expenses
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(` In Cr.)

I) Prot attributable to ordinary Equity Holder (` in Cr.) 640.23   351.03 

ii) Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic EPS 2,91,11,550   2,91,11,550 

iii) Weighted average potential equity shares  -     -   

iv) Weighted average number of equity shares for Diluted EPS 2,91,11,550   2,91,11,550 

v) Basic Earnings Per Share (`) 219.92   120.58 

vi) Diluted Earnings Per Share (`) 219.92   120.58 

vii) Face value Per Equity Share (`) 10   10 

31 March 202431 March 2025(45)  Earnings Per Share (EPS)

(i) The details of Corporate Social Responsibility as prescribed under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 as follows:

a Amount required to be spent during the period  12.75   12.69 

b Amount spent during the period on:     

 i) Construction/acquisition of any asset -     -   

 ii) On purposes other than i) above 

           Health Care 3.20   2.06 

           Education 2.28   9.58 

           Promoting Animal Welfare  13.82   0.21 

           Environment Sustainability 0.41   0.51 

           Financial Assistance & Armed forces -     0.00 

           Sports 0.27   0.35 

           Rural Development -     0.02 

c Total expenditure incurred  19.98   12.73 

d Total (shortfall) / excess of previous years  0.09   0.05 

e Total CSR expenditure incurred qualifying for current Financial Year  20.07  12.78 

f Total Shortfall / (excess) at the end of the period  (7.32)  (0.09)

g Reason for shortfall Not Applicable   Not Applicable 

h Excess amount to be carried forward for next year eligible for set off** 7.32   0.09 

i Nature of CSR activities     

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025Corporate social responsibility

Development of Training Hall, Rural Infrastructure 
Development, Promoting health care including preventive 
health care, Promotion of Education including special 
education and employment enhancing vocational skills, 
Women Empowerment,  Livelihood, Promoting Animal 
Welfare, sports etc.

Activities specied in Schedule VII of the Act

 Activities Other than specied in Schedule VII of the Act     

j Details of related party transactions*  14.00   6.44 

* Contribution to related trust (BMA Foundation) amounting to ` 14.00 Cr.(31 March 2024 - ` 6.44 Cr.)      
** Excess amount of ` 7.32 Cr. is charged to Prot & Loss account are to be to be carried forward to next year and are eligible for set off.
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46 Tax Expenses

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025

Current Tax:      

Income Tax for the year 49.71   71.85 

Charge/(Credit) in respect of Current Tax for earlier years (5.09)  0.58 

Total Current Tax 44.62   72.43 

Deferred Tax:      

Origination and Reversal of Temporary Differences  173.62  25.61 

Impact of change in tax rate -     -   

Total Deferred Tax  173.62   25.61 

Total Tax Expenses  218.24   98.04 

(i)  Amount recognised in Profit or Loss

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025

The Tax (Charge)/Credit arising on Income and Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income is as follows:      

Deferred Tax      

On Items that will not be Reclassied to Prot or Loss      

 Remeasurement Gains/(Losses) on Dened Benet Plans  (0.06)  (0.03)

 Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income -     (0.23)

 Total  (0.06)  (0.26)

(ii)  Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting prot as follows:      

Prot before tax 858.47   449.07 

Income tax expense calculated @ 25.168% (2022-23: 25.168%)  216.06   113.02 

Expenses not allowed for tax purpose 6.71   3.39 

Effect of tax relating to expenses allowed on payment basis -     0.07 

Effect of income not taxable -     (13.87)

Tax at differential rate  12.01   (2.65)

Income Tax related to earlier years  (5.09)  0.58 

Deduction as per Chapter VI A of Income Tax Act, 1961  (11.48) -

Others 0.03   (2.50)

Tax expenses  218.24   98.04 

(iii)  Reconciliation of effective tax rate

(iv)   The tax rate used for the Financial years 2024-25 and 2023-24 reconciliations above is the corporate tax rate of 25.168% (being income tax @  22% + surcharge @ 10% and 
education cess @ 4%)  payable on taxable prots under the Income Tax Act, 1961. The effective corporate tax rate is 25.42% (2023-24:  21.83%).
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(` In Cr.)

47.    Employee Benet Obligations      

      

(i) Dened Contribution Plans      

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specied percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards Provident and Pension Fund and Employee 
State Insurance (‘ESI’) which are dened contribution plans. The Company has no obligations other than to make the specied contributions. The contributions are recognised in the 
Standalone Statement of Prot and Loss as they accrue.

The dened benet plans expose the Group to a number of actuarial risks as below:      

(a) Interest Risk : A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability. However, this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of plan’s debt investments.      

(b) Salary risk : The present value of the dened benet plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in salary of the plan 
participants will increase the plan’s liability.      

(c) Longevity risk: The present value of the dened benet plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their 
employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.      

(d) Ination risk: Some of the Group’s Pension obligations are linked to ination, and higher ination will lead to higher liabilities although, in most cases, caps on the level of 
inationary increases are in place to protect the plan against extreme ination.      

      

(iii)  Leave Encashment      

The liabilities for leave encashment are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are 
therefore measured as the present  value of the expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the 
Projected Unit Credit Method. The benets are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of related obligation. 
Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.      

The followings recognized in the Statement of Prot and Loss      

Contribution to Employee's State Insurance Corporation 0.17   0.20 

Contribution to Employees Provident Fund  1.00   1.03 

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025Particulars

A. Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

Present Value of the Plan Liabilities 0.58   0.54 

Fair Value of Plan Assets -     -   

Net Liabilities / (Assets) 0.58   0.54 

Particulars

(ii) Defined Benefit Plans

Leave Encashment 0.07   0.51   0.03   0.51 

Gratuity 0.50   2.81   0.21   3.03 

Current
Particulars

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

Non-Current Current Non-Current
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B. Change in defined benefit obligations

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025

As At 1 April 0.54   0.43 

Current Service Cost 0.11   0.12 

Net Interest 0.03   0.02 

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss arising from changes in-      

 - Financial Assumptions 0.01   0.01 

 - Demographic Assumptions -     (0.00)

 - Experience Adjustments 0.03   0.11 

Immediate recognition of (gains)/ losses - other long term employee benet plans -     -   

Net impact on the Profit / Loss before tax 0.18   0.26 

Curtailment Cost -     -   

Benets Paid  (0.14)  (0.15)

As At 31 March 0.58   0.54 

Particulars

C. Expense/(gain) recognised in the statement of profit and loss account

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025

Current service cost 0.11   0.12 

Net Interest 0.03   0.02 

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss arising from changes in- 

  - Financial Assumptions 0.01   0.01 

  - Demographic Assumptions -     (0.00)

  - Experience Adjustments 0.03   0.11 

Expense/(gain) recognised in the statement of profit and loss 0.18   0.26 

Particulars

D. Actuarial Assumptions

Financial Assumptions

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

Discount Rate (%) 6.83% 6.97%

Attrition Rate (%) 1.00% 1.00%

Salary Escalation Rate 6.00% 6.00%

Particulars

Demographic Assumptions      
Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set in accordance with the published rate under Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14)
      
E. Sensitivity      
The sensitivity of  the dened benet obligation (DBO) to changes in the weighted key assumptions are:

Change in 
assumption

Particulars

Discount Rate 0.50%  0.54   0.61  0.50%  0.50   0.57 

Salary Escalation Rate 0.50%  0.61   0.54  0.50%  0.57   0.50 

Year Ended 31 March 2025 Year Ended 31 March 2024

Impact on DBO if 
rate increases

Impact on DBO if 
rate decreases

Change in 
assumption

Impact on DBO if 
rate increases

Impact on DBO if 
rate decreases

The above sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonable possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the year and may not be 
representative of the actual change. It is based on a change in the key assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivity to the assumption, the 
same method is used to calculate the liability recognised in the Standalone Balance Sheet. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not 
change compared to the previous year.

(` In Cr.)
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(iv)    Gratuity      

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. 
The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of 
years of service. 

A. Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

Present Value of the Dened Benet Obligation 3.31   3.24 

Fair Value of Plan Assets -     -   

Net Liabilities 3.31   3.24 

Particulars

F.  Maturity
The dened benet obligations shall mature as follows:

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

Year 1 0.07   0.03 

Year 2 0.01   0.02 

Year 3 0.02   0.02 

Year 4 0.01   0.02 

Year 5 0.03   0.02 

Thereafter  1.32   1.40 

The weighted average duration of dened benet obligation 11 Years 11 Years

Particulars

B. Change in defined benefit obligations

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025

As At 1 April 3.24   3.13 

Current Service Cost 0.40   0.44 

Interest Expense/ (Income) 0.21   0.20 

Net impact on Profit Before Tax 0.61   0.64 

      

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss arising from changes in-      

  - Financial Assumptions 0.04   0.05 

  - Demographic Assumptions -     (0.01)

  - Experience Adjustments (0.30)  (0.16)

Net Gain recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (0.26)  (0.12)

      

Benets Paid (0.28)  (0.41)

As At 31 March 3.31   3.24 

Particulars
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D. Actuarial Assumptions

Financial Assumptions

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

Discount Rate (%) 6.83% 6.97%

Attrition Rate (%) 1.00% 1.00%

Salary Escalation Rate 6.00% 6.00%

Particulars

Demographic Assumptions      
Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set in accordance with the published rate under Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14)
      
E. Sensitivity      
The sensitivity of  the dened benet obligation (DBO) to changes in the weighted key assumptions are:

Change in 
assumption

Particulars

Discount Rate 1.00%  3.16   3.49  1.00%  3.08   3.42 

Salary Escalation Rate 1.00%  3.48   3.17  1.00%  3.42   3.08 

Year Ended 31 March 2025 Year Ended 31 March 2024

Impact on DBO if 
rate increases

Impact on DBO if 
rate decreases

Change in 
assumption

Impact on DBO if 
rate increases

Impact on DBO if 
rate decreases

The above sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonable possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the year and may not be 
representative of the actual change. It is based on a change in the key assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivity to the assumption, the 
same method is used to calculate the liability recognised in the Standalone Balance Sheet. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not 
change compared to the previous year.

F.  Maturity
The dened benet obligations shall mature as follows:

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

Year 1 0.52   0.22 

Year 2 0.13   0.29 

Year 3 0.21   0.18 

Year 4 0.06   0.22 

Year 5 0.17   0.08 

Thereafter 6.77   7.03 

The weighted average duration of dened benet obligation 11 Years 11 Years

Particulars

(` In Cr.)

C. Expense/(gain) recognised in the statement of profit and loss account

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025

Expense/(gain) recognised in the statement of profit and loss      

Current service cost 0.40   0.44 

Net Interest 0.21   0.20 

  0.61   0.64 

Expense/(gain) recognised in the Other comprehensive income      

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss arising from changes in-      

 - Financial Assumptions 0.04   0.05 

 - Demographic Assumptions -     (0.01)

 - Experience Adjustments  (0.30)  (0.16)

   (0.26)  (0.12)

Particulars
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48.    Financial Risk Management

The Company has a system-based approach to risk management, anchored to policies & procedures and internal nancial controls aimed at ensuring early identication, evaluation and 
management of key nancial risks (such as market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk) that may arise as a consequence of its business operations as well as its investing and nancing 
activities. Accordingly, the Company’s risk management framework has the objective of ensuring that such risks are managed within acceptable and approved risk parameters in a 
disciplined and consistent manner and in compliance with applicable regulations. It also seeks to drive accountability in this regard.       

The Company's nancial liabilities includes Borrowings, Trade Payables and Other Financial Liabilities. The main purpose of these nancial liabilities is to nance the Company's 
operations. The Company's principal nancial assets include Investment, Trade Receivables, Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Financial Assets that are derived directly from its 
operations.       

It is the Company's policy that derivatives are used exclusively for hedging purposes and not for trading or speculative purposes.       

Risk

Market Risk – Commodity Price Risk 
 

Market Risk – Price Risk 
 
 
Market Risk – Interest Rate 
 

Market Risk – Foreign Exchange 
 

Credit Risk 
 

Liquidity Risk 

Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Volatility in raw material prices signicantly 
impacts the  input costs  
  
Investments in equity securities  
  
  
Borrowings at oating interest rates  
  

Future commercial transactions and recognised 
nancial assets & liabilities not denominated in 
Indian rupee (INR)  
  
Investment,Trade receivables and other nancial 
assets measured at amortised cost  
  
Financial liabilities that are settled by delivering 
cash or another nancial asset.  

Commodity price tracking

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis

Cash ow forecasting 
Sensitivity analysis

Ageing analysis

Cash ow forecasts

Mitigated this risk by well integrated 
business model 
 
Continuous monitoring of performance of 
investments 
 
Exposure to oating interest rate debt is 
only to the extent of Working Capital 
requirement . 
 
Projecting cash ows and considering the 
forecast of uctuation in exchange rates 
 

Diversication of customer base 
 

Projecting cash ows and considering the 
level of liquid assets necessary to meet 
the liabilities 

The Board of Directors reviewed policies for managing each of these risks which are summarised below:-       

(a) Market Risk       

(i) Commodity Price Risk       

Alloy industry being cyclical in nature, realisations gets adversely affected during downturn. Higher input prices or higher production than the demand ultimately affects the protability. 
The Company has mitigated this risk by well integrated business model.        

(ii) Price Risk       

The Company's exposure to equity securities price risk arises from investments held by the Company and classied in the balance sheet either at fair value through other comprehensive 
income or at fair value through prot and loss. Having regard to the nature of securities, intrinsic worth, intent and long term nature of securities held by the Company, uctuation in their 
prices are considered acceptable and do not warrant any management.

(` In Cr.)

Exposure to other market price risk

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

Investment in Equity Instruments - quoted  1,525.20   1,214.78 

Investment in Equity Instruments - unquoted 956.46   20.68 

Investment in Portfolio Management Services 273.39  102.00 

Investment in Bonds -  38.96 

Investment in LLP 0.00   0.00 

Investment in Mutual Funds  23.23   148.28 

Investments in Alternate Investment Fund  275.55   108.14 

Investment in Non-convertible Debentures -     152.50 

   3,053.83   1,785.34 

Particulars
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Sensitivity      
The table below summarizes the impact of increases/decreases of the market prices of the Company’s investment:

Increase by 5% (2024: 5%)* 152.69   114.26   87.32   65.34 

Decrease by 5% (2024: 5%)* (152.69)  (114.26)  (87.32)  (65.34)

Impact on Profit Before Tax
Particulars

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

Impact on Other Equity Impact on Profit Before Tax Impact on Other Equity

* Holding all other variables constant

(iii) Interest Rate Risk       
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ows of a nancial instrument will uctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure 
to the risk of changes in the market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's borrowings obligations with oating interest rates. The borrowings of the Company are 
principally denominated in Indian Rupees linked to MCLR with oating rates of interest. The Company invests surplus funds in Short-Term Deposits and Mutual Funds, some of 
which generate a tax-free return, to achieve the Company’s goal of maintaining liquidity, carrying manageable risk and achieving satisfactory returns.

Sensitivity      
Prot or loss is sensitive to higher/ lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates as below:

Interest expense rates – increase by 50 basis points (P.Y. 2024: 50 bps)*  (2.81)  (0.07)

Interest expense rates – decrease by 50 basis points (P.Y. 2024: 50 bps)* 2.81   0.07 

31 March 202431 March 2025
Particulars

Impact on Profit Before Tax

* Holding all other variables constant

(iv) Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ows of an exposure will uctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to 
the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's foreign currency denominated Borrowings, Creditors and Debtors. This foreign currency risk is 
covered by using foreign exchange forward contracts.

Since the Company has both imports as well as exports (exports are more than imports) the currency uctuation risk is largely mitigated by matching the export inows with 
import outows. Surplus exports are hedged using simple forward exchange contracts depending on the market conditions.

The hedge mechanisms are reviewed periodically to ensure that the risk from uctuating currency rates is appropriately managed. The following analysis is based on the gross 
exposure as at the reporting date which could affect the Prot or Loss. The exposure summarised below is mitigated by some of the derivative contracts entered into by the 
Company as disclosed under the section on “Derivative nancial instruments”. The Company does not hold derivative nancial instruments for speculative purposes.

The  Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

USD
Particulars

Trade Receivables 0.54   46.29   -     -     0.12   2.87 

Trade Payables  0.40   34.42   -     -     -     -   

Cash and Cash Equivalents 0.07   5.76   -     -     -     -   

Buyers Credit 2.79   239.09   -     -     -     -   

Net Exposure (2.58)  (221.46)  -     -     0.12   2.87 

As At 31 March 2025

INR Euro INR AED INR

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

From Bank       

     - Cash Credit from Bank 0.39   13.90 

     - Working Capital Demand Loan  15.96   -   

From Others 

     - Flexi Loan 280.00   -   

Buyers Credit  265.51   -   

  561.86   13.90 

Particulars

    
The exposure of the Company’s Financial Liabilities to interest rate risk is as follows:    

(Figures in Cr.)
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Foreign Currency Sensitivity       
1% increase or decrease in foreign exchange rates will have no material impact on prot.       
       
(v) Derivative Financial Instruments and Risk Management       
The Company has entered into variety of foreign currency forward contracts to manage its exposure to uctuations in foreign exchange rates. These nancial exposures are 
managed in accordance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures.        

The Company uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its exposures in foreign currency arising from rm commitments and highly probable forecast transactions. Forward 
exchange contracts that were outstanding on respective reporting dates are as follows:

In USD

Currency

US Dollar INR  0.14   -     11.55   0.31   -     26.30 

Euro INR  -     -     -     -     -    -

Euro US Dollar  -     -     -     -     -    -

As At 31 March 2025

In Euro In INR In USD In Euro In INR

Cross Currency Buy Sell

The aforesaid hedges have a maturity of less than 1 year from the year end.
       
(b) Credit Risk       
Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in nancial loss to the Company. The Company has adopted a policy of only 
dealing with creditworthy counterparties, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of nancial loss from defaults. Credit risk on receivables is limited as almost all 
domestic sales are against advance payment or letters of credit (except sale made to PSU's) and export sales are on the basis of documents against payment or letters of 
credit. 
Financial instruments and cash deposits Credit risk from balances with banks and investments is managed by the Company’s nance department in accordance with the 
Company’s policy. Investments of surplus fund in portfolio management services, mutual funds, alternate investment funds  and direct equity are made only with approved 
counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty, if any. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual basis, 
and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Company ’s Board of Directors. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore 
mitigate nancial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments. Balances with banks and deposits are placed only with highly rated banks/nancial 
institution. 

i) Financial Instruments and Deposits       
For current investments, counterparty limits are in place to limit the amount of credit exposure to any one counterparty. This, therefore, results in diversication of credit risk 
for the Company's mutual fund investments.

With respect to the Company's investing activities, counter parties are shortlisted and exposure limits determined on the basis of their credit rating (by independent agencies), 
nancial statements and other relevant information. Taking into account the experience of the Company over time, the counter party risk attached to such assets is considered 
to be insignicant.       
       
None of the Company’s Cash and Cash Equivalents, including Time Deposits with banks, are past due or impaired. Regarding Loans and Other Financial Assets (both current 
and non-current), there were no indications as at 31 March 2024, that defaults in payment obligations will occur .       

In USD

Currency

US Dollar INR  -     -     -     2.37   -     197.83 

Euro INR  -     -     -     -     0.31   27.71 

Euro US Dollar  -     -     -     -     0.01   0.69 

As At 31 March 2024

In Euro In INR In USD In Euro In INR

Cross Currency Buy Sell

USD
Particulars

Trade Receivables  1.46   121.37   0.00   0.06   0.10   2.24 

Trade Payables  0.23   19.51   -     -     -     -   

Cash and Cash Equivalents 0.02   1.79   -     -     -     -   

Net Exposure 1.25   103.65   0.00   0.06   0.10   2.24 

As At 31 March 2024

INR Euro INR AED INR
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ii)  Trade Receivables       
Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. 
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally carrying 30 days credit terms. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The Company has no 
concentration of credit risk as the customer base is widely distributed both economically and geographically. 

The risk related to trade receivable is presented in note no. 16.

The credit quality of the Company’s customers is monitored on an ongoing basis and assessed for impairment where indicators of such impairment exist. The Company uses 
simplied approach for impairment of nancial assets. If credit risk has not increased signicantly, 12-month expected credit loss is used to provide for impairment loss. 
However, if credit risk has increased signicantly, lifetime expected credit loss is used. The solvency of the debtor and their ability to repay the receivable is considered in 
assessing receivables for impairment. Where receivables have been impaired, the Company actively seeks to recover the amounts in question and enforce compliance with 
credit terms.
    
(c) Liquidity Risk       
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difculty in meeting obligations associated with nancial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another nancial 
asset.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufcient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed 
credit facilities to meet obligations when due. Due to the nature of the underlying business, the Company maintains sufcient cash and liquid investments available to meet its 
obligation.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position (comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities below) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of 
expected cash ows. The management also considers the cash ow projections and level of liquid assets necessary to meet these on a regular basis.

(i) Financing Arrangements       
The Company had access to the following undrawn funding facilities at the end of the reporting period:

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

Expiring within one year (bank overdraft and other facilities) 74.04  76.10 

  74.04   76.10 

Particulars

The bank overdraft facilities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice. Subject to the continuance of satisfactory credit ratings, the bank 
loan facilities in INR may be drawn at any time.
      
(ii) Exposure to Liquidity Risk
The Company remains committed to maintaining a healthy liquidity, net debt to equity ratio , deleveraging and strengthening the nancial position. The maturity prole of the 
Company’s nancial liabilities based on the remaining period from the date of Balance Sheet to the contractual maturity date is given in the table below. The gures reect the 
contractual undiscounted cash obligation of the Company.

As At 31 March 2025       

Borrowings 561.86   -     -     561.86 

Lease Liabilities 0.41   2.04   3.86   6.31 

Derivative Financial Liabilities -     -     -     -   

Trade Payables 112.16   -     -     112.16 

Other Financial Liabilities ** 74.87   -     -     74.87 

Total 749.30   2.04   3.86   755.20 

Less than 1 yearParticulars
Above 1 year and
less than 5 years

> 5 years Total

(` In Cr.)
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(49)  Capital Management        
The Company’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and 
provide adequate return to shareholders through continuing growth. The Company’s overall strategy remains unchanged from previous year.The Company's capital 
management is intended to create value for shareholders by facilitating the meeting of long-term and short-term goals of the Company. The Company sets the amount of 
capital required on the basis of annual business and long-term operating plans which include capital and other strategic investments.The funding requirements are met 
through a mixture of equity, internal fund generation and borrowings. The Company’s policy is to use current and non-current borrowings to meet anticipated funding 
requirements.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the net debt to equity ratio which is net debt divided by total equity . The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital 
requirements. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or 
issue new shares .

The Net Debt to Equity at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

Long-Term Lease Liabilities 3.12   3.22 

Short-Term Borrowings and Current Maturities of Lease Liabilities 561.96   13.99 

Total Borrowings (a) 565.08   17.21 

Less:         

Cash and Cash Equivalents  16.36   35.69 

Current Investments  1,977.82   1,725.70 

Total Cash (b) 1,994.18   1,761.39 

        

Net Debt (surplus) (c = a-b) (1,429.10)  (1,744.18)

Equity Share Capital 29.11   29.11 

Other Equity 3,655.48   3,041.25 

Total Equity (as per Balance Sheet) (d) 3,684.59   3,070.36 

Net Debt to Equity (c/d) (0.39)  (0.57)

Particulars

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

(i) Final dividend paid for the year ended 31 March 2024 of ` 6.00 (31 March 2023 – ` 6.00)  17.47   17.47 
per fully paid share

(ii) First Interim dividend paid for the year ended 31 March 2025 of ` 3.00 (31 March 2024 –  ` Nil.)  8.73   -   
per fully paid share

(iii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period        
 The Board of directors have recommended dividend of ` 6.00 for the year ended 31 March 2025 17.47   17.47 

(31 March 2024: ` 6.00) per fully paid up equity shares of ` 10.00 each. This proposed dividend is
subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.

(iv) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period.  20.38   -   

Particulars

Dividends Paid and Proposed

** Includes other non-current and current nancial liabilities.

As At 31 March 2024

Borrowings 13.90   -     -     13.90 

Lease Liabilities 0.41   2.04   4.27   6.72 

Derivative Financial Liabilities 0.64   -     -     0.64 

Trade Payables 84.24   -     -     84.24 

Other Financial Liabilities ** 69.96   -     -     69.96 

Total 169.15   2.04   4.27   175.46 

Less than 1 yearParticulars
Above 1 year and
less than 5 years

> 5 years Total

The Board of directors has declared second interim dividend of ` 7.00 for the year ended 
31 March 2025 (31 March 2024: ` Nil) per fully paid up equity shares of ` 10.00 each 
at their meeting held on 28 May 2025.
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(50) Disclosures on Financial Instruments        
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the nancial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) 
measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the nancial statements.         
        
The details of material accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in 
respect of each class of nancial asset, nancial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 3 to the nancial statements.        

Categories of Financial Instruments

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

Financial Assets        

a) Measured at Amortised Cost         

 i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 17  16.36   35.69 

 ii) Other Bank Balances 18  35.57   31.47 

  iii) Trade Receivables 16  145.40   387.61 

  iv) Other Financial Assets 11 & 20  72.83   482.40 

  v) Loans 10 & 19  432.76   25.72 

  vi) Bonds 9  -     38.96 

 Sub-Total  702.92   1,001.85 

b) Measured at Fair Value through OCI (FVOCI)        

 i) Investment in Quoted Equity Shares 9  -     -   

 ii) Investment in Unquoted Equity Shares                   9  0.00   0.00 

 Sub-Total  0.00   0.00 

c) Measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)        

 i) Investment in Quoted Equity Shares 15  1,525.20   1,214.78 

 ii) Investment in Portfolio Management Services 15  273.39   102.00 

 iii) Investment in Unquoted Equity Shares                   9  956.46   20.68 

 iv) Investment in Mutual Funds 15  23.23   148.28 

 v) Investments in Alternate Investment Fund 9 & 15  275.55   108.14 

 vi) Investment in Non-convertible Debentures 15  -     152.50 

 vii) Investment in LLP Firm 9  0.00   0.00 

 Sub-Total  3,053.83   1,746.38 

d) Derivatives Measured at Fair Value        

 i) Derivative Instruments 20  0.32   -   

 Sub-Total  0.32   -   

 Total Financial Assets  3,757.07   2,748.23 

        

Financial Liabilities        

 a) Measured at Amortised Cost        

 i)  Borrowings  28  561.86   13.90 

 ii)  Lease Liabilities 24 & 29  3.22   3.31 

 iii)  Trade Payables 30  112.16   84.23 

  iv)  Other Financial Liabilities 31  74.87   69.96 

 Sub-Total  752.11   171.40 

b) Derivatives Measured at Fair Value        

 i) Derivative Instruments 31  -     0.64 

 Sub-Total  -     0.64 

 Total Financial Liabilities  752.11   172.04 

Particulars Note

Maithan Alloys Annual Report 2024-25166 Maithan Alloys Annual Report 2024-25 256



Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(` In Cr.)

(i) Fair Value Hierarchy        
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the nancial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) 
measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the nancial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining 
fair value, the Company has classied its nancial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standards.         
        
Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes nancial instruments measured using quoted prices as at the reporting date.        
        
Level 2: The fair value of nancial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market 
data and rely as little as possible on entity-specic estimates. If all signicant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.        
        
Level 3: If one or more of the signicant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.         
        
(ii) Valuation Methodology        
Specic valuation techniques used to value nancial instruments include:        
• the fair value of investment in quoted equity shares, mutual funds and Non convertible debenture is measured at quoted price or NAV.        
• the fair value of investment in unquoted equity shares of National Stock Exchange (NSE) is measured by PORI Method which is corroborated using CCM Method.        
• the fair value of investment in unquoted equity shares other than National Stock Exchange (NSE) is measured by using Discounting Cash Flow (DCF) Method under 

market approach.        
• the fair value of level 3 instruments is valued using inputs based on information about market participants assumptions and other data that are available.        
• the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date.        
• All foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities are translated using exchange rate at reporting date.        
        
(iii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements

Level 1
Particulars

Financial Assets        

Investment in Equity Instruments 1,525.20   931.90   24.56   1,214.78   20.68   0.00 

Investment in Portfolio Management Services 273.39   -     -     102.00   -     -   

Investment in LLP -     -     0.00   -     -     0.00 

Financial Asset on Forward Contract -     0.32   -     -     -     -   

Investment in Non Convertible Debenture -     -     -     -     152.50   -   

Investment in Alternate Investment Fund -     275.55   -     -     108.14   -   

Investment in Mutual Fund  23.23   -     -     148.28   -     -   

Total Financial Assets 1,821.82   1,207.77   24.56   1,465.06   281.32   0.00 

As At 31 March 2025

Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

As At 31 March 2024

Level 1
Particulars

Financial Liabilities        

Financial Liability on Forward Contract -     -     -     -     0.64   -   

Total Financial Liabilities -     -     -     -     0.64   -   

As At 31 March 2025

Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

As At 31 March 2024

The Company assessed that fair value of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalent, bank balances, loans, trade payable and other nancial assets and liabilities except 
derivative nancial instruments approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments. The Company’s borrowings have been 
contracted at market rates of interest. Accordingly, the carrying value of such borrowings approximate fair value.       

(iv) Significant Estimates        
The fair value of nancial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques. The Company uses its judgement to select a variety of 
methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. For details of the key assumptions used and the 
impact of changes to these assumptions see (ii) above.        
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Balance as at beginning of the year 0.00   0.00 

Investment in Unquoted Equity Shares measured at FVTPL  20.99   -   

Change in value of investment in equity instruments measured at FVTPL (unrealised) 3.57   -   

Change in value due to sale of investment in equity instruments measured at FVTPL (realised) -     -   

Balance as at end of the year  24.56   0.00 

Reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurements
The following table shows a reconciliation from opening balances to closing balances for level 3 for fair values on a recurring basis.

(51)   Segment Reporting     
    
A. Basis for segmentation     
An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and 
expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components, and for which discrete nancial information is available. All operating segments’ operating 
results are reviewed regularly by the Company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their 
performance.     
     
Business Segments: The reportable segments have been identied on the basis of the Business vertical of the company. Operating Segment disclosed are consistent with the 
information provided to and reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). Accordingly, the Company has identied following business segments:     

  Reportable segments  Operations 

Ferro Alloys Manufacturing 

Real Estate Construction & Development 

Year Ended 31 March 2025

1. Segment Revenue (Net Sales / Income from each Segment)     

 a) Ferro Alloys  1,819.65 

 b) Real Estate -   

 c) Unallocated  -   

 Total   1,819.65 

Less: Inter Segment Revenue  -   

Net Sales / Income from Operations  1,819.65 

Particulars

B. Summary of Segment information as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025 is as follows:

Year Ended 31 March 2025

2. Segment Results (Profit (+) / Loss (-) before tax and interest from each Segment)     

 a) Ferro Alloys  194.29 

 b) Real Estate -   

 Total   194.29 

Add/Less:            

 (i) Finance Cost  (20.91)

 (ii) Other un-allocable expenditure (Net of un-allocable income) 685.09 

 (iii) Exceptional Items - Income/ (Expenses) -   

Profit / (Loss) before tax  858.47 

Particulars

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025Particulars
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As at 31 March 2025

3. Segment Assets     

 a) Ferro Alloys  963.00 

 b) Real Estate  197.94 

 c) Unallocated   3,555.20 

 Total Assets   4,716.14 

 Segment Liabilities     

 a) Ferro Alloys  238.07 

 b) Real Estate -   

 c) Unallocated   793.48 

 Total Liabilities  1,031.55 

Particulars

(` In Cr.)

Year Ended 31 March 2025

4. Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses     

 a) Metals & Minerals  14.90 

 b) Real Estate -   

 Total  14.90 

Particulars

Year Ended 31 March 2025

5. Capital Expenditure     

 a) Metals & Minerals 6.15 

 b) Real Estate -   

 Total 6.15 

Particulars

Notes: During the current year, the company entered into Real Estate business. Hence, for the  year ending 31 March 2025, the aforementioned segment is reported. 

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025

- Within India  762.00   760.98 

- Outside India  1,056.81   960.80 

Total  1,818.81   1,721.78 

Revenue from External Customers

C.  Geographical Information

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

- Within India 151.58   159.55 

- Outside India -     -   

Total  151.58   159.55 

Non-Current Assets

D. For product wise information refer note 35.     
     
E. The Company is not reliant on revenue from transactions with any single external customer.     
     
F. Revenue from Customer more than 10% of Total Revenue      
 The Company does not have any single external customer (31 March 2024: Two customer of ̀  505.44 Cr.)  from whom revenue is 10% or more of the total revenue of the 

Company. Accordingly, no disclosure under paragraph 34 of Ind AS 108 is required. 
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In accordance with "Ind AS 24- "Related Party disclosures" and The Companies Act, 2013 following personnel are considered as KMP

1 Mr. S. C. Agarwalla Chairman and Managing Director 

2 Mr. Subodh Agarwalla Whole-time Director and Chief Executive Ofcer 

3 Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla Chief Financial Ofcer 

4 Mr. Peddi Srinivas Non-executive Director 

5 Mr. Nand Kishore Agarwal Independent and Non-Executive Director (till 21 September 2024) 

6 Mr. Vivek Kaul Independent and Non-Executive Director 

7 Mr. P. K. Venkatramani  Independent and Non-Executive Director 

8 Mr. Naresh Kumar Jain Independent and Non-Executive Director 

9 Mrs. Sonal Choubey Independent and Non-Executive Director 

10 Mr. Aayush Khetawat Independent and Non-Executive Director (w.e.f. 14 August 2024) 

11 Mr. Ashok Bhandari Independent and Non-Executive Director (till 10 September 2023) 

12 Mrs. Kalpana Biswas Kundu Independent and Non-Executive Director (till 2 February 2024) 

13 Mr. Rajesh K. Shah Company Secretary 

(53) Related Party Disclosures  

(a) Name of the Related Parties and Description of Relationship:

Principle Place of Business% of Holding

I Holding Company  

1 Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private Limited (till 31 December 2023)  

II Subsidiary Companies

1 AXL-Exploration Private Limited 75%

2 Anjaney Minerals Limited 100%

3 Salanpur Sinters Private Limited 100%

4 Maithan Ferrous Private Limited 80% India

5 Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Limited 100%

6 Ramagiri Renewable Energy Limited 100%

7 Dadhichi Rail And Defence Operations Limited (w.e.f. 20 July 2024) 100%

8 Eloise Builders & Constructions Private Limited (w.e.f. 25 February 2025) 100%

III Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Particulars

(52) Assets Pledged as Security 
The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for borrowings are:

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

First Charge     

Current     

Trade Receivables  145.40   387.61 

Inventories  588.04   339.67 

Investment in Equity Shares  601.10   -   

   1,334.54   727.28 

Non-Current     

Property, Plant and Equipment  118.80   126.82 

   118.80   126.82 

Total Assets Pledged as Security  1,453.34   854.10 

Particulars

(` In Cr.)

Maithan Alloys Annual Report 2024-25170 Maithan Alloys Annual Report 2024-25 256



Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

IV Close Members of Key Managerial Personnel

1 Mrs. Sheela Devi Agarwalla Relative of Mr. S. C. Agarwalla

2 Mrs. Mitu Agarwalla Relative of Mr. Subodh Agarwalla

3 Mrs. Tripti Agarwalla Relative of Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla

4 Mr. Prahlad Rai Agarwalla Relative of Mr. S. C. Agarwalla

V Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel are able to exercise significant influence

1 BMA Foundation 

2 Super Bright Textiles & Finance Private Limited 

3 Subhas Chandra Agarwalla HUF (till 22 Januray 2025) 

     
      
b) Transactions during the year with Related Parties

Year Ended 
31 March 2025

Types of Transactions

1 Remuneration Paid      

 Mr. S. C. Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     5.82   8.70 

 Mr. Subodh Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     4.65   6.96 

 Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     5.70   4.90 

 Mr. Rajesh K. Shah  -     -     -     -     0.24   0.23 

       

2 Issuance of Securities      

 Mr. S. C. Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     -     3.16 

 Mr. Subodh Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     -     3.58 

 Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     -     1.21 

 Mrs. Sheela Devi Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     -     1.12 

 Subhas Chandra Agarwalla HUF  -     -     -     0.34   -     -   

 Mrs. Mitu Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     -     0.01 

 Mrs. Tripti Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     -     0.01 

 Mr. Prahlad Rai Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     -     3.06 

       

3 Cancellation of Securities      

 Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private Limited  -     17.27   -     -     -     -   

       

4 Sitting Fees      

 Mr. Peddi Srinivas  -     -     -     -     0.01   0.01 

 Mr. Nand Kishore Agarwal  -     -     -     -     0.01   0.02 

 Mr. Ashok Bhandari  -     -     -     -     -     0.00 

 Mr. Vivek Kaul  -     -     -     -     0.01   0.01 

 Mr. P. K. Venkatramani   -     -     -     -     0.02   0.01 

 Mrs. Kalpana Biswas Kundu  -     -     -     -     -     0.01 

 Mr. Naresh Kumar Jain  -     -     -     -     0.01   -   

 Mrs. Sonal Choubey  -     -     -     -     0.02   -   

 Mr. Aayush Khetawat  -     -     -     -     0.01   -   

Subsidiaries and Holding Key Management Personnel and
their Relatives

Enterprises influenced by KMP

Year Ended 
31 March 2024

Year Ended 
31 March 2025

Year Ended 
31 March 2024

Year Ended 
31 March 2025

Year Ended 
31 March 2024
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Year Ended 
31 March 2025

Types of Transactions

5 Sale of Materials      

 Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Limited  16.77   -     -     -     -     -   

 Maithan Ferrous Private Limited  78.36   0.14   -     -     -     -   

       

6 Sale of Capital Goods      

 Maithan Ferrous Private Limited  0.26   3.63   -     -     -     -   

       

7 Purchase of Materials      

 Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Limited  1.74   24.79   -     -     -     -   

 Maithan Ferrous Private Limited  88.28   0.05   -     -     -     -   

       

8 Purchase of Equity Shares      

 Dadhichi Rail And Defence Operations Limited  0.10   -     -     -     -     -   

       

9 Purchase of Preference Shares      

 Maithan Ferrous Private Limited  8.00   20.00   -     -     -     -   

       

10 CSR Expenses      

 BMA Foundation  -     -     14.00   6.44   -     -   

       

11 Loans / Advances given / (refund)      

 Anjaney Minerals Limited  105.64   -     -     -     -     -   

 Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Limited  7.20   0.50   -     -     -     -   

 Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Limited  -     (50.72)  -     -     -     -   

 Salanpur Sinters Private Limited  117.75   -     -     -     -     -   

 Ramagiri Renewable Energy Limited  (0.20)  0.20   -     -     -     -   

 Dadhichi Rail And Defence Operations Limited  132.63   -     -     -     -     -   

 Eloise Builders & Constructions Private Limited  41.54   -     -     -     -     -   

       

12 Rent Paid      

 Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private Limited  -     0.02   -     -     -     -   

 Super Bright Textiles & Finance Private Limited  -     -     0.12   0.12   -     -   

 Mrs. Sheela Devi Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     0.12   0.12 

 Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     0.05   0.03 

       

13 Security Deposit      

 Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     -     0.01 

       

14 Reimbursement of Expenses      

 Mr. P. K. Venkatramani   -     -     -     -     0.01   0.01 

       

15 On Behalf Expenses Paid      

 Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Limited  0.19   -     -     -     -     -   

Subsidiaries and Holding Key Management Personnel and
their Relatives

Enterprises influenced by KMP

Year Ended 
31 March 2024

Year Ended 
31 March 2025

Year Ended 
31 March 2024

Year Ended 
31 March 2025

Year Ended 
31 March 2024
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Year Ended 
31 March 2025

Types of Transactions

16 Interest Income      

 Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Limited  2.03   2.27   -     -     -     -   

 Salanpur Sinters Private Limited  0.91   -     -     -     -     -   

 Ramagiri Renewable Energy Limited  0.00   0.01   -     -     -     -   

 Anjaney Minerals Limited  0.70   -    - - - -

 Dadhichi Rail And Defence Operations Limited  0.83   -    - - - -

 Eloise Builders & Constructions Private Limited  0.31   -    - - - -

       

17 Dividend Paid      

 Mr. S. C. Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     4.50   0.75 

 Mr. Subodh Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     2.55   0.40 

 Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     0.89   0.16 

 Mrs. Sheela Devi Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     3.18   0.59 

 Mr. Prahlad Rai Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     2.84   0.06 

 Mrs. Mitu Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     0.01   -   

 Mrs. Tripti Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     0.01   -   

 Mr. Nand Kishore Agarwal  -     -     -     -     -     0.00 

 Mr. Vivek Kaul  -     -     -     -     0.00   0.00 

 Mr. P. K. Venkatramani   -     -     -     -     0.00   0.00 

 Subhas Chandra Agarwalla HUF  -     -     -     -     0.21   0.00 

 Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private Limited  -     10.36   -     -     -     -   

Subsidiaries and Holding Key Management Personnel and
their Relatives

Enterprises influenced by KMP

Year Ended 
31 March 2024

Year Ended 
31 March 2025

Year Ended 
31 March 2024

Year Ended 
31 March 2025

Year Ended 
31 March 2024
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c) Balance Outstanding :

As at
31 March 2025

Particulars

1 Remuneration Payable      

 Mr. S. C. Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     -     1.86 

 Mr. Subodh Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     -     1.12 

 Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     0.08   0.48 

 Mr. Rajesh K. Shah  -     -     -     -     0.01   0.00 

       

2 Other Payables      

 Maithan Ferrous Private Limited  0.34   -     -     -     -     -   

       

3 Loans and Advances       

 Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Limited  30.20   23.00   -     -     -     -   

 Ramagiri Renewable Energy Limited  -     0.21   -     -     -     -   

 Anjaney Minerals Limited  105.64   -     -     -     -     -   

 Dadhichi Rail And Defence Operations Limited  132.63   -     -     -     -     -   

 Eloise Builders & Constructions Private Limited  41.54   -     -     -     -     -   

 Salanpur Sinters Private Limited  117.75   -     -     -     -     -   

       

4 Other Receivable      

 Ramagiri Renewable Energy Limited  -     0.18   -     -     -     -   

 Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     0.01   0.01 

 Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Limited  0.72   -     -     -     -     -   

 Maithan Ferrous Private Limited  2.20   -     -     -     -     -   

 Anjaney Minerals Limited  0.63   -     -     -     -     -   

 Salanpur Sinters Private Limited  0.82   -     -     -     -     -   

 Dadhichi Rail And Defence Operations Limited  0.74   -     -     -     -     -   

 Eloise Builders & Constructions Private Limited  0.27   -     -     -     -     -   

 Mr. S. C. Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     1.40   -   

 Mr. Subodh Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     0.34   -   

Subsidiaries and Holding Key Management Personnel and
their Relatives

Enterprises influenced by KMP

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2024

d)  Compensation to Key Management Personnel

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

1 Short Term Employee Benets  16.42   20.79 

2 Post Employment Benets* -     -   

3 Other Long Term Benets* -     -   

  16.42   20.79 

Particulars

* Post employment benets and long term employee benets are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation for the company as a whole and hence segregation is not available.
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1 Dividend Paid       

 Mr. S. C. Agarwalla 4.50   0.75   -     -   

 Mr. Prahlad Rai Agarwalla 2.84   0.06   -     -   

 Mr. Subodh Agarwalla 2.55   0.40   -     -   

 Mr. Siddhartha Shankar Agarwalla 0.60   0.11   -     -   

 Mrs. Sheela Devi Agarwalla 3.18   0.59   -     -   

 Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private Limited -     10.36   -     -   

2 Issuance of Securities 

 Mr. S. C. Agarwalla -     3.16   -     -   

 Mr. Prahlad Rai Agarwalla -     3.06   -     -   

 Mr. Subodh Agarwalla -     3.58   -     -   

 Mr. Siddhartha Shankar Agarwalla -     3.76   -     -   

3 Cancellation of Securities 

 Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private Limited -     17.27   -     -   

4 Rent Paid 

 Mrs. Sheela Devi Agarwalla 0.12   0.12   -     -   

 Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private Limited -     0.02   -     -   

5 Remuneration Paid      

 Mr. S. C. Agarwalla 5.82   8.70   (1.40)  1.86 

 Mr. Subodh Agarwalla 4.65   6.96   (0.34)  1.12 

 Mr. Siddhartha Shankar Agarwalla 0.60   1.27   0.03   0.13 

 

Year Ended
31 March 2025

Type of Transactions
BalancesTransactions

Year Ended
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

II) Transactions during the year with the Parties

(e)  Entities in Promoter/Promoter Group Holding 10% or More Shareholding

I) Name of the Parties:

1 Mr. S. C. Agarwalla

2 Mr. Prahlad Rai Agarwalla

3 Mrs. Sheela Devi Agarwalla (w.e.f. 30 December 2024)

4 Mr. Siddhartha Shankar Agarwalla

5 Mr. Subodh Agarwalla ( Holding more than 10% till 30 December 2024)

6 Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private Limited (till 31 December 2023)

(f)    Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties       
All related party transactions entered during the year were in ordinary course of business and are on arm's length basis. Outstanding balances at the year-end is unsecured 
and settlement occurs in cash.      
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(1) Current ratio (in times)  4.07   13.00  -68.72% ( a )
          (Total current assets/Total Current liabilities)

(2) Debt equity ratio (in times)  0.15   0.00  140637.30% ( b )
 (Total debt/Shareholders equity)Total debt =  short term borrowings

(3) Debt service coverage ratio (in times)  31.71   0.00  29267771.79% ( c ) 
         (Earning for Debt Service = Net Prot after taxes+Non-cash operating expenses like
 depreciation and other amortizations + Interest + other adjustments like loss on sale
 of Fixed assets etc.) /(Debt service = Interest & Lease Payments+Principal Repayments)

(4) Return on Equity (%) 17.38% 11.43% 52.02% ( c )
        (Prot after tax (PAT)/Average Shareholders Equity)

(5) Inventory turnover ratio (in times)  3.92   5.63  -30.32% ( d )
         (Sales / Average Inventory)

(6) Trade Receivables turnover ratio (in times)  6.83   4.25  60.66% (e)
 (Net Sale/ Average Accounts Receivables) [Net Sales = Revenue from operations]

(7) Trade payables turnover ratio (in times)  12.32   8.69  41.73% ( f )
 (Net Purchases/Average Trade Payables)                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

                   
               

                                                                                    
Net  Purchase = Gross credit purchase- purchase return]

(8) Net capital turnover ratio (in times)  0.74   0.62  19.27% -
 (Net Sales/ Working Capital)[Working capital:  Current assets - Current liabilities]                                                                                                                                                 
[Net Sales: Revenue from operations]

(9) Net profit ratio (%) 35.18% 20.37% 72.73% ( c )        
 (Net prot after tax/ Sales)[Sales: Revenue from operations]

(10) Return on Capital Employed (%) 19.68% 14.38% 36.85% ( c )
 (EBIT/ capital employed)[EBIT = Prot Before Tax +  Finance cost][Capital Employed 
 = Tangible Net Worth + Total Debt + Deferred Tax Liability]

(11) Return on investment (%) 22.00% 17.94% 22.64% -
 (Interest income on xed deposit + dividend income +  prot on sale on investments 
 carried at FVTPL+fair valuation gain of investment carried at FVTPL) + fair valuation 
 gain of investment carried at FVTOCI) / (Current Investment + Non Current Investment                                                                                                                                               

 + Other bank balances)

Year Ended 31 
March 2025

Ratios

(54) Financial Ratios 
 
The ratios as per the requirement of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 are as below:

Year Ended 31 
March 2024

% Variance Reason for Variance 
for above 25%

(55) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments        
In the ordinary course of business, the Company faces claims and assertions by various parties. The Company assesses such claims and assertions and monitors the legal 
environment on an ongoing basis, with the assistance of external legal counsel, wherever necessary. The Company records a liability for any claims where a potential loss is 
probable and capable of being estimated and discloses such matters in its nancial statements, if material. For potential losses that are considered possible but not probable, 
the Company provides disclosure in the nancial statements but does not record a liability in its accounts unless the loss becomes probable.

The following is a description of claims and assertions where a potential loss is possible, but not probable. The Company believes that none of the contingencies described 
below would have a material adverse effect on the Company's nancial condition, results of operations or cash ow.

Notes 

(a) Increase in Borrowings and reduction in trade Receivables resulting in decline in current ratio

(b) Increase in Borrowings resulting in increase in Debt Equity Ratio.

(c) Due to increase in prot after tax as a result of increase in other Income

(d) Due to Purchase of Land and treatment of such land as an inventory

(e) Due to increase in Revenue from operation and decrease in Trade Receivable.

(f) Due to decrease in Average Trade payables.
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*Pertains to a case pending before the Hon'ble Meghalaya High Court relating to  retrospective electricity charges where the Hon'ble Court has reserved its order and the 
likelihood of any resultant nancial outow is assessed as remote.

The amounts shown above represent the possible estimates arrived at on the basis of available information. The uncertainties and timing of the cash ows are dependent on 
the outcome of different legal processes which have been invoked by the Company or the claimants, as the case may be and, therefore, cannot be estimated accurately. The 
Company does not expect any reimbursement in respect of above contingent liabilities.         

In the opinion of the management, no provision is considered necessary for the disputes mentioned above on the ground that there are fair chances of successful outcome of 
the appeals.        

(56) Composite Scheme of Arrangement         
The Board of Directors of Maithan Alloys Limited (“Company” or “MAL” or “Transferee Company”), at its meeting held on 5 May 2021 had considered and approved the 
Composite Scheme of Arrangement ("Scheme") amongst Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private Limited ("MKH" or "Demerged Company" or "Transferor Company") and Anjaney 
Land Assets Private Limited ("ALAPL" or "Resulting Company") and the Company and their respective shareholders and creditors under Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 
66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Subsequently the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 11 November 2021 had modied 
the Scheme to x the 'Appointed Date' of the Scheme as 1 November 2021 and related consequential changes thereof.         

Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench, (Hon’ble NCLT) vide its Order dated 1 February 2024 had approved the said Scheme with the ‘Appointed Date’ as 1 
January 2024. Consequent upon ling of the said Scheme with Registrar of Companies, West Bengal, the Scheme had become effective from 8 March 2024 with an  ‘Appointed 
Date’ i.e., 1 January  2024 in terms of the Order of Hon’ble NCLT. Accordingly, the effect of the scheme which is a common control transaction had been taken in the books of the 
Company.        

Upon the scheme coming into effect, assets and liabilities relating to the Real Estate and Ancillary Business of MKH demerged into ALAPL (“Part II of the Scheme”). The 
aggregate of excess assets over liabilities amounting to  ̀  45.44 Cr. relating to the Real Estate and Ancillary Business of MKH was transferred to ALAPL and the cancellation of 
the equity shares held by MKH in the paid-up capital of ALAPL was debited to Capital Reserve (“Capital Reserve due to Demerger”) w.e.f. 1 January 2024, being the Appointed 
date as per the NCLT Order. As a result of this demerger a Capital Reserve having a debit balance of  ̀  45.44 Cr. was created in MKH on 1 January 2024.        

Post Demerger the remaining business undertaking of MKH is amalgamated with MAL (“Part III of the Scheme”) and recorded for in the books of account of MAL as per “Pooling 
of Interest Method” as described in Appendix C of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 103- “Business Combinations” prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act 
2013 read with relevant rules thereunder.        

The Company had issued and allotted 1,72,70,176 fully paid-up equity shares of the face value of ` 10/- each in the proportion of the number of equity shares held by the 
shareholders of Transferor Company in the Transferor Company during the F.Y. 2024-25        

Further, pursuant to the Scheme existing shares of the Company held by the Transferor Company i.e. 1,72,70,176 fully paid-up equity shares of ` 10/- each, were 
cancelled/extinguished."      

Upon Amalgamation, the difference between the asset, liabilities, reserves including amalgamation adjustment account are recorded as Capital Reserve ( Amalgamation 
adjustment decit account) having debit balance of  ̀  1,440.32 Cr. in the books of the Company.        

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

a) Claims against the Company/ disputed liabilities not acknowledged as debt 

 - Income Tax 0.97   8.76 

 - Excise duty and service tax demand 3.59   11.60 

 - Goods and Service Tax 1.93   1.28 

 - Value Added Tax 0.13   0.11 

 - Electricity Charges* 5.19   -   

   11.81   21.75 

Particulars

(i) Contingent Liabilities:

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital commitments        

 - Property, Plant & Equipment 2.54   1.77 

 - Investments  88.00   -   

Total  90.54   1.77 

Particulars

(ii) Commitments:
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The details of assets, liabilities and reserve transfer from Demerged Company are as follows:        

(` in Cr.)

Investment in share of MAL - appeared in the books of MKH 1,471.58

Investment in share of MAL - Cancelled pursuant to amalgamation  (1,471.58)

Share Capital issued to MKH - Cancelled pursuant to amalgamation 17.27

Amalgamation Equity Share issued to the equity shareholders of MKH  (17.27)

Amalgamation Adjustment Account 19.03

Capital Reserve -  appeared in the books of MKH (1,557.21)

Capital Reserve due to Demerger 45.44

Securities Premium - appeared in the books of MKH  (1.75)

Retained Earnings -  appeared in the books of MKH 87.94

Statutory Reserve Fund - appeared in the books of MKH  (32.50)

Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income - appeared in the books of MKH  (1.27)

Capital Reserve ( Amalgamation adjustment deficit account) 1,440.32

Particulars

(57) ADDITIONAL REGULATORY DISCLOSURES AS PER SCHEDULE III OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013 :        

i) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.        

ii) There are no transactions with the Companies whose name are struck off under Section 248 of The Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956 
during the year ended 31 March 2025.        

iii) All applicable cases where registration of charges or satisfaction is required to be led with Registrar of Companies have been led. No registration or satisfaction is 
pending at the year ended 31 March 2025.        

iv) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Restriction on 
number of Layers) Rules, 2017.        

v) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that 
the Intermediary shall:        

 a)  directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (ultimate beneciaries) or       

 b)  provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneciary       

vi)  The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries), with the understanding that the Company shall:"        

 a)  directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneciaries); or       

 b)  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneciary.       

vii) The Company has not operated in any crypto currency or Virtual Currency transactions.        

viii)  During the year the Company has not disclosed or surrendered, any income other than the income recognised in the books of accounts in the tax assessments under 
Income Tax Act, 1961.        

        

(58) Disclosure as per Regulation 34 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013        

(i)  Disclosure relating particulars of the loan given as required under Section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013.        

Ramagiri Renewable Energy Limited Subsidiary Loan General Corporate Purpose  -     -   0.20  6.25%

Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Limited Subsidiary Loan Business Purpose  7.20  1.76% 0.50 15.63%

Anjaney Minerals Limited Subsidiary Loan General Corporate Purpose  105.64  25.78%  -     -   

Dadhichi Rail & Defence Operations Limited  Subsidiary Loan General Corporate Purpose  132.63  32.37%  -     -   

Salanpur Sinters Private Limited Subsidiary Loan General Corporate Purpose  117.75  28.74%  -     -   

Eloise Builders & Constructions Private Limited  Subsidiary Loan General Corporate Purpose  41.54  10.14%  -     -   

Binit Infratech Private Limited Body Corporate  Loan General Corporate Purpose  -     -   2.50  78.13%

KVJAY Ventures LLP Body Corporate  Loan General Corporate Purpose  5.00  1.22%  -     -   

Total    409.76 100.00% 3.20 100.00%

Name of the Company Relationship Nature of 
Transaction

Purpose For Year Ended 
31 March 2025

Percentage of 
Total Loan as on 

31.03.2025
For Year Ended 
31 March 2024

Percentage of 
Total Loan as on 

31.03.2024

(` In Cr.)
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(ii) Disclosure of guarantee given or security provided in connection with a loan to any other body corporate or person required under section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 
2013: None.        

(iii) Disclosure relating to amount outstanding at year end of loans and advances, in nature of loan, required under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, are given below:        

Ramagiri Renewable Energy Limited Subsidiary Loan General Corporate Purpose  0.21   -     0.21   0.21 

Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Limited Subsidiary Loan Business Purpose 30.20 30.20 73.24 23.00

Salanpur Sinters Private Limited Subsidiary Loan General Corporate Purpose  117.75   117.75   -     -   

Dadhichi Rail & Defence Operations Limited Subsidiary Loan General Corporate Purpose  132.63   132.63   -     -   

Anjaney Minerals Limited Subsidiary Loan General Corporate Purpose  105.64   105.64   -     -   

KVJAY Ventures LLP Body Corporate Loan Business Purpose  5.00   5.00   -     -   

Eloise Builders & Constructions Private Limited  Subsidiary Loan Purchase of Land  41.54   41.54   -     -   

Bihariji Auto Service Station Body Corporate Loan General Corporate Purpose  1.75   -     -     -   

Total    434.72 432.76 73.45 23.21

Name of the Company Relationship Nature of 
Transaction

Purpose

Maximum 
Amount 

Outstanding 
during the FY 

2024-25

As at 31 March 
2025

Maximum 
Amount 

Outstanding 
during the FY 

2023-24

As at 31 March 
2024

(iv) Details of investments:        
 Particulars of investments as required as per Regulation 34 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 186(4) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 have been disclosed in Note No. 8        

(59) The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benets during employment and post-employment benets received Presidential assent in September 
2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notied and the nal rules/ 
interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the 
Code becomes effective.        

(60) The Company has used accounting software including payroll accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the nancial year ended 31 March 2025 
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all the relevant transactions recorded in the accounting 
software, except in respect of the accounting software, the audit trail feature was enabled at the database level from 14 May 2024 and in respect of the payroll 
accounting software, the audit trail feature was not enabled at the database level throughout the year. Further, there is no instance of audit trail feature being tampered 
with that was noted in respect of accounting software including payroll accounting software. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the 
statutory requirements for record retention to the extent it was enabled and recorded in the respective years.        

(61) Recent accounting pronouncements 

 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) noties new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued 
from time to time. During the year ended 31 March 2025, MCA has notied Ind AS 117 - Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind As 116 – Leases, relating to sale 
and lease back transactions, applicable from 1 April 2024. The Company has assessed that there is no signicant impact on its nancial statements. On 9 May 2025, 
MCA noties the amendments to Ind AS 21 - Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates. These amendments aim to provide clearer guidance on assessing currency 
exchangeability and estimating exchange rates when currencies are not readily exchangeable. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
April 2025. The Company is currently assessing the probable impact of these amendments on its nancial statements. 

(62) (i) The gures appearing in nancial statements has been rounded off to the nearest Crore (Cr.), as required by general instruction for preparation of nancial 
statements in Division II of Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013.       

 (ii) "0.00" represent the gure below ̀  50,000 because of rounding off the gures in Crore.       

(63) The nancial statement for the year ended 31 March 2025 were approved by the Board of Directors on 28 May 2025.       

(64) Figures for the previous period/year have been regrouped and / or reclassied to conform to the classication of current period/year’s gures, wherever necessary.       

The accompanying notes 1 to 64 are an integral part of the nancial statements.   
In terms of our report attached   

For Singhi & Co.  
Chartered Accountants  
FRN.: 302049E  

Shrenik Mehta  
Partner  
Membership No.: 063769   

Place: Kolkata  
Date: 28 May 2025  

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

S. C. Agarwalla
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00088384

Subodh Agarwalla
Whole-time Director & CEO

DIN: 00339855

Sudhanshu Agarwalla
President & CFO

Rajesh K. Shah
Company Secretary
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REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

Opinion

Maithan Alloys Limited

Independent Auditor's Report

Basis for Opinion

Key Audit Ma�ers
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Descrip�ons of Key Audit Ma�er How we addressed the ma�er in our audit

Revenue Recogni�on 

Inventory Management
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Descrip�ons of Key Audit Ma�er How we addressed the ma�er in our audit

Existence and Valua�on of Investment

Informa�on Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements 
and Auditor's report thereon

Responsibili�es of Management and Board of Directors for the 
Consolidated Financial Statements
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Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements

Other Ma�ers
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Annexure A

Annexure B
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For Singhi & Co.

(Shrenik Mehta)
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Annexure “a”
To Independent Auditor’s Report

Sl. No. Name of the Company CIN Relationship with company Paragraph number in the 
respective CARO reports

Maithan Alloys Limited

Ramagiri Renewable Energy Limited

Anjaney Minerals Limited

AXL - Exploration Private Limited

Salanpur Sinters Private Limited

Maithan Ferrous Private Limited

Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Limited

Dadhichi Rail & Defense Operations Limited

Eloise Builders & Constructions Private Limited

L27101WB1985PLC039503

U40100MH1997PLC105323

U13100WB2008PLC130114

U14292OR1999PTC005643

U60100WB2012PTC188035

U27300WB2019PTC235113

U27101WB1991PLC051901

U30204WB2024PLC272194

U45201DL2006PTC148060

Holding Company

Wholly Owned Subsidiary

Wholly Owned Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Wholly Owned Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Wholly Owned Subsidiary

Wholly Owned Subsidiary 
(w.e.f July 20,2024)
Wholly Owned Subsidiary
(w.e.f Feb 25,2025)

(i)(c), (ii)(b), (iii), (vii)(b) & (ix)(e)

(vii)(b)

(iii) and (xvii)

(xvii)

(xvii)

(ii)(b)

(xvii)

(xvii)

(xvii)

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN.: 302049E

Shrenik Mehta
Partner

Membership No.: 063769
UDIN: 25063769BMMIRC3934  

Place: Kolkata
Date: 28 May 2025
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Annexure “B” to the
Independent Auditor's Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements under clause (i) of sub-sec�on 
3 of Sec�on 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Auditor’s Responsibility

Meaning of Internal Financial Control with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statement

Inherent Limita�on of Internal Financial Control with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements
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Opinion
Other Ma�ers

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN.: 302049E

Shrenik Mehta
Partner

Membership No.: 063769
UDIN: 25063769BMMIRC3934  

Place: Kolkata
Date: 28 May 2025
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025

ASSETS     
(1) Non-Current Assets     
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4  279.14   218.55 
(b) Capital Work in Progress 5  1.24   54.24 
(c) Goodwill 6  16.31   16.31 
(d) Intangible Assets 7  0.32   0.35 
(e) Right of Use Assets 8  16.48   17.46 
(f) Financial Assets    
 (i)  Investments 9  1,076.01   59.64 
 (ii)  Other Financial Assets 10  57.48   55.49 
(g) Non Current Tax Assets (Net) 11  12.61   12.78 
(h) Other Non-Current Assets 12  22.60   2.90 
Total Non-Current Assets   1,482.19   437.72 
(2) Current Assets     
(a) Inventories 13  1,085.60   349.76 
(b) Financial Assets    
 (i) Investments  14  1,980.19   1,728.19 
 (ii) Trade Receivables 15  143.35   387.47 
 (iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 16  21.80   40.84 
 (iv) Bank Balances (other than (iii) above) 17  37.09   36.74 
 (v) Loans 18  5.42   2.91 
 (vi) Other Financial Assets 19  30.38   444.66 
(c) Other Current Assets 20  62.92   39.73 
(d) Asset Held for Sale 21  -     0.06 
Total Current Assets   3,366.75   3,030.36 
Total Assets   4,848.94   3,468.08 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES     
Equity     
(a) Equity Share Capital 22  29.11   29.11 
(b)  Other Equity 23  3,716.97   3,112.79 
(C)  Non-Controlling Interest  9.09   0.99 
Total Equity   3,755.17   3,142.89 
Liabilities     
(1) Non-Current Liabilities     
(a) Financial Liabilities    
 (i) Borrowings 24  8.50   13.00 
 (ii) Lease Liabilities 25  3.12   3.22 
(b) Provisions 26  3.40   3.54 
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)  27  231.00   54.14 
(d) Other Non-Current Liabilities 28  0.06   0.08 
Total Non-Current Liabilities   246.08   73.98 
(2) Current Liabilities     
(a)  Financial Liabilities    
 (i) Borrowings 29  576.75   13.90 
 (ii) Lease Liabilities 30  0.10   0.09 
 (iii) Trade Payable  31  
 - Trade Payables (outstanding to micro and small enterprises)  1.52   5.44 
 - Trade Payables (outstanding to other than micro and small enterprises)  131.54   82.23 
 (iv)  Other Financial Liabilities 32  75.60   73.08 
(b) Provisions 33  0.57   0.24 
(c) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 34  9.05   21.17 
(d) Other Current Liabilities 35  52.56   55.06 
Total Current Liabilities   847.69   251.21 
Total Liabilities   1,093.77   325.19 
Total Equity and Liabilities   4,848.94   3,468.08 

As At 31 March 2024As At 31 March 2025Particulars 

(` In Cr.)

The accompanying notes 1 to 66 are an integral part of the nancial statements.
In terms of our report attached

For Singhi & Co.  
Chartered Accountants  
FRN.: 302049E  

Shrenik Mehta  
Partner  
Membership No.: 063769  

Place: Kolkata  
Date: 28 May 2025  

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

S. C. Agarwalla
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00088384

Subodh Agarwalla
Whole-time Director & CEO

DIN: 00339855

Sudhanshu Agarwalla
President & CFO

Rajesh K. Shah
Company Secretary

Notes
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025

Income     

Revenue from Operations 36  1,805.61   1,728.64 

Other Income 37  720.84   357.52 

Total Income   2,526.45   2,086.16 

Expenses     

Cost of Material Consumed 38 869.07   920.26 

Purchases of Traded Goods 39  191.25   61.79 

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock in trades and Work in Progress 40  (52.88)  (78.62)

Employee Benets Expenses 41  38.29   45.08 

Power Cost  42  414.95   499.84 

Finance Cost 43  21.64   1.63 

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 44  23.29   20.78 

Other Expenses 45  168.41   165.87 

Total Expenses   1,674.02   1,636.63 

Profit Before Tax and Exceptional Item   852.43   449.53 

Exceptional Item   -     -   

Profit Before Tax   852.43   449.53 

Tax Expenses     

(a) Current Tax 47  51.38   72.93 

(b) MAT Credit Entitlement 47  (1.52)  -   

(c) Deferred Tax 47  176.80   27.46 

(d) Tax for Earlier Year 47  (5.14)  0.18 

Total Tax Expenses   221.52   100.57 

Profit for the year (A)   630.91   348.96 

Other Comprehensive Income     

A (i) Items that will not be reclassied to prot or loss 

   -  Re-measurements of the Net Dened Benet Plans 48  0.26   0.19 

   -  Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income  -     6.25 

   (ii) Income tax relating to above items 47  (0.06)  (0.28)

Other Comprehensive Income for the year (B)  0.20   6.16 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (A+B)   631.11   355.12 

Profit attributable to:     

(a)  Owners of the Company   630.18   348.96 

(b)  Non-Controlling Interest  0.73   (0.00)*

Other Comprehensive Income Attributable to:

(a)  Owners of the Company  0.20   6.16 

(b)  Non-Controlling Interest  -     -   

Total Comprehensive Income Attributable to:     

(a)  Owners of the Company   630.38   355.12 

(b)  Non-Controlling Interest  0.73   (0.00)*

Earnings Per Share (of  10/- each)      `

(1) Basic (in ) 46  216.47   119.87 `

(2) Diluted (in ) 46  216.47   119.87 `

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025Particulars 

(` In Cr.)

Notes

*Refer Note 64(ii)

The accompanying notes 1 to 66 are an integral part of the nancial statements.
In terms of our report attached

For Singhi & Co.  
Chartered Accountants  
FRN.: 302049E  

Shrenik Mehta  
Partner  
Membership No.: 063769  

Place: Kolkata  
Date: 28 May 2025  

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

S. C. Agarwalla
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00088384

Subodh Agarwalla
Whole-time Director & CEO

DIN: 00339855

Sudhanshu Agarwalla
President & CFO

Rajesh K. Shah
Company Secretary
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2025

A.  CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES        

     Profit before tax 852.43   449.53 

     Adjusted for :         

     Depreciation and Amortisation Expense  23.29   20.78 

     Finance Cost  21.64   1.63 

     Interest Income   (19.35)  (52.41)

     Irrecoverable Balances Written Off 0.33   0.25 

     Liability no Longer Required Written Back  (2.59)  (11.05)

     Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts  (0.36)  6.43 

     Net Gain on Investment measured at Fair value through Prot & Loss  (829.72)  (177.52)

     Net Gain realised on sale of investments  184.04   (94.48)

     Unrealised Forex Loss / (Gain)  (2.74)  0.23 

     Net Fair value Loss/ (Gain) on Forward Contracts  (0.32) 0.64 

     Deferred Revenue Income  (0.03)  (0.03)

     Dividend Received   (45.63)  (9.13)

     Loss / (Gain) Sale of Asset Held for Sale  (0.08)  (0.33)

     Loss / (Gain) Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment  (0.36)  (2.40)

  (671.88)  (317.39)

    Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 180.55   132.14 

     Adjusted for :         

     Decrease / (Increase) Trade Receivables   244.10   29.05 

     Decrease / (Increase) in  Inventories   (735.84)  (46.12)

     Decrease / (Increase) in Other Current Assets (23.20)  12.73 

     Decrease / (Increase) in Other Current Financial  Assets  413.63   (437.46)

     Decrease / (Increase) in Other Non Current Assets  (19.71)  (1.53)

     Decrease / (Increase) in Other Non Current Financial Assets  (0.00)  12.02 

     Increase /(Decrease) in Trade Payable  48.31   (51.95)

     Increase /(Decrease) in Current Financial Liabilities 0.62   22.15 

     Increase /(Decrease) in Current  Liabilities  (2.49)  (6.64)

     Increase /(Decrease) in Provision 0.45   0.23 

   (74.13)  (467.52)

    Cash Generated from Operations    106.42   (335.38)

     Direct Tax Paid (Net of Refunds)  56.65   73.40 

     NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   (A)   49.77  (408.78)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES         

    Expenditure on Property Plant and Equipments & Capital work in Progress  (30.17)  (68.97)

    Proceeds from Sale of Property Plant and Equipments   0.68   12.94 

    Proceeds from Sale of  Asset Held for Sale 0.14   3.50 

    Purchase of Current Investments  (4,532.90)  (4,761.03)

    Sale proceeds from Current Investments  4,269.66   4,165.29 

    Purchase of Non Current Investment  (660.59)  (54.96)

    Sale proceeds from Non Current Investments  301.13   11.37 

    Loan Given  (2.51)  (2.55)

    Dividend Received  45.63   9.13 

    Interest Received  20.03   52.57 

    Net Investments in Bank Deposits  (2.06)  1,001.52 

    NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES  (B)  (590.96)  368.81 

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025Particulars 

(` In Cr.)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2025

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES         

    Interest Paid  (19.74)  (1.63)

    Dividend Paid   (26.20)  (17.47)

    Proceeds  from  Borrowings   568.19   10.50 

    Payment of Lease Obligations  (0.10)  (0.09)

    NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES    (C)  522.15   (8.69)

    Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  (19.04)  (48.66)

    Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year  40.84   89.50 

    Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year  21.80   40.84 

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025Particulars

(` In Cr.)

1    The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard       
2    Cash and Cash equivalent at the end of the year consist of: 

Cash on Hand 0.23   0.25 

Cheques in Hand -     0.05 

Balance with Banks        

- In Current Accounts  12.46   7.94 

- Debit Balances in Cash Credit Accounts 9.11   29.95 

- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months -     2.65 

   21.80   40.84 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025Cash and Cash Equivalents 

3. Ind AS 7 Cash Flow Statements requires the entities to provide disclosures that enable users of nancial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from nancial 
activities, including both changes arising from cash ows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the Balance 
Sheet for liabilities arising from nancing activities, to meet the disclosures requirement. This amendment has become effective from 1 April, 2017 and the required disclosure is 
made below. There is no other impact on the nancial statements due to this amendment.

This is the Cash Flow statement referred to in our report of even date.

The accompanying notes 1 to 66 are an integral part of the nancial statements. 
In terms of our report attached 

Borrowings - Non Current 13.00   2.88   (7.37)  -     0.32   -     8.50 

Borrowings - Current 13.90   565.31   -     (2.46)  20.89   (19.74)  576.75 

Lease Liabilities 3.31   (0.41)  -     -     0.32   -     3.22 

As at  31 March 
2025

Interest PaidParticulars As at 31 March 
2024

Cash Inflow / (Outflow) Interest ExpensesForeign Exchange
Movement

Equity Component of
Preference share

Borrowings - Non Current 8.00   5.00   -     -     0.08   (0.08)  13.00 

Borrowings - Current 8.41   5.50   -     -     -     0.01   13.90 

Lease Liabilities 3.40   (0.41)  -     -     0.32   -     3.31 

As at 31 March 
2024

Interest PaidParticulars As at 31 March 
2023

Cash Inflow / (Outflow) Interest ExpensesForeign Exchange
Movement

Equity Component of
Preference share

For Singhi & Co.  
Chartered Accountants  
FRN.: 302049E  

Shrenik Mehta  
Partner  
Membership No.: 063769  

Place: Kolkata  
Date: 28 May 2025  

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

S. C. Agarwalla
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00088384

Subodh Agarwalla
Whole-time Director & CEO

DIN: 00339855

Sudhanshu Agarwalla
President & CFO

Rajesh K. Shah
Company Secretary
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2025     

Capital 
Reserve

Capital 
Reserve on 
Demerger

Capital Reserve 
(Amalgamation 

adjustment 
deficit 

Securities 
Premium

Amalgamation 
Adjustment 

Reserve

Statutory 
Reserve 

Fund

Retained 
Earnings

Items of 
Other 

Comprehen-
sive Income Equity 

Component 
of 

Preference 
share

Non-
Controlling 

Interest
Total

Equity 
Instruments 
through OCI

Reserves and Surplus

Particulars

As At 1 April 2023 1,558.91   (45.44)  (1,444.75)  33.62   32.50   (19.03)  2,659.21   0.12   -     2,775.14   0.99   2,776.13 

Prot for the year -     -     -     -     -     -     348.96   -     -     348.96   (0.00)  348.96 

Other Comprehensive Income for the year 

- Remeasurement of net dened  -     -     -     -     -     -     0.14   -     -     0.14   -    0.14 
  benet plan

- Net change in fair value of  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     6.02   -     6.02   -    6.02 
  Equity investments

Transfer to Retained Earnings -     -     -     -     -     -     5.43   (5.43)  -     -     -    -   

Dividend -     -     -     -     -     -     (17.47)  -     -     (17.47)  -     (17.47)

Equity Component of Preference share -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -      -    -   

Purchase of additional Stake  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -   

Adjustment on account of composite -     -     4.43   -     -     -     (4.99)  0.56   -     0.00   -    0.00 
scheme of arrangement* 

As At 31 March 2024 1,558.91   (45.44)  (1,440.32)  33.62   32.50   (19.03)  2,991.28   1.27   -     3,112.79   0.99 3,113.78 

Prot for the year -     -     -     -     -     -     630.18   -     -     630.18   0.73 630.91 

Other Comprehensive Income for the year             

- Remeasurement of net dened  -     -     -     -     -     -     0.20   -     -     0.20   -  0.20 
  benet plan

- Net change in fair value of  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -   
  Equity investments

Transfer to Retained Earnings -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -    -   

Dividend -     -     -     -     -     -     (26.20)  -     -     (26.20)  -     (26.20)

Equity Component of Preference share -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     7.37   -     7.37   7.37 

Purchase of additional Stake -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -  -   

Adjustment on account of composite -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -    -   
scheme of arrangement* 

As At 31 March 2025 1,558.91   (45.44)  (1,440.32)  33.62   32.50   (19.03)  3,595.46   1.27   7.37   3,716.97   9.09 3,726.06 

Equity 
Attributable 
to Owners 

(` In Cr.)

b. Other Equity

a. Equity Share Capital

Equity Shares of  ` 10 each Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid 

Balance at the beginning of the reporting year  29.11   29.11 

Change in Equity Share Capital to prior errors - -   

Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 29.11   29.11 

Change in Equity Share Capital during the year - -   

Balance at the end of the reporting year  29.11   29.11 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025Particulars

*Refer note 57

The accompanying notes 1 to 66 are an integral part of the nancial statements.             
In terms of our report attached             

For Singhi & Co.  
Chartered Accountants  
FRN.: 302049E  

Shrenik Mehta  
Partner  
Membership No.: 063769  

Place: Kolkata  
Date: 28 May 2025  

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

S. C. Agarwalla
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00088384

Subodh Agarwalla
Whole-time Director & CEO

DIN: 00339855

Sudhanshu Agarwalla
President & CFO

Rajesh K. Shah
Company Secretary

Maithan Alloys Annual Report 2024-25 193



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

1. Corporate Informa�on

2. Statement of compliance and basis of prepara�on of Financial 
Statements
a. Statement of Compliance

b. Basis of Prepara�on

c. Func�onal Currency and Presenta�on Currency
`

d. Current and Non-Current Classifica�on 

e. Applica�on of New Accoun�ng Pronouncements

2.2 Basis of Consolida�on
a. Subsidiary

b. Non-Controlling Interest (NCI)

c. Loss of Control
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d. Transac�on Eliminated on Consolida�on

e. Business Combina�ons

f. Asset Acquisi�on

3. Summary of Material  Accoun�ng Policies

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

b. Deprecia�on

c. Leases

 As a Lessee

 Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

d. Intangible Assets and Amor�za�on
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A Summary of the policies applied to the Group's intangible 
assets is, as follows:
Intangible assets Amortization Method Used

Mining rights Over the period of respective mining agreement

Software Amortized on a straight-line basis over the useful life.

e. Goodwill

f. Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

g. Impairment of Non- Financial Assets

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

h. Government Grants and Subsidies

i. Foreign Currency Transla�on

j. Financial Instruments

(i) Financial Assets 

- Recogni�on and Ini�al Measurement

- Subsequent Measurement

- Financial assets at Amor�zed Cost: A 'financial assets' is 
measured at the amor�zed cost if both the following condi�ons 
are met:
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- Financial assests at FVOCI: A 'financial assets'  is measured at 
the FVOCI if both of the following condi�ons are met:

- Financial assets at FVTPL:

- Equity Instruments:

> Financial Assets-derecogni�on

> Impairment of Financial Assets

(ii) Financial Liabili�es
Recogni�on And Ini�al Measurement

Subsequent Measurement

 Financial liabili�es at FVTPL 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended 31 March 2025
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Financial Liabili�es- derecogni�on

Equity Instruments

Offse�ng Financial Instruments

(iii) Deriva�ve Financial Instruments

k. Inventories

l. Revenue Recogni�on
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(i) Revenue from Opera�on

 For Certain Contracts

a. Sale of Goods

b. Sale of Services

c. Revenue Recogni�on of Real Estate segment

c. Other Opera�ng Revenue

(ii)  Other Income

m. Employee Benefits 
a) Short-Term Benefits 

b) Defined Contribu�on Plans

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
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c) Defined Benefit Plans

d) Compensated absences

n. Taxa�on 

a) Current Tax

b) Deferred Tax

o. Borrowing Costs

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
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p. Cash and Cash Equivalents

q. Cash Flow Statement

r. Provisions, Con�ngent Liabili�es and Con�ngent Assets
 Provisions

 Con�ngent Liabili�es

 Con�ngent Assets

s. Earnings per share

t. Dividends

u. Segment Repor�ng

v. Excep�onal items

w. Key Accoun�ng Es�mates and Judgments

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Useful Economic Lives and Impairment of Other Assets

Con�ngencies and Commitments

Actuarial Valua�on

Fair Value Measurements and Valua�on Processes

Recogni�on of Deferred Tax Assets For Carried Forward Tax 
Losses

Assessment of Impairment of investments in subsidiaries
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Freehold 
Land

Factory 
Building

Administrative 
and Other 
Building

Plant and 
Machinery

Furniture 
and 

Fixture

Office 
Equipment

Vehicle Computers TotalParticulars

(` In Cr.)

Gross Carrying Value         

As At 1 April 2023  31.97   26.30   16.16   252.19   1.03   0.70   8.35   1.42   338.12 

Additions  4.33   -     5.37   4.37   0.11   0.10   0.41   0.28   14.97 

Acquired through Consolidation  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -   

Disposal/Deduction/Adjustment  6.14   1.86   -     0.50   -     -     0.22   0.02   8.74 

As At 31 March 2024  30.16   24.44   21.53   256.06   1.14   0.80   8.54   1.68   344.35 

Additions  3.30   6.52   0.04   74.79   0.06   0.16   0.49   0.33   85.69 

Acquired through Consolidation  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -   

Disposal/Deduction/Adjustment  2.51   -     -     0.48   -     -     0.21   -     3.20 

As At 31 March 2025  30.95   30.96   21.57   330.37   1.20   0.96   8.82   2.01   426.84 

Accumulated Depreciation         

As At 1 April 2023   -     6.44   5.47   88.90   0.72   0.39   3.60   0.99   106.51 

Charge for the year  -     1.62   0.82   16.07   0.05   0.09   0.82   0.29   19.76 

Disposal/Deduction/Adjustment  -     0.23   -     0.08   -     -     0.15   0.01   0.47 

As At 31 March 2024  -     7.83   6.29   104.89   0.77   0.48   4.27   1.27   125.80 

Charge for the year  -     1.67   0.87   18.49   0.07   0.12   0.84   0.22   22.28 

Disposal/Deduction/Adjustment  -     -     -     0.27   -     -     0.11   -     0.38 

As At 31 March 2025  -     9.50   7.16   123.11   0.84   0.60   5.00   1.49   147.70 

Net Carrying Value         

As At 31 March 2025  30.95   21.46   14.41   207.26   0.36   0.36   3.82   0.52   279.14 

As At 31 March 2024  30.16   16.61   15.24   151.17   0.37   0.32   4.27   0.41   218.55 

(I) The Group has not revalued any of its Property, Plant & Equipment during the Financial Year 2024-25.          

(ii)  As at 31 March 2025, Property, Plant and Equipment with net carrying amount of ` 118.80 Cr. (31 March 2024: ` 126.82 Cr.) are subject to rst charge to secure borrowings of the 
Company.(refer note 29)          

(iii)  For contractual commitment with respect to Property, Plant and Equipment. (refer note 56)          

(iv)  No indicator of impairment were identied during the current year, hence Property, Plant and Equipment including Capital work-in-Progress were not tested for impairment.          

(v) The Title deeds of the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name of 
the Company, except for the following which are not held in the name of the Company:          

Description of property Gross carrying 
value (` in Cr.)

Held in the name of
Whether promoter, 

director or their 
relative or employee

Period held
indicate range, 

where appropriate

Reason for not being held in the name of 
the Company. Also indicate if in dispute

Free Hold Land 1.38  Anjaney Alloys Limited 
(Former subsidiary of 

Maithan Alloys Limited)

No Since 2016 to 
till date

The title of asset transferred pursuant to the 
Scheme of Amalgamation in the year 2016 
and the Company is in process of transferring 
the title in the name of the Company.

As At 1 April 2023    2.50 

Add: Expenditure during construction for Plant and Machinery   54.01 

Less : Capitalised during the year   2.27 

As At 31 March 2024   54.24 

Add: Expenditure during construction for Plant and Machinery   28.55 

Less : Capitalised during the year   81.55 

As At 31 March 2025   1.24 

AmountParticulars

(5)  Capital work in progress

(4) Property, Plant and Equipment
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(` In Cr.)

(a) Amount of Capital work in progress as on 31 March 2025.

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

1. Projects in progress  0.97   0.27   -     -     1.24 

2. Projects temporarily suspended  -     -     -     -     -   

TOTAL  0.97   0.27   -     -     1.24 

(b) Amount of Capital work in progress  as on 31 March 2024

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

1. Projects in progress  52.55   0.91   0.78   -     54.24 

2. Projects temporarily suspended  -     -     -     -     -   

TOTAL  52.55   0.91   0.78   -     54.24 

Note:
(i) There is no Project/ Asset where actual cost of an asset/project has already exceeded the estimated cost as per original plan or actual timelines for completion of an asset/project 

have exceeded the estimated timelines as per original plan.

(7) Intangible Assets

Particulars Software Mining Rights Total

Gross Carrying Value    

As At 1 April 2023  0.47   0.42   0.89 

Additions -     -     -   

Disposal/Deduction/Adjustment -     -     -   

As At 31 March 2024 0.47   0.42   0.89 

Additions -     -     -   

Disposal/Deduction/Adjustment -     -     -   

As At 31 March 2025 0.47   0.42   0.89 

    

Amortisation and Impairment    

As At 1 April 2023  0.45   0.06   0.51 

Charge for the year 0.01   0.02   0.03 

Disposal/Deduction/Adjustment -     -     -   

As At 31 March 2024 0.46   0.08   0.54 

Charge for the year 0.01   0.02   0.03 

Disposal/Deduction/Adjustment -     -     -   

As At 31 March 2025 0.47   0.10   0.57 

    

Net Carrying Value    

As At 31 March 2025 0.00   0.32   0.32 

As At 31 March 2024 0.01   0.34   0.35 

Note:    
(i) Intangible assets under development - Nil     
(ii) No indicator of impairment were identied during the current year, hence intangible assets were not tested for impairment.     

Goodwill  16.31   16.31 

Less: Impairment on goodwill -     -   

   16.31   16.31 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025Particulars

(6) Goodwill
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(8) Right of Use Asset

The changes in the carrying value of Right of Use (ROU) assets are as follows:

Gross Carrying Value    

Balance at the beginning of the reporting year 22.41   22.41 

Additions -     -   

Deletion/ Adjustments -     -   

Balance at the end of the reporting year  22.41   22.41 

    

Accumulated Depreciation    

Balance at the beginning of the reporting year 4.95   3.96 

Depreciation charged during the year 0.98   0.99 

Deletion/Adjustments -     -   

Balance at the end of the reporting year 5.93   4.95 

Net Carrying Value  16.48   17.46 

Year Ended 31 March 24Year Ended 31 March 25
Particulars

 ROU_ Land  

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortization expense in the Statement of Prot and Loss. 

(i) Lease payments not included in measurement of lease liability
The expense relating to payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability is as follows:

Short-term leases 0.46   0.51 

Leases of low value assets -     -   

Variable lease payments -     -   

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025Particulars

(ii) Total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 March 2025 was ̀  0.41 Crore (31 March 2024 : ̀  0.41 crore)    
    
(iii) Maturity of lease liabilities    
    
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities of non-cancellable contractual commitments as on an undiscounted 
basis.    

Not later than 1 year 0.41   0.41 

Later than 1 year not later than 5 years 2.04   2.04 

Later than 5 years 3.86   4.27 

 Total  6.31   6.72 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025
Particulars

Lease payments

The Company does not face a signicant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufcient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as 
and when they fall due.

(` In Cr.)
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 (iv) The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities is as follows:

Non-current lease liabilities 3.12   3.22 

Current lease liabilities 0.10   0.09 

Total  3.22   3.31 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025Particulars

(v) The following are the amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss:

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 0.98   0.99 

Interest expense on lease liabilities 0.32   0.32 

Rent Expenses 0.46   0.51 

Total 1.76   1.82 

 Year ended 31 March 2025Particulars

(vi) Information about extension and termination options for the FY ended on 31 March 2025.

Number of leases  8 

Range of remaining term (in years)  1-20 

Average remaining lease term (in years)  12 

Number of leases with extension option  -   

Number of leases with termination option  -   

Leasehold LandParticulars

(vii) Disclosure on revaluation of Right of use Assets    
The Company has not revalued it’s Right of use assets  during the reporting period.    
    
(viii) The movement in lease liabilities is as follows:

Balance at the beginning 3.31   3.40 

Addition -    -   

Cancellation -     -   

Interest expense during the period 0.32   0.32 

Payment of lease liabilities 0.41   0.41 

Balance at the year end 3.22   3.31 

Current 0.10   0.09 

Non-Current 3.12   3.22 

2023-242024-25Particulars

(ix) The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to these leases is 9.5%. 

(` In Cr.)

 Year ended 31 March 2024

Maithan Alloys Annual Report 2024-25208 Maithan Alloys Annual Report 2024-25 256



Investments measured at Amortized Cost         

Investment in Government Securi�es (Quoted)         

7.30% GOI2053 Bond 100.00   -     40,00,000   -     38.96 

         

Investments measured through OCI (FVOCI)         

Investment in Unquoted equity shares (fully paid up)         

Ideal Centre Services (P) Ltd. 10.00   1,500   1,500   0.00   0.00 

         

Investments measured through PL (FVTPL)         

Share in Partnership Firm LLP         

Belved Property LLP (Share 18.15%) -      -     0.00   0.00 

Maiuni Ventures LLP ( Share 99.99%)** -     -     -     -     -   

         

Investment in Unquoted equity shares (fully paid up)         

National Stock Exchange of India Limited 10.00   57,99,000   50,000   931.90   20.68 

Bgauss Auto Private Limited 10.00   3,34,543   -     19.47   -   

Veira Electronics Private Limited 10.00   73,970   -     5.09   -   

Investments in Alternate Investment Fund         

ABAKKUS FOUR2EIGHT OPPORTUNITIES FUND -     1,99,990   -     19.60   -   

OISTER INDIA SCHEME V -     1,000   -     10.28   -   

Bharat Value Fund - AIF (Series iii) -     200   -     2.01   -   

Bharat Value Fund  -     9,000   -     87.66   -   

     1,076.01   59.64 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(9) Non-Current Investments

Face Value
(`)

No. of Shares

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

(i) Aggregate Cost of Quoted Investments    122.00   38.96 

 Market Value of Quoted Investments    119.55   38.96 

 Aggregate Amount of Unquoted Investments    956.46   20.68 

 Aggregate amount of Impairment in value of Investment    -     -   

(Refer Note 51 for information about fair value measurement and Note 49 for credit risk and market risk of investments)

Unsecured, Considered Good         

Security Deposits  54.99   54.99 

Bank Deposit with banks with original maturity of more than 12 months 2.49   0.50 

  57.48   55.49 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(10)  Other Non-Current Financial Assets

Advance Tax and TDS Receivables (Net of Provisions) 11.09   12.78 

MAT Credit 1.52   -   

  12.61   12.78 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(11)  Non-Current Tax Asset (Net)

(` In Cr.)
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Unsecured, Considered Good         

Capital Advances  22.50   2.78 

Prepaid Expenses 0.10   0.12 

  22.60   2.90 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(12)  Other Non-Current Assets

(Valued at Lower of Cost or Net Realisable Value)         

Raw Materials 285.46   181.47 

Raw Materials in Transit 0.42   0.77 

Work - In - Progress  2.00   1.47 

Finished Goods   62.91   79.39 

Finished Goods in Transit  74.77   67.43 

Stock-in-Trade 2.37   2.19 

Stock-in-Trade in Transit  61.02   -   

Slag and Waste 2.15   1.86 

Stores and Spares Parts  14.23   15.18 

Land  580.27   -   

   1,085.60   349.76 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(13)  Inventories

(i) Inventories have been hypothecated as security against certain bank borrowings of the Company except for Land Bank (Refer note 29 for details).          
(ii) During the Year, the Group acquired 459 Bighas of Land in the Union Territory of New Delhi for the purpose of real estate business.          

(` In Cr.)

Investments in Quoted Equity Share - FVTPL

Balmer Lawrie & Co. Limited -     1,73,400   -     4.13 

Bank of Baroda -     12,16,100   -     32.11 

Bank of India -     3,63,500   -     4.98 

Bharat Dynamics Limited 2,13,412   2,500   27.35   0.44 

Bharat Electronics Limited 56,02,000   10,72,000   168.80   21.60 

Canara Bank 14,84,700   5,93,083   13.21   34.46 

CARE Ratings Limited 1,84,032   1,84,032   20.35   20.60 

CIE Automotive India Limited -     1,03,100   -     4.76 

Cochin Shipyard Limited -     57,000   -     4.97 

DCB Bank Limited -     12,39,156   -     14.80 

EID Parry India Limited 3,08,500   3,08,500   24.24   16.83 

Engineers India Limited 14,30,013   14,30,013   22.96   28.88 

Escorts Kubota Limited 34,650   34,650   11.26   9.62 

Exide Industries Limited 15,000   15,000   0.54   0.46 

Gail (India) Limited 75,51,700   38,34,000   138.23   69.41 

Gujarat Alkalies & Chemicals Limited -     21,717   -     1.46 

HDFC Bank Limited -     10,00,300   -     144.83 

Hindustan Aeronautics Limited 4,65,778   66,678   194.58   22.18 

Housing & Urban Development Corporation Limited -     66,41,000   -     124.35 

ICICI Bank Limited -     2,01,000   -     21.98 

ICICI Lombard General Insurance Co. Limited -     32,860   -     5.54 

ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Co. Limited -     3,86,500   -     23.52 

Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited -     9,03,500   -     15.21 

Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited- Right Issue -     8,30,663   -     5.63 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(14)  Current Investments As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

No. of Shares No. of Shares
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Indian Bank -     2,30,500   -     12.00 

Ircon International Limited -     2,10,800   -     4.63 

JK Cement Limited 11,470   11,470   5.66   4.68 

Jubilant Pharmova Limited 1,435   3,12,166   0.13   17.79 

Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited 2,585   2,585   0.12   0.17 

KPIT Technologies Limited 2,500   2,500   0.33   0.37 

Life Insurance Corporation of India -     1,95,937   -     17.95 

Mahanagar Gas Limited 32,670   32,670   4.53   4.46 

Mishra Dhatu Nigam Limited -     94,800   -     3.74 

Natco Pharma Limited -     5,77,140   -     54.95 

NlC India Limited -     1,90,700   -     4.35 

Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited -     10,22,850   -     27.42 

Panama Petrochem Limited 4,45,000   4,45,000   16.94   14.80 

PCBL Limited 17,23,900   7,55,400   72.98   20.22 

Petronet LNG Limited -     92,950   -     2.45 

Poly Medicure Limited 5,000   2,500   1.12   0.40 

Poonawalla Fincorp Limited -     4,48,300   -     20.87 

Power Finance Corporation Limited 49,97,842   4,41,600   207.04   17.23 

Rail Vikas Nigam Limited -     6,62,230   -     16.75 

Railtel Corporation of India Limited -     4,53,100   -     16.48 

REC Limited 3,97,000   3,97,000   23.69   17.90 

Reliance Industries Limited -     76,850   -     22.84 

RITES Limited 15,54,606   13,70,943   34.73   91.00 

Shalby Limited -     6,77,926   -     16.21 

Shree Digvijay Cement Co. Limited 50,000   50,000   0.34   0.49 

SKF India Limited -     10,600   -     4.41 

Spandana Sphoorty Financial Limited -     47,610   -     4.00 

State Bank of India 13,22,817   16,32,900   102.06   122.85 

Steel Strips Wheels Limited 1,78,700   1,78,700   3.19   3.95 

Tata Consultancy Services Limited 1,400   4,800   0.50   1.86 

Union Bank of India -     22,04,800   -     33.84 

Varun Beverages Limited 25,000   3,000   1.35   0.42 

Vedanta Limited 3,40,500   20,000   15.78   0.54 

Bank Of Maharashtra 1,45,000   -     0.67   -   

Adani Enterprises Limited 5,000   -     1.16   -   

Adani Ports & Special Economic Zone Limited 7,500   -     0.89   -   

KCP Limited 12,54,855   -     25.26   -   

NTPC Limited 23,000   -     0.82   -   

The Ramco Cement Limited 1,91,932   -     17.21   -   

Adani Energy Solutions Limited 49,500   -     4.32   -   

Asian Granito India Limited 18,97,583   -     8.18   -   

Astra Microwave Products Limited  2,90,500   -     19.53   -   

Azad Engineering Limited 5,000   -     0.68   -   

BLS International Services Ltd. 25,000   -     1.00   -   

Computer Age Management Services Limited 3,000   -     1.12   -   

Central Depository Services (India) Limited 10,000   -     1.22   -   

Eveready Industries India Limited 7,09,098   -     21.50   -   

Greenply Industries Limited 3,09,773   -     8.87   -   

Guc Biosciences Limited 5,00,220   -     16.82   -   

INOX India Limited 5,000   -     0.50   -   

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(14)  Current Investments As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

No. of Shares

(` In Cr.)
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Jindal Saw Limited 3,46,000   -     9.35   -   

Jindal Stainless Limited 10,000   -     0.58   -   

Orient Paper & Industries Limited 17,65,640   -     4.03   -   

Ramkrishna Forgings Limited 2,15,300   -     16.65   -   

RPSG Ventures Limited 1,29,658   -     10.97   -   

S H Kelkar & Company  Limited 8,712   -     0.15   -   

Sammaan Capital Limited 15,69,775   -     16.81   -   

Sansera Engineering Limited 5,000   -     0.61   -   

Solar Industries India Limited  9,256   -     10.41   -   

SPICEJET LTD 14,03,542   -     6.22   -   

Star Health & Allied Insurance  Company Limited  81,000   -     2.89   -   

The New India Assurance Company Limited 88   -     0.00   -   

VST Industries Limited 1,12,336   -     2.96   -   

Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited 69,48,000   -     68.33   -   

Amara Raja Energy & Mobility Limited 1,650   -     0.17   -   

Apar Industries Limited 1,000   -     0.55   -   

NBCC (India) Limited 18,86,250   -     15.45   -   

NHPC Limited 86,000   -     0.71   -   

ABB India Limited  1,170   -     0.65  -

Bharti Airtel Limited 1,23,000   -     21.32  -

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 3,86,000   -     3.47  -

Healthcare Global Enterprises Limited 2,92,747   -     15.87  -

KEI Industries Limited  2,500   -     0.72  -

Larsen & Toubro Limited 1,375   -     0.48  -

Nuvama Wealth Management Limited 1,13,212   -     68.78  -

Techno Electric & Engineering Company Limited  5,000   -     0.50  -

Tega Industries Limited 6,000   -     0.89  -

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 65,000   -     0.83  -

VRL Logistics Limited  65,400   -     3.09  -

  

PMS         

Ambit Investment Advisors Private Limited -     -     -     5.62 

Buoyant Capital Pvt. Limited - Opportunities scheme -     -     10.39   8.68 

Carnelian Asset Management & Advisors Private Limited -     -     8.07   6.54 

ICICI Prudential Asset Management Company Limited - PIPE Strategy -     -     10.53   9.92 

Stallion Asset Private Limited -     -     87.03   47.80 

Uni Capital Private Limited -     -     10.03   8.24 

Vallum Capital Advisors Private Limited -     -     -     5.68 

SBI Funds Management Limited -     -     9.70   9.53 

360 ONE ND- PMS -     -     6.91   -   

Buoyant Capital Pvt. Limited -     -     18.69   -   

Carnelian Asset Management & Advisors Private Limited - Bespoke -     -     26.46   -   

Dynamic Equities Pvt. Ltd. - Small Cap -     -     0.40   -   

ICICI Prudential Asset Management Company Limited - Contra Strategy -     -     18.33   -   

Incred Asset Management Pvt Ltd -     -     35.34   -   

Motilal Oswal Wealth Management Limited -     -     20.47   -   

Sohum Asset Managers Private Limited -     -     11.04   -   

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(14)  Current Investments As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

No. of Shares
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As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(14)  Current Investments As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

Investments in Mutual Funds - FVTPL(Quoted)         

Quant Mid Cap Fund (OF-DG) -     4,96,105.63   -     11.57 

SBI Magnum Ultra Short Duration Fund Direct Growth -     1,33,715.85   -     74.11 

SBI Liquid Fund Direct Growth -     1,08,630.69   -     41.05 

Axis Fixed Term Plan 1,99,99,000.00   1,99,99,000.00   23.23   21.55 

Nippon India Arbitrage fund- Direct Plan - Growth 8,42,140.37   9,22,880.64   2.37   2.41 

SBI Short Term Debt Fund - Regular Plan - Growth -     29,444.05   -     0.09 

  

Investments in Alternate Investment F und - FVTPL (Quoted)         

IIFL Commercial Yield Fund 9,58,18,281.37   9,58,18,281.37   109.77   106.12 

Ace Lansdowne India Large Cap Fund -     14,890.65   -     2.01 

IKIGAI EMERGING EQUITY FUND - CLASS B2 9,78,699.83  -  8.69   -   

VQ FASTERCAP FUND 40,55,061.00  -  37.54  -

No. of Units

Investment in Debentures - FVTPL(Quoted)

IIFL Home Finance Ltd Series C12 BR  10,00,000  -  148.00   -     23.30 

IIFL Home Finance Ltd Series C14 BR  10,00,000  -  2.00   -     0.33 

Mindspace Business Parks Reit SR 2 BR  10,00,000  -  845.00   -     102.69 

Piramal Enterprises Limited BR  10,00,000  -  225.00   -     26.18 

     1,980.19   1,728.19 

No. of Debentures
Face Value

(`)

(i) Aggregate Cost of Quoted Investments     2,015.71   1,552.29 

 Market Value of Quoted Investments     1,980.19   1,728.19 

 Aggregate Amount of Unquoted Investments    -     -   

 Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investment    -     -   

Unsecured, Considered Good         

Trade Receivables 143.35   387.47 

Trade Receivables- which have credit impaired  11.89   12.25 

   155.24   399.72 

Less: Allowance for Trade Receivables which have credit impaired  11.89 12.25 

   143.35   387.47 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(15)  Trade Receivables

(` In Cr.)

(i) In determining allowances for credit losses of trade receivables, the Group has used the practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance based on a provision 
matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on 
ageing of the receivables and rates used in the provision matrix        

 (ii)   Trade Receivables have been hypothecated as security against bank borrowings of the Company (Refer note 29).         

 (iii)  There are no debts due by directors or other ofcers of the Group or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person or debts due by rms or private companies 
respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or a member.        

 (iv)  The Group considers its maximum exposure to credit risk with respect to customers as at 31 March 2025 to be  ̀  143.35 Cr. (31 March 2024: ̀  387.47 Cr.), which is the carrying 
value of trade receivables after allowance for credit loss        

 (v)  The Group's exposure to customer is diversied and only four customers contribute more than 10% of the outstanding receivable for an amount  ̀  98.46 Cr. as at 31 March 2025 ( 
four customers contribute more than 10% of the outstanding receivable for an amount ̀  239.93 Cr. as at 31 March 2024)        

( Refer Note 49 for credit risk of trade receivables.)          
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(vi) Ageing of Outstanding Trade Receivables and Credit Risk  as on 31 March 2025 arising there from due date of payment:

UnbilledNot dueParticulars Less than
6 months

6 months -
1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than

3 years Total

(I) Undisputed Trade receivables –considered good 11.50   111.53   7.67   6.88   0.03   5.74   -     143.35 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -   
 signicant increase in credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables –credit impaired   -     0.01   0.28   0.03   0.01   5.74   -     6.07 

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables–considered good  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -   

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which have -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -   
 signicant increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired  -     -     -     -     -     5.82   -     5.82 

Total  11.50   111.54   7.95   6.91   0.04   17.30   -     155.24 

 Less: Allowance for credit impaired  -     0.01   0.28   0.03   0.01   11.56   -     11.89 

 Total Trade Receivable  11.50   111.53   7.67   6.88   0.03   5.74   -     143.35 

(vii) Ageing of Outstanding Trade Receivables and Credit Risk  as on 31 March 2024 arising there from due date of payment:

UnbilledNot dueParticulars Less than
6 months

6 months -
1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than

3 years Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables –considered good 216.83   151.01   10.03   2.60   1.70   5.30   -     387.47 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -   
 signicant increase in credit risk 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables –credit impaired -     0.18   0.46   0.25   0.24   5.29   -     6.42 

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables–considered good -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -   

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which have -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -   
 signicant increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired -     -     -     -     -     5.83   -     5.83 

Total 216.83   151.19   10.49   2.85   1.94   16.42   -     399.72 

Less: Allowance for credit impaired -     0.18   0.46   0.25   0.24   11.12   -     12.25 

Total Trade Receivable 216.83   151.01   10.03   2.60   1.70   5.30   -     387.47 

Cash on Hand 0.23   0.25 

Cheques in Hand -     0.05 

Balance with Banks 

- In Current Accounts  12.46   7.94 

- Debit Balances in Cash Credit Accounts 9.11   29.95 

- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months -     2.65 

   21.80   40.84 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(16)  Cash and Cash Equivalents

(i) Cheques in hand are cleared subsequent to the year end.      

(ii) There are no restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalent as at the end of reporting period and prior period.       

Balance at the beginning of the year   12.25   5.83 

Add/(less): Expected credit loss provided / (reversed)   (0.36)  6.42 

Balance at the end of the year   11.89   12.25 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025Particulars

(viii) Movement in the allowance for Expected Credit Losses
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Current Account * 0.43   1.21 

Bank Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months and up to 12  months  24.22   34.34 

Bank Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months and upto 12 months (as margin money)  12.36   1.11 

Earmarked Unpaid Dividend Accounts 0.08   0.08 

  37.09   36.74 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(17)  Other Bank Balances (other than note 16 above)

* In one of the subsidiary - Impex Metals and Ferro Alloys Limited, Bank Balances in Current Account of Liquidator payable to nancial and operational creditors and the Company has no 
right, title and claim on same. 

Unsecured, Considered good         

Loan Receivable- Credit Impaired 3.63   3.21 

Less: Allowances for Bad and Doubtful Loans  (3.21)  (3.21)

Loans to Body Corporate 5.00   2.52 

Others -     0.39 

  5.42   2.91 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(18)  Loans - Current

(i) No Loans are due by directors or other ofcers of the Group or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person. Further, no advances are due by rms or private companies 
in which any director is a partner, a director or member.         

(ii)   Maithan Alloys Limited (Holding Company) has given loan to Body Corporate at interest rate of 10 % for business purpose & One of the subsidiary - Anjaney Minerals Ltd. has given 
loan to Body Corporate at interest rate of 8 %.         

Bank Deposits with original maturity of more than 12  months -     0.29 

Unsecured, Considered Good         

Financial Asset on Forward Contract 0.32   -   

Interest Accrued 2.75   3.42 

Staff Advance 0.41   0.33 

Receivable Against Sale of Investment with Portfolio Management Services  25.16  10.97 

Other Receivable** 1.74   -   

Advances for Purchase of Equity share*** -     429.65 

  30.38   444.66 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(19)  Other Current Financial Assets

**Based on the prot threshold as of 31 March 2025 , out of remuneration accrued to Directors of Holding Company upto 31 December 2024, remuneration amountirg to Rs. 10.63 
crores had been accrued in excess of the limits approved by the shareholders. This excess Remuneration was reversed during the quarter ended 31 March 2025. Subsequent to the 
reversal, the amount paid to directors of Holding Company which remained in excess of the permissible limits as of 31 March 2025 has since been refunded by the directors of Holding 
Company on 28 May 2025.         

***Advance of  ̀  429.65 Cr. Has been given for purchase of equity share of National Stock Exchange Ltd. 325000 No. of shares amounting to ̀  105.63 Cr. received on 27 April 2024 and 
1000000 No. of shares amounting to ̀  324.00 Cr. received on 30 April 2024.         

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
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Plant and Equipment -Wind Energy Converters * -     0.06 

  -     0.06 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(21)  Asset Held for Sale

*In one of the subsidiary company, Ramagiri Renewable Energy Limited (RREL), the management has to dispose off the existing plant which was classied as held for sale. 

Authorised Share Capital*         

Equity Shares of  ` 10/- each  16,76,45,000   167.65   16,76,45,000   167.65 

Preference share of  ` 10/- each 45,000   0.05   45,000   0.05 

         

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital          

Equity Shares of  ` 10/- each fully Paid Up 2,91,11,550   29.11   2,91,11,550   29.11 

Nos. 
Particulars

As at 31 March 2024

(22) Share Capital

As at 31 March 2025

Amount Nos. Amount

*Refer note 57

Unsecured, Considered Good         

Others  

Advance for Raw Materials & Stores 7.05   9.99 

Balances with Statutory/Government Authorities  37.03  18.99 

Export Incentives Receivable 0.74   0.24 

Income Tax Refundable 0.33   0.33 

Prepaid Expenses  12.66   8.31 

Other  Advances 5.11   1.87 

  62.92   39.73 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(20)  Other Current Assets

Notes:         

(i) No advances are due by directors or other ofcers of the Group or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person (except for advance disclosed in Note 19). Further, no 
advances are due by rms or private companies in which any director is a partner, director or member.

Equity Shares         

Outstanding at beginning of the year 2,91,11,550   29.11   2,91,11,550   29.11 

Add : Shares issued during the year* -     -     1,72,70,176   17.27 

Less: Share cancelled during the year* -     -     1,72,70,176   17.27 

Outstanding at end of the year 2,91,11,550   29.11   2,91,11,550   29.11 

Nos. 
Particulars

As at 31 March 2024

(i) Reconciliation of number of shares Outstanding at the Beginning and at the end of the Reporting Period.

As at 31 March 2025

Amount Nos. Amount

*Refer note 57

(ii) Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to Equity Shares        
The Holding Company has only one class of equity share having a face value of ̀  10/- per share with one vote per equity share. The dividend proposed by board of directors is 
subject to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive 
remaining assets of the Company, after settling off all outside liabilities. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
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1 Mr. Subhas Chandra Agarwalla  61,86,803  21.25%  44,13,427  15.16%

2 Mr. Prahlad Rai Agarwalla 31,60,295  10.86%  31,60,295  10.86%

3 Mrs. Sheela Devi Agarwalla  63,50,337  21.81%  21,16,584  7.27%

4 Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla  25,000  0.09%  14,69,789  5.05%

5 Mr. Subodh Agarwalla  25,000  0.09%  42,43,753  14.58%

6 Mr. Siddhartha Shankar Agarwalla  48,91,285  16.80%  48,91,285  16.80%

No. of Shares
Name of shareholders

As at 31 March 2024

(iii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company*

As at 31 March 2025

% of holding No. of Shares % of holding

*Refer note 57

 Promoter:        

1 Mr. Subhas Chandra Agarwalla  44,13,427   61,86,803  21.25% 40.18%

 Promoter Group: 

2 Mr. Prahlad Rai Agarwalla  31,60,295   31,60,295  10.86% 0.00%

3 Mrs. Sarita Devi Agarwalla  6,67,198   6,67,198  2.29% 0.00%

4 Mrs. Sheela Devi Agarwalla  21,16,584   63,50,337  21.81% 200.03%

5 Mr. Avinash Agarwalla  19,525   19,525  0.07% 0.00%

6 Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla  14,69,789   25,000  0.09% -98.30%

7 Mr. Subodh Agarwalla  42,43,753   25,000  0.09% -99.41%

8 Mr. Siddhartha Shankar Agarwalla  48,91,285   48,91,285  16.80% 0.00%

9 Mrs. Sonam Agarwalla  3,69,615   3,69,615  1.27% 0.00%

10 Subhas Chandra Agarwalla HUF#  3,44,275   -    0.00% -100.00%

11 Prahlad Rai Agarwalla HUF  1,07,668   1,07,668  0.37% 0.00%

12 Shankar Lal Agarwalla HUF##  7,040  - 0.00% -100.00%

13 Mrs. Mitu Agarwalla  9,533   10,000  0.03% 4.90%

14 Mrs. Tripti Agarwalla  9,379   9,600  0.03% 2.36%

   2,18,29,366   2,18,22,326  74.96% -0.03%

No. of Shares
Promoter & Promoters Group

(iv) Shares held by Promoter & Promoters Group*

As at 1 April 2024

No. of Shares
% of Total Shares % Change during

the Year

# Dissolved consequent upon execution of “Deed of Partition” between the members of HUF on 22 January 2025.         
## Dissolved consequent upon execution of “Deed of Partition” between the members of HUF on and 4 March 2025.         

As at 31 March 2025
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 Promoter:        

1 Mr. Subhas Chandra Agarwalla  12,58,250   44,13,427  15.16% 250.76%

 Promoters Group:        

2 Mr. Shankar Lal Agarwalla  9,55,865   -    0.00% -100.00%

3 Mr. Prahlad Rai Agarwalla  1,00,000   31,60,295  10.86% 3060.30%

4 Mrs. Sarita Devi Agarwalla  25,000   6,67,198  2.29% 2568.79%

5 Mrs. Sheela Devi Agarwalla  9,91,650   21,16,584  7.27% 113.44%

6 Mr. Avinash Agarwalla  19,525   19,525  0.07% 0.00%

7 Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla  2,59,650   14,69,789  5.05% 466.07%

8 Mr. Subodh Agarwalla  6,59,250   42,43,753  14.58% 543.72%

9 Mr. Siddhartha Shankar Agarwalla  1,80,000   48,91,285  16.80% 2617.38%

10 Mrs. Sonam Agarwalla  1,10,000   3,69,615  1.27% 236.01%

11 Subhas Chandra Agarwalla HUF -     3,44,275  1.18% 100.00%

12 Prahlad Rai Agarwalla HUF -     1,07,668  0.37% 100.00%

13 Shankar Lal Agarwalla HUF -     7,040  0.02% 100.00%

14 Mrs. Mitu Agarwalla -     9,533  0.03% 100.00%

15 Mrs. Tripti Agarwalla -     9,379  0.03% 100.00%

16 Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private Limited 1,72,70,176   -    0.00% -100.00%

  2,18,29,366   2,18,29,366  74.99% 0.00%

No. of Shares
Promoter Name

As At 1 April 2023

No. of Shares
% of Total Shares % Change during

the Year
As At 31 March 2024

(v) As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declaration received from shareholders regarding benecial interest, the above 
shareholding represent both legal and benecial ownership. 

(23) Other Equity

Capital Reserve         

 Balance at the beginning of the reporting period  1,558.91   1,558.91 

 Adjustment on account of composite scheme of arrangement* -     -   

 Balance at the end of reporting period 1,558.91   1,558.91 

         

Capital Reserve on Demerger         

 Balance at the beginning of the reporting period  (45.44)  (45.44)

 Adjustment on account of composite scheme of arrangement* -     -   

 Balance at the end of reporting period  (45.44)  (45.44)

         

Capital Reserve ( Amalgamation adjustment decit account)         

 Balance at the beginning of the reporting period  (1,440.32)  (1,444.75)

 Adjustment on account of composite scheme of arrangement* -     4.43 

 Balance at the end of reporting period (1,440.32)  (1,440.32)

         

Securities Premium          

 Balance at the beginning of the reporting period  33.62   33.62 

 Adjustment on account of composite scheme of arrangement* -     -   

 Balance at the end of reporting period 33.62   33.62 

         

Statutory Reserve Fund         

 Balance at the beginning of the reporting period  32.50   32.50 

 Adjustment on account of composite scheme of arrangement* -     -   

 Balance at the end of reporting period 32.50   32.50 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025Particulars
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(23) Other Equity

Amalgamation Adjustment Reserve         

 Balance at the beginning of the reporting period  (19.03)  (19.03)

 Adjustment on account of composite scheme of arrangement* -     -   

 Balance at the end of reporting period (19.03)  (19.03)

         

Retained Earnings         

 Balance at the beginning of the reporting period  2,991.28   2,659.21 

        Add: Prot for the year 630.18   348.96 

        Add: Other Comprehensive Income for the year     

 -  Re-measurements of the Net Dened Benet Plans 0.20   0.14 

 Add: Transfer from Equity Instruments Through OCI -     5.43 

 Adjustment on account of composite scheme of arrangement* -     (4.99)

 Less:  Dividend (26.20)  (17.47)

 Balance at the end of reporting period 3,595.46   2,991.28 

   3,715.70   3,111.52 

Equity Instruments Through OCI         

 Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 1.27   0.12 

        Add/Less: Other Comprehensive Income for the year -     6.02 

 Less: Transfer to Retained Earnings -     (5.43)

 Adjustment on account of composite scheme of arrangement* -     0.56 

 Balance at the end of reporting period 1.27   1.27 

   

Total Equity Attributable to Owners   3,716.97   3,112.79 

         

Non-Controlling Interest 

 Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 0.99   0.99 

 Less: Other Comprehensive Loss for the year 0.73   (0.00)

 Purchase of additional Stake  -     -   

 Equity Component of Preference Shares 7.37   -   

Total Non-Controlling Interest 9.09   0.99 

Total    3,726.06   3,113.78 

Proposed dividend on equity shares:         

Final cash dividend for the year ended on 31 March 2025: ` 6.00 per share (31 March  2024: ` 6.00)  17.47   17.47 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025Particulars

(i) Other comprehensive income accumulated in other equity (net of income-tax)      
The disaggregation of changes in other comprehensive income by each type of reserve in equity is shown below:      

As at 1 April 2023 0.12 

Equity instruments through other comprehensive income - net change in fair value 6.25 

Tax on above items (0.23)

Less: Transfer to Retained Earnings (5.43)

Adjustment on account of composite scheme of arrangement* 0.56 

As at 31 March 2024 1.27 

Equity instruments through other comprehensive income - net change in fair value -   

Tax on above items -   

Less: Transfer to Retained Earnings -   

Adjustment on account of composite scheme of arrangement* -   

As at 31 March 2025 1.27 

Equity instruments through other comprehensive incomeParticulars

*Refer note 57

*Refer Note 57
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(ii) The description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows:         

Capital Reserve*         
This reserve represents the difference between value of the net assets transferred  and consideration paid for such assets in the course of amalgamation and also relates to forfeiture of 
shares.         

Capital Reserve on Demerger*         
This reserve represents the aggregate of excess assets over liabilities amounting to ̀  45.44 Cr. relating to the Real Estate and Ancillary Business of Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private 
Limited was transferred to Anjaney Land Assets Private Limited  and the cancellation of the equity shares held by Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private Limited in the paid-up capital of 
Anjaney Land Assets Private Limited  was debited to Capital Reserve (“Capital Reserve due to Demerger”) w.e.f. 1 January 2024, being the Appointed date as per the NCLT Order. As a 
result of this demerger a Capital Reserve having a debit balance of ̀  45.44 Cr. was created in Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private Limited on 1 January 2024. Upon amalgamation of Ma 
Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private Limited with Maithan Alloys Limited, this reserve has been transferred to Maithan Alloys Limited.          

Capital Reserve ( Amalgamation adjustment deficit account)*         
Upon Amalgamation of Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private Limited with Maithan Alloys Limited, the difference between the asset, liabilities, reserves including amalgamation 
adjustment account are recorded as Capital Reserve (Amalgamation adjustment decit account) having debit balance of  ̀  1,440.32 Cr. in the books of the Company.         

Securities Premium*         
This reserve represents the premium on issue of shares and can be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.         

Statutory Reserve Fund*         
Statutory Reserve represents the Reserve Fund created under Section 45 IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly an amount representing 20% of Prot for the period is 
transferred to the fund. Upon amalgamation of Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private Limited with Maithan Alloys Limited, this reserve has been transferred to Maithan Alloys Limited.          

Amalgamation Adjustment Reserve*         
Upon amalgamation of Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private Limited with Maithan Alloys Limited, this reserve has been transferred to Maithan Alloys Limited.  This reserve  is the 
corresponding debit balance of the statutory reserves of the  transferor companies which was recorded in the Books of  Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private Limited.         

Retained Earnings*         
This reserve represents the cumulative prots of the Group and effects of remeasurement of dened benet obligations. This reserve can be utilized in accordance with the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013.         

Other items of other comprehensive income*         
Other items of other comprehensive income consist of re-measurement of net dened benet liability.         

Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)*         
This reserve represents the cumulative gains (net of losses) arising on the revaluation of equity instruments measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income, net of tax. The 
same shall be transferred to retained earnings when those instruments are disposed off.         

*Refer note 57         

Unsecured, Considered good         

Preference share capital classied as liability 8.50   13.00 

Related Party -     -   

  8.50   13.00 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(24)  Borrowings - Non-Current

Right, preferences and restrictions attached to shares         
(a) During the Financial Year 2022-23, in one of the subsidiary, Maithan Ferrous Private Limited  has issued one classes of preference Shares :         
(i) Series - A : 4,00,00,000 1% Non-Cumulative Preference Shares (NCPS) of  ̀  10/- each which are redeemable at par at any time at option of the company but not later than 10 

years from the date of allotment i.e. 29 March 2023. The NCPS shall carry the voting right as prescribed under the provision of Companies Act, 2013. Out of this 80% Investment 
has been by the Holding Company and 20% by the Minority Shareholders.         

During the year, in one of the subsidiary, Maithan Ferrous Private Limited has issued one classes of preference Shares :         
(ii) Series -B  : 2,50,00,000  1% Non-Cummulative, Non-Convertible Preference Share (NCPS) of Rs. 10/- each which are redeemable at par at any time at option of the company but 

not later than ten years from the date of allotment i.e. 8 January 2024. The NCPS shall carry the voting right as prescribed under the provision of Companies Act, 2013. Out of this 
80% Investment has been by the Holding Company and 20% by the Minority Shareholders.         

(b) During the Financial Year 2023-24, in one of the subsidiary, Maithan Ferrous Private Limited has issued one class of preference Shares :         
(i) Series -C  : 1,00,00,000  1% Non-Cummulative, Non-Convertible Preference Share (NCPS) of Rs. 10/- each which are redeemable at par at any time at option of the company but 

not later than ten years from the date of allotment i.e. 16 April 2024. The NCPS shall carry the voting right as prescribed under the provision of Companies Act, 2013. Out of this 
80% Investment has been by the Holding Company and 20% by the Minority Shareholders.         
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(` In Cr.)

Lease Liabilities 3.12   3.22 

  3.12   3.22 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(25)  Lease Liabilities - Non-Current

(i) The Company does not face a signicant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufcient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and 
when they fall due.

For Employee Benets 3.40   3.54 

  3.40   3.54 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(26)  Non-Current Provisions 

Refer note 48 for note on employee benets obligations.

Deferred Tax Liabilities         

- Property, Plant and Equipment  22.37   20.65 

- Right of Use Asset 3.34   3.57 

- Investments 207.73   32.65 

- Financial asset on forward contract 0.08   -   

Deferred Tax Liabilities 233.52   56.87 

         

Deferred Tax Assets         

- Employee Benets and Others 0.99   0.95 

- Financial Liabilities on Forward contract -     0.16 

- Provision for Expected Credit Loss 1.53   1.62 

Deferred Tax Asset 2.52   2.73 

Deferred Tax Liabilities / (Assets) (Net)  231.00   54.14 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(27)  Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

Property 
Plant & 

Equipment 
Particulars Right of Use 

Asset

Financial 
asset on 
Forward 
contract

Business 
Loss Investments

Employee 
Benefits and 

Others

Financial 
Liabilities on 

Forward 
contract

Provision for 
Expected 

Credit Loss
Total

(i) Movements in Deferred Tax Liabilities         

The Group has accrued signicant amounts of deferred tax. Signicant components of Deferred tax assets & (liabilities) recognized in the Balance Sheet are as follows:        

As At 1 April 2023   (22.01)  (3.80)  (0.77)  -     (1.19)  0.96   -     -     (26.81)

(Charged) / credited to :         

 - Prot or Loss  1.36   0.23   0.77   -     (31.55)  0.03   0.16   1.62   (27.38)

 - Other Comprehensive Income  -     -     -     -     0.09   (0.04)  -     -     0.05 

As At 31 March 2024  (20.65)  (3.57)  -     -     (32.65)  0.95   0.16   1.62   (54.14)

(Charged) / credited to :         

 - Prot or Loss  (1.72)  0.23   (0.08)  -     (175.08)  0.10   (0.16)  (0.09)  (176.80)

 - Other Comprehensive Income  -     -     -     -     -     (0.06)  -     -     (0.06)

As At 31 March 2025  (22.37)  (3.34)  (0.08)  -     (207.73)  0.99   -     1.53   (231.00)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
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Deferred Government Grant 0.06   0.08 

  0.06   0.08 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(28)  Other Non-Current Liabilities

Secured         

Loan repayable on demand          

From Bank         

 - Cash Credit from Bank  15.28   13.90 

 - Working Capital Demand Loan  15.96   -   

From Others         

     - Flexi Loan  280.00   -   

Buyers Credit   265.51   -   

   576.75   13.90 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(29)  Current Borrowings

(i) Cash Credit from Bank & Working capital demand Loan are secured by rst charge and hypothecation of raw materials, work in progress, nished goods, stores and consumables, 
receivables, bills, etc. These are further secured by rst charge on moveable and immoveable property, plant and equipment both present and future of the Company.          

(ii) None of the entities in the Group have been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or nancial institution or government or any government authority.         

(iii) Flexi Loan from Bajaj Finance Ltd. having sanctioned limit of ̀  300.00 Cr. and outstanding of ̀  280.00 Cr. are secured by hypothecation of Investment in Quoted Equity Shares of  ̀   
601.10 Cr.

(iv) The Holding Company has not utilised the Flexi Loan of Rs. 159.00 Cr for the purpose for which it has borrowed & it has been utilised for giving loan to subsidiaries.

Lease Liabilities 0.10   0.09 

  0.10   0.09 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(30)  Lease Liabilities

Creditors         

(i) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (Refer Note 31(iii)) 1.52   5.44 

(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than above  131.54  82.23 

  133.06   87.67 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(31)  Trade Payables

(i) Ageing of Outstanding Trade Payables as on 31 March 2025 from the Due Date of Payment

Not dueParticulars
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Undisputed dues - micro and small enterprises 0.35   1.17   -     -     -     1.52 

Undisputed dues - Others 103.65   22.57   1.78   1.56   1.98   131.54 

Disputed dues - micro and small enterprises -     -     -     -     -     -   

Disputed dues - Others -     -     -     -     -     -   

Total 104.00   23.74   1.78   1.56   1.98   133.06 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments
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(ii) Ageing of Outstanding Trade Payables as on 31 March 2024 from the Due Date of Payment

Not dueParticulars
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Undisputed dues - micro and small enterprises 4.23   1.21   -     -     -     5.44 

Undisputed dues - Others 62.27   13.39   2.33   0.51   3.73   82.23 

Disputed dues - micro and small enterprises -     -     -     -     -     -   

Disputed dues - Others -     -     -     -     -     -   

Total 66.50   14.60   2.33   0.51   3.73   87.67 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments

(iii) Information as required to be furnished as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) for the year ended 31 March 2025 and 
year ended 31 March 2024 is given below. This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identied on the basis of information available with the 
Company. The disclosures relating to Micro and Small Enterprises are as under:

(a) The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small suppliers as at the end of each accounting year:         

 - Principal 1.52   5.44 

 - Interest -     -   

(b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium -     -   
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

(c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid -     -   
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specied under
MSMED Act, 2006.

(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. -     -   

(e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such -     -   
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose
of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006).
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year.

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025Particulars

Financial Liability on Forward Contract -     0.64 

Creditors for Capital Goods 0.63   2.37 

Unclaimed Dividend* 0.08   0.08 

Interest accrued on Borrowings 1.90   -   

Other Liabilities         

     - Employee Dues (` 0.09 Cr. due to Related Parties. Refer Note No - 54) 3.24   5.97 

     - Liability for Expenses 69.75   64.02 

   75.60   73.08 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(32)  Other Current Financial Liabilities

* There are no amount due for transfer to the Investors Education and Protection Fund at the year end.

For Employee Benets 0.57   0.24 

  0.57   0.24 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(33)  Provisions - Current 

Refer note 48 for note on employee benets obligations.

Provision for Tax (Net of Advance Tax) 9.05   21.17 

 

  9.05   21.17 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(34)  Current Tax Liabilities
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Other Liabilities         

    - Statutory Dues 3.47   10.69 

    - Advance from Customer 41.59   29.29 

    - Others 7.50   15.08 

  52.56   55.06 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025(35)  Other Current Liabilities

(i)  Reconciliation of Revenue from sale of products with the contracted price

Contracted price 1,775.03   1,704.96 

Add/(less): Adjustment for variable consideration - (7.18)

Net Revenue Recognised from Contracts with Customers 1,775.03   1,697.78 

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025Particulars

(ii) Contract Assets

Trade receivables (refer note 15) 143.35   387.47 

As at 31 March 2023As at 31 March 2024Particulars

(iii) Contract Liabilities

Advance from Customer (refer note 35) 41.59   29.29 

   41.59   29.29 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025Particulars

Sale of Products   

Manufactured Goods   

 - Ferro Alloys 1,565.95   1,634.19 

 - Wind Power 1.18   1.53 

Traded Goods   

 - Ferro Alloys 98.48   42.85 

 - Manganese Ore 105.34   14.54 

 - Others 4.08   4.67 

Total of Sale of Products 1,775.03   1,697.78 

   

Sale of Services   

    Transportation Service -     -   

   

Other Operating Revenue   

 - Realisation from sale of Slag and Waste  29.74   29.64 

 - Export Incentives 0.84   1.22 

Total of Other Operating Revenue 30.58   30.86 

   1,805.61   1,728.64 

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025(36)  Revenue from Operations
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(iv) Geographical Information

Revenue from External Customers   

 - Within India 747.00   766.62 

 - Outside India 1,057.77   960.80 

   1,804.77   1,727.42 

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025Particulars

Interest Income measured at Amortised cost on:   

Loans 0.15   0.06 

Customers 0.55   0.20 

Bank Deposits 1.97   42.87 

Bonds 0.51   1.32 

Security Deposits 3.24   2.42 

Alternate Investment Fund 9.90   5.54 

Income Tax Refund 0.00   0.00 

Others 3.02   0.00 

Sub-total (A) 19.34   52.41 

   

Dividend Received 45.63   9.13 

Sub-total (B) 45.63   9.13 

   

Deferred Revenue Grant 0.03   0.03 

Fair value gain on investments measured at fair value through prot or loss 829.72   177.52 

Net Gain arising from Forward contract measured at fair value through prot or loss 0.32   -   

Net Gain realised on sale of Investments (184.04)  94.48 

Insurance Claim Received 0.01   0.70 

Prot on Sale of Property Plant and Equipment 0.37   2.40 

Prot on Sale of Capital Work in Progress -     -   

Prot on Sale of Assets Classied as Asset held for Sale 0.08   0.32 

Net Gain on Foreign Currency Transactions 6.54   4.30 

Liability no longer required Written Back 2.59   11.05 

Miscellaneous Income 0.25   5.18 

   720.84   357.52 

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025(37)  Other Income

Opening Stock 181.47   201.86 

 Add: Transfer from Stores and Spares Parts -     0.16 

 Add: Purchases  976.87   903.94 

   1,158.34   1,105.96 

 Less: Closing Stock 285.46   181.47 

 Less: Sale of Raw Material 3.81   4.23 

Raw Material Consumed 869.07   920.26 

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025(38)  Cost of Material Consumed

(i) Raw material purchases are net of sale of unusable raw materials.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
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Ferro Alloys 83.47   40.17 

Manganese Ore 102.76   12.37 

Others 5.02   9.25 

  191.25   61.79 

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025(39)    Purchases of Trade Goods

Stock at the end of the year   

Finished Goods 62.91   79.39 

Finished Goods in Transit 74.77   67.43 

Stock in Trade in Transit 61.02   -   

Stock in Trade 2.37   2.19 

Work-In-Progress 2.00   1.47 

Slag and Waste 2.15   1.86 

   205.22   152.34 

   

Less : Stock at the beginning of the year   

Finished Goods 79.39   49.45 

Finished Goods in Transit 67.43   19.47 

Stock in Trade in Transit -     -   

Stock in Trade 2.19   0.42 

Work-In-Progress 1.47   2.17 

Slag and Waste 1.86   2.21 

   152.34   73.72 

   

(Increase) / Decrease in stock of   

Finished Goods 16.48   (29.94)

Finished Goods in Transit (7.34)  (47.96)

Stock in Trade in Transit (61.02)  -   

Stock in Trade (0.18)  (1.77)

Work-In-Progress (0.53)  0.70 

Slag and Waste (0.29)  0.35 

   

Total (Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (52.88)  (78.62)

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025(40)  Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, stock in trades and Work in Progress

Salaries and Wages 25.73   27.02 

Directors' Remuneration  10.47   15.66 

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 1.32   1.15 

Staff Welfare Expenses 0.77   1.25 

  38.29   45.08 

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025(41)  Employee Benefits Expense

Electricity Charges and Duties 414.95   499.84 

  414.95   499.84 

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025(42)  Power Cost
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Interest Expense on:   

Borrowings 21.21   0.55 

Lease Liabilities 0.32   0.32 

Statutory Dues 0.01   0.76 

Others 0.10   -   

   21.64   1.63 

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025(43)  Finance Cost

(i) On adoption of Ind AS 116  'Leases', the Group has recognised Right of use of assets and created lease obligation representing present value of future minimum lease payments. The 
unwinding of such obligation is recognised as interest expense.  

(ii) Interest on Statutory Dues includes interest on Income Tax  ̀   Nil. ( FY 2023-24  ̀  0.71 Cr. )  

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer Note 4) 22.28   19.76 

Depreciation on Right of Use Asset (Refer Note 8) 0.98   0.99 

Amortisation of Intangible Assets (Refer Note 7) 0.03   0.03 

   23.29   20.78 

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025(44)  Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

Export Expenses 57.34   52.00 

Consumption of Stores and Packing Materials 11.43   12.58 

Packing and Forwarding Expenses 8.99   9.91 

Carriage Outward 8.39   13.81 

Rebate and Discounts 3.51   2.18 

Other Manufacturing Expenses 16.15   14.87 

Brokerage and Commission 2.95   3.60 

Bank Commission and Charges 2.51   1.40 

Vehicle Maintenance Expenses 0.01   0.05 

Repairs to Machinery 9.10   8.99 

Repairs to Building 0.64   0.71 

Repairs to Others 1.27   0.93 

Rates and Taxes 5.50   5.94 

Professional Charges 1.66   1.91 

CSR Expenses 20.53   13.30 

Irrecoverable Balances and Debts Written Off 0.33   0.25 

Insurance Premium 0.97   1.09 

Directors' Sitting Fees 0.08   0.07 

Rent  0.46   0.51 

Filing fees 0.18   -   

Auditors Remuneration      

 - Statutory Audit Fee 0.31  0.22 

 - Tax Audit Fee 0.03   0.02 

 - Other Services 0.14   0.17 

 - Out of Pocket Expenses 0.01   0.02 

Provision for Bad and Doubtful debt (0.36)  6.43 

Net Loss arising from Forward contract measured at fair value through prot & loss -     0.64 

Donation -     0.10 

Loss on Property, Plant & Equipment discarded 0.20   -   

Miscellaneous Expenses 16.08   14.17 

  168.41   165.87 

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025(45)  Other Expenses

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
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i) Prot attributable to ordinary Equity Holder (` in Cr.) 630.18   348.96 

ii) Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic EPS 2,91,11,550   2,91,11,550 

iii) Weighted average potential equity shares  -     -   

iv) Weighted average number of equity shares for Diluted EPS 2,91,11,550   2,91,11,550 

v) Basic Earnings Per Share (`) 216.47   119.87 

vi) Diluted Earnings Per Share (`) 216.47   119.87 

vii) Face value Per Equity Share (`) 10  10 

31 March 202431 March 2025(46)    Earnings Per Share (EPS)

(47) Tax  Expenses

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025

Current Tax:      

Income Tax for the year 51.38   72.93 

Charge/(Credit) in respect of Current Tax for earlier years (5.14)  0.18 

MAT Credit Entitlement (1.52) 

Total Current Tax 44.72   73.11 

Deferred Tax:      

Origination and Reversal of Temporary Differences 176.80   27.46 

Total Deferred Tax 176.80   27.46 

Total Tax Expenses 221.52   100.57 

(i)  Amount recognised in Profit or Loss

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025

The Tax (Charge)/Credit arising on Income and Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income is as follows:      

Deferred Tax      

On Items that will not be Reclassied to Prot or Loss      

 Remeasurement Gains/(Losses) on Dened Benet Plans 0.06   0.04 

 Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income -     (0.32)

 Total 0.06   (0.28)

(ii)  Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

(48)    Employee Benefit Obligations      

      

(i) Defined Contribution Plans      

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specied percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards Provident and Pension Fund and Employee 
State Insurance (‘ESI’) which are dened contribution plans. The Company has no obligations other than to make the specied contributions. The contributions are recognised in the 
Standalone Statement of Prot and Loss as they accrue.

The followings recognized in the Statement of Prot and Loss      

Contribution to Employee's State Insurance Corporation 0.20   0.20 

Contribution to employees provident fund  1.04   0.96 

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025Particulars
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(` In Cr.)

(ii) Defined Benefit Plans

Leave Encashment 0.07   0.54   0.03   0.50 

Gratuity 0.50   2.86   0.21   3.04 

Current
Particulars

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

Non-Current Current Non-Current

The dened benet plans expose the Group to a number of actuarial risks as below:      

(a) Interest Risk : A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability. However, this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of plan’s debt investments.      

(b) Salary risk : The present value of the dened benet plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in salary of the plan 
participants will increase the plan’s liability.      

(c) Longevity risk: The present value of the dened benet plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortalityof plan participants both during and after their 
employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability."      

(d) Ination risk: Some of the Group’s Pension obligations are linked to ination, and higher ination will lead to higher liabilities although, in most cases, caps on the level of 
inationary increases are in place to protect the plan against extreme ination.      

      

(iii)  Leave Encashment      

 The liabilities for leave encashment are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are 
therefore measured as the present  value of the expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the 
Projected Unit Credit Method. The benets are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of related 
obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in Other comprehensive income.     

A. Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

Present Value of the Plan Liabilities 0.61   0.54 

Fair Value of Plan Assets -     -   

Net Liabilities / (Assets) 0.61   0.54 

Particulars

B. Change in defined benefit obligations

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025

As At 1 April 0.54   0.45 

Current Service Cost 0.14   0.12 

Net Interest 0.03   0.02 

      

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss arising from changes in-      

 - Financial Assumptions 0.01   0.01 

 - Demographic Assumptions -     (0.00)

 - Experience Adjustments 0.03   0.16 

Immediate recognition of (gains)/ losses - other long term employee benet plans -     -   

Net impact on the Profit / Loss before tax 0.21   0.31 

Curtailment Cost -     -   

Benets Paid (0.14)  (0.22)

As At 31 March 0.61   0.54 

Particulars

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
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Demographic Assumptions      
Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set in accordance with the published rate under Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14)      
      
E. Sensitivity      
The sensitivity of  the dened benet obligation (DBO) to changes in the weighted key assumptions are:

Change in 
assumption

Particulars

Discount Rate 0.50%  0.58   0.65  0.50%  0.50   0.57 

Salary Escalation Rate 0.50%  0.65   0.57  0.50%  0.57   0.50 

Year Ended 31 March 2025  Year Ended 31 March 2024

Impact on DBO if 
rate increases

Impact on DBO if 
rate decreases

Change in 
assumption

Impact on DBO if 
rate increases

Impact on DBO if 
rate decreases

The above sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonable possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the year and may not be 
representative of the actual change. It is based on a change in the key assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivity to the assumption, the 
same method is used to calculate the liability recognised in the Standalone Balance Sheet. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not 
change compared to the previous year.      

C. Expense/(gain) recognised in the statement of profit and loss account

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025

Current service cost 0.14   0.12 

Net Interest 0.03   0.02 

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss arising from changes in-      

 - Financial Assumptions 0.01   0.01 

 - Demographic Assumptions -     (0.00)

 - Experience Adjustments 0.03   0.16 

Expense/(gain) recognised in the statement of profit and loss 0.21   0.31 

Particulars

D. Actuarial Assumptions

Financial Assumptions

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

Discount Rate (%) 6.92% 6.97%

Attrition Rate (%) 1.00% 1.00%

Salary Escalation Rate 6.00% 6.00%

Particulars

F.  Maturity
The dened benet obligations shall mature as follows:

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

Year 1 0.07   0.03 

Year 2 0.01   0.02 

Year 3 0.02   0.02 

Year 4 0.01   0.02 

Year 5 0.03   0.02 

Thereafter  1.46   1.41 

The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation 11 Years 11 Years

Particulars
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(iv)    Gratuity      

The Group provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. 
The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of 
years of service. 

A. Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

Present Value of the Dened Benet Obligation 3.36   3.24 

Fair Value of Plan Assets -     -   

Net Liabilities 3.36   3.24 

Particulars

B. Change in defined benefit obligations

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025

As At 1 April 3.24   3.20 

Current Service Cost 0.45   0.44 

Interest Expense/( Income) 0.21   0.21 

Net impact on Profit Before Tax 0.66   0.65 

      

Return on plan assets (excluding amount included in net interest expense)      

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss arising from changes in-      

 - Financial Assumptions 0.04   0.05 

 - demographic assumptions -     (0.01)

 - Experience Adjustments (0.30)  (0.24)

Net Gain recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (0.26)  (0.20)

      

Benets Paid (0.28)  (0.41)

Employer contribution -     -   

As At 31 March 3.36   3.24 

Particulars

C. Expense/(gain) recognised in the statement of profit and loss account

Year Ended 31 March 2024Year Ended 31 March 2025

Expense/(gain) recognised in the statement of profit and loss      

Current service cost 0.45   0.44 

Net Interest 0.21   0.21 

  0.66   0.65 

Expense/(gain) recognised in the Other comprehensive income      

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss arising from changes in-      

  - Financial Assumptions 0.04   0.05 

  - demographic assumptions -     (0.01)

  - Experience Adjustments (0.30)  (0.24)

  (0.26)  (0.20)

Particulars

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
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D. Actuarial Assumptions
Financial Assumptions

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

Discount Rate (%) 6.87% 6.97%

Attrition Rate(%) 1.00% 1.00%

Salary Escalation Rate 6.00% 6.00%

Particulars

Demographic Assumptions      
Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set in accordance with the published rate under Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14)
      
E. Sensitivity      
The sensitivity of  the dened benet obligation (DBO) to changes in the weighted key assumptions are:

Change in 
assumption

Particulars

Discount Rate 1.00%  3.20   3.54  1.00%  3.08   3.43 

Salary Escalation Rate 1.00%  3.53   3.21  1.00%  3.43   3.09 

Year Ended 31 March 2025  Year Ended 31 March 2024

Impact on DBO if 
rate increases

Impact on DBO if 
rate decreases

Change in 
assumption

Impact on DBO if 
rate increases

Impact on DBO if 
rate decreases

The above sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonable possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the year and may not be 
representative of the actual change. It is based on a change in the key assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivity to the assumption, the 
same method is used to calculate the liability recognised in the Standalone Balance Sheet. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not 
change compared to the previous year.

F.  Maturity
The dened benet obligations shall mature as follows:

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

Year 1 0.52   0.22 

Year 2 0.13   0.29 

Year 3 0.21   0.18 

Year 4 0.06   0.22 

Year 5 0.17   0.08 

Thereafter 6.94   7.05 

The weighted average duration of dened benet obligation 11 Years 11 Years

Particulars

(49)  Financial Risk Management       

The Group has a system-based approach to risk management, anchored to policies & procedures and internal nancial controls aimed at ensuring early identication, evaluation and 
management of key nancial risks (such as market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk) that may arise as a consequence of its business operations as well as its investing and nancing 
activities.Accordingly, the Group’s risk management framework has the objective of ensuring that such risks are managed within acceptable and approved risk parameters in a 
disciplined and consistent manner and in compliance with applicable regulations. It also seeks to drive accountability in this regard.

The Group's nancial liabilities includes Borrowings, Trade payables and Other nancial liabilities. The main purpose of these nancial liabilities is to nance the Group's operations. The 
Group's principal nancial assets include Investment, Trade receivables, Cash & cash equivalents and Other nancial assets that are derived directly from its operations.       

       

It is the Company's policy that derivatives are used exclusively for hedging purposes and not for trading or speculative purposes.       

Maithan Alloys Annual Report 2024-25232 Maithan Alloys Annual Report 2024-25 256



(` In Cr.)

Risk

Market Risk – Commodity Price Risk 
 

Market Risk – Price Risk 

Market Risk – Interest Rate 
 

Market Risk – Foreign Exchange 
 

Credit Risk 
 

Liquidity Risk 

Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Volatility in raw material prices signicantly 
impacts the  input costs  
  

Investments in equity securities  

Borrowings at oating interest rates  
  

Future commercial transactions and recognised 
nancial assets & liabilities not denominated in 
Indian rupee (INR)  
  
Investment,Trade receivables and other nancial 
assets measured at amortised cost  
  
Financial liabilities that are settled by delivering 
cash or another nancial asset.  

Commodity price tracking

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis

Cash ow forecasting 
Sensitivity analysis

Ageing analysis

Cash ow forecasts

Mitigated this risk by well integrated 
business model 
 

Continuous monitoring of performance of 
investments 

Exposure to oating interest rate debt is 
only to the extent of Working Capital 
requirement . 
 
Projecting cash ows and considering the 
forecast of uctuation in exchange rates 
 

Diversication of customer base 
 

Projecting cash ows and considering the 
level of liquid assets necessary to meet 
the liabilities 

Exposure to other market price risk

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

Investment in Equity Instruments - quoted 1,525.20   1,214.78 

Investment in Equity Instruments - unquoted 956.46   20.68 

Investment in Portfolio Management Services 273.39   102.00 

Investment in Bonds -     38.96 

Investment in LLP 0.00   0.00 

Investment in Mutual Funds 25.60   150.78 

Investments in Alternate Investment Fund 275.55   108.14 

Investment in Non-convertible Debentures -     152.50 

  3,056.20   1,787.84 

Particulars

The Board of Directors reviewed policies for managing each of these risks which are summarised below:-       

(a) Market Risk       

(i) Commodity Price Risk       

Alloy industry being cyclical in nature, realisations gets adversely affected during downturn. Higher input prices or higher production than the demand ultimately affects the protability. 
The Group has mitigated this risk by well integrated business model.        

(ii) Price Risk       

The Group's exposure to equity securities price risk arises from investments held by the Group and classied in the balance Sheet either at fair value through other comprehensive 
income or at fair value through prot and loss. Having regard to the nature of securities, intrinsic worth, intent and long term nature of securities held by the Group, uctuation in their 
prices are considered acceptable and do not warrant any management.       

Sensitivity      
The table below summarizes the impact of increases/decreases of the market prices of the Group’s investment:

Increase by 5% (2024: 5%)* 152.81   114.35   87.44   65.44 

Decrease by 5% (2024: 5%)* (152.81)  (114.35)  (87.44)  (65.44)

Impact on Profit Before Tax
Particulars

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

Impact on Other Equity Impact on Profit Before Tax Impact on Other Equity

* Holding all other variables constant
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(iii) Interest Rate Risk       
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ows of a nancial instrument will uctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's 

exposure to the risk of changes in the market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's borrowings obligations with oating interest rates. The borrowings of the 
Company are principally denominated in Indian Rupees linked to MCLR with oating rates of interest. The Company invests surplus funds in short-term deposits and 
mutual funds, some of which generate a tax-free return, to achieve the Company’s goal of maintaining liquidity, carrying manageable risk and achieving satisfactory 
returns.       

The exposure of the Company’s nancial liabilities to interest rate risk is as follows:

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

From Bank       

     - Cash Credit from Bank 15.28   13.90 

     - Working Capital Demand Loan 15.96   -   

From Others       

     - Flexi Loan 280.00   -   

Buyers Credit  265.51   -   

Total 576.75   13.90 

Particulars

Sensitivity      
Prot or loss is sensitive to higher/ lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates as below:

Interest expense rates – increase by 50 basis points (P.Y. 2024: 50 bps)* (2.88)  (0.07)

Interest expense rates – decrease by 50 basis points (P.Y. 2024: 50 bps)* 2.88   0.07 

31 March 202431 March 2025
Particulars

Impact on Profit Before Tax

* Holding all other variables constant

(iv) Foreign Currency Risk       
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ows of an exposure will uctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to 
the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's foreign currency denominated borrowings, creditors and debtors. This foreign currency risk is 
covered by using foreign exchange forward contracts.Since the Company has both imports as well as exports (exports are more than imports) the currency uctuation risk is 
largely mitigated by matching the export inows with import outows. Surplus exports are hedged using simple forward exchange contracts depending on the market 
conditions.The hedge mechanisms are reviewed periodically to ensure that the risk from uctuating currency rates is appropriately managed. The following analysis is based 
on the gross exposure as at the reporting date which could affect the Prot or Loss. The exposure summarised below is mitigated by some of the derivative contracts entered 
into by the Company as disclosed under the section on “Derivative nancial instruments”.  The Company does not hold derivative nancial instruments for speculative 
purposes. 

The  Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

USD
Particulars

 Trade Receivables  0.54   46.29   -     -     0.12   2.87 

 Trade Payables   0.40  34.42  -     -     -     -   

 Cash and Cash Equivalents  0.07   5.76   -     -     -     -   

 Buyers Credit  2.79   239.09   -     -     -     -   

Net Exposure (2.58)  (221.46)  -     -     0.12   2.87 

As At 31 March 2025

INR Euro INR AED INR

(Figures in Cr.)  
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Foreign Currency Sensitivity       
1% increase or decrease in foreign exchange rates will have no material impact on prot.       
       
(v) Derivative Financial Instruments and Risk Management       
The Company has entered into variety of foreign currency forward contracts to manage its exposure to uctuations in foreign exchange rates. These nancial exposures are 
managed in accordance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures.       

The Company uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its exposures in foreign currency arising from rm commitments and highly probable forecast transactions. Forward 
exchange contracts, designated under hedging, that were outstanding on respective reporting dates are as follows:       

In USD

Currency

US Dollar INR  0.14   -     11.55   0.31   -     26.30 

Euro INR  -     -     -     -     -     -   

Euro US Dollar  -     -     -     -     -     -   

As At 31 March 2025

In Euro In INR In USD In Euro In INR

Cross Currency Sell

The aforesaid hedges have a maturity of less than 1 year from the year end.
       
(b) Credit Risk       
Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in nancial loss to the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing 
with creditworthy counterparties, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of nancial loss from defaults. Credit risk on receivables is limited as almost all 
domestic sales are against advance payment or letters of credit (except sale made to PSU's) and export sales are on the basis of documents against payment or letters of 
credit.Financial instruments and cash deposits Credit risk from balances with banks and investments is managed by the Company’s nance department in accordance with 
the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus fund in portfolio management services, mutual funds, alternate investment funds  and direct equity are made only with 
approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty, if any. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an 
annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Company’s Board of Directors. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and 
therefore mitigate nancial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments. Balances with banks and deposits are placed only with highly rated 
banks/nancial institution. 

i) Financial Instruments and Deposits       
For Current Investments, counterparty limits are in place to limit the amount of credit exposure to any one counterparty. This, therefore, results in diversication of credit risk 
for the Group's mutual fund investments.       

With respect to the Group's investing activities, counter parties are shortlisted and exposure limits determined on the basis of their credit rating (by independent agencies), 
nancial statements and other relevant information. Taking into account the experience of the Group over time, the counter party risk attached to such assets is considered to 
be insignicant.       
       
None of the Group’s Cash and Cash Equivalents, including Time Deposits with banks, are past due or impaired. Regarding Trade Receivables, Loans and Other Financial Assets 
(both current and non-current), there were no indications as at 31 March 2024, that defaults in payment obligations will occur .       

USD
Particulars

Trade Receivables  1.46   121.37   0.00   0.06   0.10   2.24 

Trade Payables   0.23   19.51   -     -     -     -   

Cash and Cash Equivalents  0.02   1.79   -     -     -     -   

Net Exposure 1.25   103.65   0.00   0.06   0.10   2.24 

As At 31 March 2024

INR Euro INR AED INR

In USD

Currency

US Dollar INR  -     -     -     2.37   -     197.83 

Euro INR  -     -     -     -     0.31   27.71 

Euro US Dollar  -     -     -     -     0.01   0.69 

As At 31 March 2024

In Euro In INR In USD In Euro In INR

Cross Currency Buy
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ii)  Trade Receivables       
Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Trade 
receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally carrying 30 days credit terms. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The Group has no 
concentration of credit risk as the customer base is widely distributed both economically and geographically. The risk related to trade receivable is presented in note no. 15 

The credit quality of the Group’s customers is monitored on an on going basis and assessed for impairment where indicators of such impairment exist. The Group uses 
simplied approach for impairment of nancial assets. If credit risk has not increased signicantly, 12-month expected credit loss is used to provide for impairment loss. 
However, if credit risk has increased signicantly, lifetime expected credit loss is used. The solvency of the debtor and their ability to repay the receivable is considered in 
assessing receivables for impairment. Where receivables have been impaired, the Group actively seeks to recover the amounts in question and enforce compliance with credit 
terms.       

(c) Liquidity Risk       
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difculty in meeting obligations associated with nancial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another nancial 
asset.Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufcient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of 
committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due. Due to the nature of the underlying business, the Group maintains sufcient cash and liquid investments available to 
meet its obligation.       

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity position (comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities below) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of 
expected cash ows. The management also considers the cash ow projections and level of liquid assets necessary to meet these on a regular basis.       

(i) Financing Arrangements       
The Company had access to the following undrawn funding facilities at the end of the reporting period:       

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

Expiring within one year (bank overdraft and other facilities) 94.72   76.10 

  94.72   76.10 

Particulars

The bank overdraft facilities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice. Subject to the continuance of satisfactory credit ratings, the bank 
loan facilities in INR may be drawn at any time.       

(ii) Exposure to Liquidity Risk       
The Group remains committed to maintaining a healthy liquidity, net debt to equity ratio, deleveraging and strengthening the nancial position. The maturity prole of the 
Group’s nancial liabilities based on the remaining period from the date of Balance Sheet to the contractual maturity date is given in the table below. The gures reect the 
contractual undiscounted cash obligation of the Group.       

As At 31 March 2025       

Borrowings 576.75   -     -     576.75 

Lease Liabilities 0.41   2.04   3.86   6.31 

Derivative Financial Liabilities -     -     -     -   

Trade Payables 133.06   -     -     133.06 

Other Financial Liabilities ** 75.60   -     -     75.60 

Total 785.82   2.04   3.86   791.72 

Less than 1 yearParticulars
Above 1 year and
less than 5 years

> 5 years Total

** Includes other non-current and current nancial liabilities.

As At 31 March 2024       

Borrowings 13.90   -     -     13.90 

Lease Liabilities 0.41   2.04   4.27   6.72 

Derivative Financial Liabilities 0.64   -     -     0.64 

Trade Payables 87.67   -     -     87.67 

Other Financial Liabilities ** 72.43   -     -     72.43 

Total 175.05   2.04   4.27   181.36 

Less than 1 yearParticulars
Above 1 year and
less than 5 years

> 5 years Total
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(50)  Capital Management        
The Group’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and provide 
adequate return to shareholders through continuing growth. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from previous year.The Group's capital management is intended 
to create value for shareholders by facilitating the meeting of long-term and short-term goals of the Group. The Group sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual 
business and long-term operating plans which include capital and other strategic investments.The funding requirements are met through a mixture of equity, internal fund 
generation and borrowings. The Group’s policy is to use current and non-current borrowings to meet anticipated funding requirements.        

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt to equity ratio which is net debt divided by total equity. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital 
requirements. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue 
new shares .        

(i) The Net Debt to Equity at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

(I) Final dividend paid for the year ended 31 March 2024 of ` 6.00 17.47   17.47 
(31 March 2023 – ` 6.00) per fully paid share

        

(ii) First Interim dividend paid for the year ended 31 March 2025 of ` 3.00  8.73   -   
(31 March 2024 –  ` Nil.) per fully paid share

(iii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period        

 The Board of directors have recommended dividend of ` 6.00 17.47   17.47 
for the year ended 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024: ` 6.00) per fully paid up equity shares of ` 10.00 each.
 This proposed dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.

(iv) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period. 20.38   -   
The Board of directors has declared  second interim dividend of ` 7.00 for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(31 March 2024: ` Nil) per fully paid up equity shares of ` 10.00 each at their meeting held on 28 May 2025.

Particulars

Dividends Paid and Proposed

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

Long-Term Lease Liabilities 3.12   3.22 

Short-Term Borrowings and Current Maturities of Lease Liabilities 576.85   13.99 

Total Borrowings (a) 579.97   17.21 

Less:         

Cash and Cash Equivalents  21.80   40.84 

Current Investments  1,980.19   1,728.19 

Total Cash (b) 2,001.99   1,769.03 

        

Net Debt (surplus) (c = a-b) (1,422.02)  (1,751.82)

Equity Share Capital 29.11   29.11 

Other Equity 3,716.97   3,112.79 

Non Controlling Interest 9.09   0.99 

Total Equity (as per Balance Sheet) (d) 3,755.17   3,142.89 

Net Debt to Equity (c/d) (0.38)  (0.56) 

Particulars
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(51) Disclosures on Financial Instruments        
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the nancial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) 
measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the nancial statements.         

The details of material accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in 
respect of each class of nancial asset, nancial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 3 to the nancial statements.        

Categories of Financial Instruments

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

Financial Assets        

a) Measured at Amortised Cost        

 i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 16  21.80   40.84 

 ii) Other Bank Balances 17  37.09   36.74 

 iii) Trade Receivables 15  143.35   387.47 

 iv) Other Financial Assets 10 & 19  87.54   500.15 

 v) Loans 18  5.42   2.91 

 vi) Bonds 9  -     38.96 

 Sub-Total  295.20   1,007.07 

b) Measured at Fair Value through OCI (FVOCI) 

 i) Investment in Unquoted Equity Shares                   9  0.00   0.00 

 Sub-Total  0.00   0.00 

c) Measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)        

 i) Investment in Quoted Equity Shares 14  1,525.20   1,214.78 

 ii) Investment in Portfolio Management Services 14  273.39   102.00 

 iii) Investment in Unquoted Equity Shares                   9  956.46   20.68 

 iv) Investment in Mutual Funds 14  25.60   150.78 

 v) Investments in Alternate Investment Fund 9 & 14  275.55   108.14 

 vi) Investment in Non-convertible Debentures 14  -     152.50 

 vii) Investment in LLP Firm 9  0.00   0.00 

 Sub-Total   3,056.20   1,748.88 

d) Derivatives Measured at Fair Value        

 i) Derivative Instruments 19  0.32   -   

 Sub-Total  0.32   -   

 Total Financial Assets  3,351.72   2,755.95 

Financial Liabilities        

a) Measured at Amortised Cost        

 i)  Borrowings  29  576.75   13.90 

 ii)  Lease Liabilities 25 & 30  3.22   3.31 

 iii)  Trade Payables 31  133.06   87.67 

 iv)  Other Financial Liabilities 32  75.60   72.44 

 Sub-Total   788.63   177.32 

b) Derivatives Measured at Fair Value        

 i) Derivative Instruments 32  -     0.64 

 Sub-Total -    -  0.64 

 Total Financial Liabilities   788.63   177.96 

Particulars Note
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Level 1
Particulars

Financial Liabilities        

Financial Liability on Forward Contract -     -     -     -     0.64   -   

Total Financial Liabilities -     -     -     -     0.64   -   

As At 31 March 2025

Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

As At 31 March 2024

Level 1
Particulars

Financial Assets        

Investment in Equity Instruments 1,525.20   931.90   24.56   1,214.78   20.68   0.00 

Investment in Portfolio Management Services 273.39   -     -     102.00   -     -   

Investment in LLP -     -     0.00   -     -     0.00 

Financial Asset on Forward Contract -     0.32   -     -     -     -   

Investment in Non Convertible Debenture -     -     -     -     152.50   -   

Investment in Alternate Investment Fund -     275.55   -     -     108.14   -   

Investment in Mutual Fund  25.60   -     -     150.78   -     -   

Total Financial Assets 1,824.19   1,207.77   24.56   1,467.56   281.32   0.00 

As At 31 March 2025

Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

As At 31 March 2024

The Group assessed that fair value of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalent, bank balances, loans, trade payable and other nancial assets and liabilities except 
derivative nancial instruments approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments. The Company’s borrowings have been 
contracted at market rate of interest. Accordingly, the carrying value of such borrowings approximate fair value.

(i) Fair Value Hierarchy        
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the nancial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) 
measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the nancial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining 
fair value, the Group has classied its nancial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard.         
        
Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes nancial instruments measured using quoted prices as at the reporting date.        
        
Level 2: The fair value of nancial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market 
data and rely as little as possible on entity-specic estimates. If all signicant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.        

Level 3: If one or more of the signicant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.         
        
(ii) Valuation Methodology        
Specic valuation techniques used to value nancial instruments include:        
• the fair value of investment in quoted equity shares, mutual funds and Non convertible debenture is measured at quoted price or NAV.        
• the fair value of investment in unquoted equity shares of National Stock Exchange (NSE) is measured by PORI Method which is corroborated using CCM Method.        
• the fair value of investment in unquoted equity shares other than National Stock Exchange (NSE) is measured by using Discounting Cash Flow (DCF) Method under 

market approach.        
• the fair value of level 3 instruments is valued using inputs based on information about market participants assumptions and other data that are available.        
• the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date.        
• All foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities are translated using exchange rate at reporting date.        

(iii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements
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(iv) Significant Estimates        
The fair value of nancial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select a variety of 
methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. For details of the key assumptions used and the 
impact of changes to these assumptions see (ii) above.        

Reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurements        
The following table shows a reconciliation from opening balances to closing balances for level 3 for fair values on a recurring basis.

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

Balance as at beginning of the year 0.00   0.00 

Investment in Unquoted Equity Shares measured at FVTPL 20.99   -   

  Change in value of investment in equity instruments measured at FVTPL (unrealised) 3.57   -   

Change in value due to sale of investment in equity instruments measured at FVTPL (realised) -     -   

Balance as at end of the year 24.56 0.00

Particulars

(52)   Segment Information     
    
A. Basis for segmentation     
An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses 
that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components, and for which discrete nancial information is available. All operating segments’ operating results are 
reviewed regularly by the Group’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance.     
     
Business Segments: The reportable segments have been identied on the basis of the Business vertical of the group. Operating Segment disclosed are consistent with the 
information provided to and reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). Accordingly, the Group has identied following business segments:     

  Reportable segments  Operations 

Ferro Alloys    Manufacturing 

Real Estate    Construction & Development 

Year ended 31 March 2025

1. Segment Revenue (Net Sales / Income from each Segment)     

 a) Ferro Alloys  1,805.61 

 b) Real Estate -   

 c) Unallocated  -   

 Total  1,805.61 

 Less: Inter Segment Revenue       -   

 Net Sales / Income from Operations 1,805.61 

Particulars

B. Summary of Segment information as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025 is as follows:

2. Segment Results (Profit (+) / Loss (-) before tax and interest from each Segment)     

 a) Ferro Alloys 195.70 

 b) Real Estate (0.02)

 Total  195.68 

Add/Less:            

 (i) Finance Cost  (21.64)

 (ii) Other un-allocable expenditure (Net of un-allocable income) 678.39 

 (iii) Exceptional Items - Income/ (Expenses) -   

Profit / (Loss) before tax  852.43 

Particulars Year ended 31 March 2025
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As at 31 March 2025

3. Segment Assets     

 a) Ferro Alloys 1,141.88 

 b) Real Estate 591.76 

 c) Unallocated  3,115.30 

 Total Assets  4,848.94 

 Segment Liabilities     

 a) Ferro Alloys 296.70 

 b) Real Estate 0.31 

 c) Unallocated  796.76 

 Total Liabilities  1,093.77 

Particulars

Year ended 31 March 2025

4. Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses     

 a) Metals & Minerals  22.28 

 b) Real Estate -   

 Total  22.28 

Particulars

5. Capital Expenditure     

 a) Metals & Minerals   85.69 

 b) Real Estate  -   

 Total  85.69 

Particulars

Notes: During the current quarter, the Group entered into Real Estate business. Hence, for the year ending 31 March 2025, the aforementioned segment is reported. 

Year ended 31 March 2024Year ended 31 March 2025

- Within India  747.00   766.62 

- Outside India  1,057.77   960.80 

Total 1,804.77   1,727.42 

Revenue from External Customers

C.  Geographical Information

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

- Within India 348.70   306.28 

- Outside India -     -   

Total 348.70   306.28 

Non-Current Assets

D. For product wise information refer note 36.     
     
E.  The Group is not reliant on revenue from transactions with any single external customer.     
     
F. Revenue from Customer more than 10% of Total Revenue      
 The Company does not have any single external customer (31 March 2024: Two customer of ̀  505.44 Cr.)  from whom revenue is 10% or more of the total revenue of the 

Company. Accordingly, no disclosure under paragraph 34 of Ind AS 108 is required.      

Year ended 31 March 2025
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(54) Related Party Disclosures

(i) Name of the Related Parties and Description of Relationship:

I Holding Company  

1 Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private Limited (till 31 December 2023)

  

II Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

In accordance with "Ind AS 24- "Related Party disclosures" and the Companies Act, 2013 following personnel are considered as KMP

1 Mr. S. C. Agarwalla  Chairman and Managing Director 

2 Mr. Subodh Agarwalla  Whole-time Director and Chief Executive Ofcer 

3 Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla  Chief Financial Ofcer 

4 Mr. Peddi Srinivas  Non-executive Director 

5 Mr. Nand Kishore Agarwal  Independent and Non-Executive Director (till 21 September 2024) 

6 Mr. Vivek Kaul  Independent and Non-Executive Director 

7 Mr. P. K. Venkatramani   Independent and Non-Executive Director 

8 Mr. Naresh Kumar Jain  Independent and Non-Executive Director 

9 Mrs. Sonal Choubey  Independent and Non-Executive Director 

10 Mr. Aayush Khetawat  Independent and Non-Executive Director (w.e.f. 14 August 2024) 

11 Mr. Ashok Bhandari  Independent and Non-Executive Director (till 10 September 2023) 

12 Mrs. Kalpana Biswas Kundu  Independent and Non-Executive Director (till 2 February 2024) 

13 Mr. Rajesh K. Shah  Company Secretary 

III Close Members of Key Managerial Personnel   

1 Mrs. Sheela Devi Agarwalla  Relative of Mr. S. C. Agarwalla 

2 Mrs. Mitu Agarwalla  Relative of Mr. Subodh Agarwalla 

3 Mrs. Tripti Agarwalla  Relative of Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla 

4 Mr. Prahlad Rai Agarwalla  Relative of Mr. S. C. Agarwalla 

IV Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel are able to exercise significant influence   

1 BMA Foundation   

2 Super Bright Textiles & Finance Private Limited   

3 Subhas Chandra Agarwalla HUF (till 22 Januray 2025)   

(53) Assets Pledged as Security 
The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for borrowings of the holding company are:

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

First Charge     

Current     

Trade Receivables 145.40   387.61 

Inventories 588.04   339.67 

Investment in Equity Shares 601.10   -   

  1,334.54   727.28 

Non-Current     

Property, Plant and Equipment 118.80   126.82 

  118.80   126.82 

Total Assets Pledged as Security 1,453.34   854.10 

Particulars

Maithan Alloys Annual Report 2024-25242 Maithan Alloys Annual Report 2024-25 256



2024 - 25

Types of Transactions

1 Remuneration Paid      

 Mr. S. C. Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     5.82   8.70 

 Mr. Subodh Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     4.65   6.96 

 Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     5.70   4.90 

 Mr. Rajesh K. Shah  -     -     -     -     0.24   0.23 

       

2 Issuance of Securities      

 Mr. S. C. Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     -     3.16 

 Mr. Subodh Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     -     3.58 

 Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     -     1.21 

 Mrs. Sheela Devi Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     -     1.12 

 Subhas Chandra Agarwalla HUF  -     -     -     0.34   -     -   

 Mrs. Mitu Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     -     0.01 

 Mrs. Tripti Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     -     0.01 

 Mr. Prahlad Rai Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     -     3.06 

       

3 Cancellation of Securities      

 Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private Limited  -     17.27   -     -     -     -   

       

4 Sitting Fees      

 Mr. Peddi Srinivas  -     -     -     -     0.01   0.01 

 Mr. Nand Kishore Agarwal  -     -     -     -     0.01   0.02 

 Mr. Ashok Bhandari  -     -     -     -     -     0.00 

 Mr. Vivek Kaul  -     -     -     -     0.01   0.01 

 Mr. P. K. Venkatramani   -     -     -     -     0.02   0.01 

 Mrs. Kalpana Biswas Kundu  -     -     -     -     -     0.01 

 Mr. Naresh Kumar Jain  -     -     -     -     0.01   -   

 Mrs. Sonal Choubey  -     -     -     -     0.02   -   

 Mr. Aayush Khetawat  -     -     -     -     0.01   -   

       

5 CSR Expenses      

 BMA Foundation  -     -     14.55   7.01   -     -   

       

       

6 Rent Paid      

 Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private Limited  -     0.02   -     -     -     -   

 Super Bright Textiles & Finance Private Limited  -     -     0.12   0.12   -     -   

 Mrs. Sheela Devi Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     0.12   0.12 

 Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     0.05   0.03 

       

7 Security Deposit      

 Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     -     0.01 

Holding Key Management Personnel and
their Relatives

Enterprises influenced by KMP

2023 - 24 2024 - 25 2024 - 252023 - 24 2023 - 24

(ii) Transactions during the year with Related Parties

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
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(` In Cr.)

2024 - 25

Types of Transactions

8 Reimbursement of Expenses      

 Mr. P. K. Venkatramani   -     -     -     -     0.01   0.01 

       

9 Dividend Paid      

 Mr. S. C. Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     4.50   0.75 

 Mr. Subodh Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     2.55   0.40 

 Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     0.89   0.16 

 Mrs. Sheela Devi Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     3.18   0.59 

 Mr. Prahlad Rai Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     2.84   0.06 

 Mrs. Mitu Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     0.01   -   

 Mrs. Tripti Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     0.01   -   

 Mr. Nand Kishore Agarwal  -     -     -     -     -     0.00 

 Mr. Vivek Kaul  -     -     -     -     0.00   0.00 

 Mr. P. K. Venkatramani   -     -     -     -     0.00   0.00 

 Subhas Chandra Agarwalla HUF  -     -     -     -     0.21   -   

 Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private Limited  -     10.36   -     -     -     -   

Holding Key Management Personnel and
their Relatives

Enterprises influenced by KMP

2023 - 24 2024 - 25 2024 - 252023 - 24 2023 - 24

As At
31 March 2025

Particulars

1 Remuneration Payable      

 Mr. S. C. Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     -     1.86 

 Mr. Subodh Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     -     1.12 

 Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     0.08   0.48 

 Mr. Rajesh K. Shah  -     -     -     -     0.01   0.00 

       

2 Other Receivable      

 Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     0.01   0.01 

 Mr. S. C. Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     1.40   -   

 Mr. Subodh Agarwalla  -     -     -     -     0.34   -   

Holding Key Management Personnel and
their Relatives

Enterprises influenced by KMP

As At
31 March 2024

As At
31 March 2025

As At
31 March 2025

As At
31 March 2024

As At
31 March 2024

(iii) Balance Outstanding

(iv)  Compensation to Key Management Personnel

As At 31 March 2024As At 31 March 2025

1 Short Term Employee Benets 16.42   20.79 

2 Post Employment Benets* -     -   

3 Other Long Term Benets* -     -   

  16.42   20.79 

Particulars

* Post employment benets and long term employee benets are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation for the company as a whole and hence segregation is not available.       
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(` In Cr.)

(55) Business Combinations
(i) Summary of acquisitions during the year ended 31 March, 2025 is given below:
During the Year, Maithan Alloys Limited ("Holding Company") had entered into a Shares Purchase Agreement (SPA) with its existing shareholders for the acquisition of 100% of 
the share capital of Eloise Builders & Constructions Private Limited (EBCPL), situated in New Delhi. On completion of the condition precedent to SPA, EBCPL has become 
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company w.e.f. 25 February 2025. The acquisition was carried out for a purchase consideration of ̀  73.00 Cr.      

Based on the above arrangements, Holding Company has completed acquisition of Eloise Builders & Constructions Private Limited situated in the Union Territory of New Delhi. 
Accordingly, EBCPL became wholly owned subsidiary of the Holding Company w.e.f. 25 February 2025.       

This acquisition was considered to be asset acquisitions as this does not meet the denition of ‘business’ in accordance with the principles laid down in Ind AS 103 – Business 
Combinations.      

Summary of assets acquired and liabilities assumed: 
Consideration Transferred 

` in Cr.

Consideration paid for purchase of Equity shares  73.00

   73.00

Particulars

Net amount of Assets and Liabilities

As at 25th February, 2025

Assets      

Non- Current Assets      

Property, Plant and Equipment  -   

Total Non-Current Assets -   

Current Assets      

 (a) Inventories 114.54

 (b) Financial Assets      

 (i) Cash and Cash Equivalents  0.12 

Total Current Assets 114.66 

Total Assets Acquired  114.66 

      

Non- Current Liabilities      

 (a) Financial Liabilities 

 (i) Long Term Borrowings 36.65 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 36.65 

Current Liabilities      

 (a) Financial Liabilities      

 (i) Trade Payables  4.96 

   (b) Other Current Liabilities 0.05 

Total Current Liabilities 5.01 

Total Liabilities Assumed  41.66 

Total identifiable net assets 73.00 

Particulars

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
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(` In Cr.)

Country of
Incorporation

Name of the Enterprise

 
(ii)  The subsidiaries considered in preparation of these consolidated nancial statements are:          

Principal Activities Ownership interest held by 
the group

Ownership interest held by 
non-controlling interests

As At 31 March 
2025

As At 31 March 
2024

As At 31 March 
2025

As At 31 March 
2024

 Anjaney Minerals Limited Manufacturing and trading of 100% 100%  -     -    India 
 metals and/or minerals &
 Real estate Business.

 Salanpur Sinters Private Limited Processing of powder and lump & 100% 100%  -     -    India 
 Real estate Business

AXL-Exploration Private Limited Manufacturing and trading of 75% 75% 25% 25% India 
 metals and/or minerals

Maithan Ferrous Private Limited Manufacturing and trading of 80% 80% 20% 20% India 
 metals and/or minerals

Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Limited Manufacturing and trading of  100% 100%  -     -    India 
 Ferro Alloys

Ramagiri Renewable Energy Limited Generation of electricity 100% 100%  -     -    India 

Dadhichi Rail & Defence Operations Limited Manufacturing of specialized parts 100% 0%  -     -    India 
 for railway, tramway, locomotives 
 or of rolling stock and to
 manufacture and deals in goods
 and products used in defence
 sector & Real estate Business

Eloise Builders & Constructions Private Limited   Real estate development, 100% 0%  -     -    India 
 construction, leasing, trading,
 and property management services.

Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital consisting solely of equity shares that are held directly by the Group, and the proportion of ownership interests held equals the 
voting rights held by the Group. The country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of business.

(56) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments        
In the ordinary course of business, the Company faces claims and assertions by various parties. The Company assesses such claims and assertions and monitors the legal 
environment on an on going basis, with the assistance of external legal counsel, wherever necessary. The Company records a liability for any claims where a potential loss is 
probable and capable of being estimated and discloses such matters in its nancial statements, if material. For potential losses that are considered possible but not probable, 
the Company provides disclosure in the nancial statements but does not record a liability in its accounts unless the loss becomes probable.        

The following is a description of claims and assertions where a potential loss is possible, but not probable. The Company believes that none of the contingencies described 
below would have a material adverse effect on the Company's nancial condition, results of operations or cash ow.               

(i) Contingent Liabilities:

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

a) Claims against the Company/ disputed liabilities not acknowledged as debt        

 - Income Tax 3.32   11.10 

 - Excise duty and service tax demand 3.59   11.60 

 - Goods and Service Tax 1.93   1.28 

 - Value Added Tax 0.13   0.11 

 - Electricity Charges* 5.19   -   

  14.16   24.09 

Particulars
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(` In Cr.)

*Pertains to a case pending before the Hon'ble Meghalaya High Court relating to  retrospective electricity charges where the Hon'ble Court has reserved its order and the 
likelihood of any resultant nancial outow is assessed as remote.        
The amounts shown above represent the possible estimates arrived at on the basis of available information. The uncertainties and timing of the cash ows are dependent on 
the outcome of different legal processes which have been invoked by the Company or the claimants, as the case may be and, therefore, cannot be estimated accurately. The 
Company does not expect any reimbursement in respect of above contingent liabilities.         

In the opinion of the management, no provision is considered necessary for the disputes mentioned above on the ground that there are fair chances of successful outcome of 
the appeals.        

(ii) Commitments: 

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital commitments        

- Property, Plant & Equipment 2.68   1.17 

- Investments 88.00   -   

Total 90.68   1.17 

Particulars

(57) Composite Scheme of Arrangement 
The Board of Directors of Maithan Alloys Limited (“Company” or “MAL” or “Transferee Company”), at its meeting held on 5 May 2021 had considered and approved the 
Composite Scheme of Arrangement ("Scheme") amongst Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private Limited ("MKH" or "Demerged Company" or "Transferor Company") and Anjaney 
Land Assets Private Limited ("ALAPL" or "Resulting Company") and the Company and their respective shareholders and creditors under Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 
66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Subsequently the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 11 November 2021 had modied 
the Scheme to x the 'Appointed Date' of the Scheme as 1 November 2021 and related consequential changes thereof.         
        
Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench, (Hon’ble NCLT) vide its Order dated 1 February 2024 had approved the said Scheme with the ‘Appointed Date’ as 1 
January 2024. Consequent upon ling of the said Scheme with Registrar of Companies, West Bengal, the Scheme had become effective from 8 March 2024 with an  ‘Appointed 
Date’ i.e., 1 January  2024 in terms of the Order of Hon’ble NCLT. Accordingly, the effect of the scheme which is a common control transaction had been taken in the books of the 
Company.        

Upon the scheme coming into effect, assets and liabilities relating to the Real Estate and Ancillary Business of MKH demerged into ALAPL (“Part II of the Scheme”). The 
aggregate of excess assets over liabilities amounting to ̀  45.44 Cr. relating to the Real Estate and Ancillary Business of MKH was transferred to ALAPL and the cancellation of 
the equity shares held by MKH in the paid-up capital of ALAPL was debited to Capital Reserve (“Capital Reserve due to Demerger”) w.e.f. 1 January 2024, being the Appointed 
date as per the NCLT Order. As a result of this demerger a Capital Reserve having a debit balance of ̀  45.44 Cr. was created in MKH on 1 January 2024.        

Post Demerger the remaining business undertaking of MKH is amalgamated with MAL (“Part III of the Scheme”) and recorded for in the books of account of MAL as per “Pooling 
of Interest Method” as described in Appendix C of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 103- “Business Combinations” prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act 
2013 read with relevant rules thereunder.        
        
The Company had issued and allotted 1,72,70,176 fully paid-up equity shares of the face value of ` 10/- each in the proportion of the number of equity shares held by the 
shareholders of Transferor Company in the Transferor Company during the F.Y. 2024-25        
        
Further, pursuant to the Scheme existing shares of the Company held by the Transferor Company i.e. 1,72,70,176 fully paid-up equity shares of ` 10/- each, were 
cancelled/extinguished.

Upon Amalgamation, the difference between the asset, liabilities, reserves including amalgamation adjustment account are recorded as Capital Reserve ( Amalgamation 
adjustment decit account) having debit balance of ̀  1,440.32 Cr. in the books of the Company.        
        
The details of assets, liabilities and reserve transfer from Demerged Company are as follows:
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(` in Cr.)

Investment in share of MAL - appeared in the books of MKH 1,471.58

Investment in share of MAL - Cancelled pursuant to amalgamation (1,471.58)

Share Capital issued to MKH - Cancelled pursuant to amalgamation 17.27

Amalgamation Equity Share issued to the equity shareholders of MKH (17.27)

Amalgamation Adjustment Account 19.03

Capital Reserve -  appeared in the books of MKH (1,557.21)

Capital Reserve due to Demerger 45.44

Securities Premium - appeared in the books of MKH (1.75)

Retained Earnings -  appeared in the books of MKH 87.94

Statutory Reserve Fund - appeared in the books of MKH (32.50)

Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income - appeared in the books of MKH (1.27)

Capital Reserve (Amalgamation adjustment deficit account) 1,440.32

Particulars

Name of the Company

(58) Additional Information pursuant paragraph 2 of Division II of  Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013

Net Assets Share in Profit or Loss Other Comprehensive Income Total Comprehensive Income

As % of 
Consolidated Net 

Assetss 

Amount
(` in Cr.)

As % of 
Consolidated 
Prot or Loss

Amount
(` in Cr.)

As % of 
Consolidated 

Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Amount
(` in Cr.)

As % of 
Consolidated 

Total 
Comprehensive 

Income

Amount
(` in Cr.)

Parent         

Maithan Alloys Ltd. 98.12%  3,684.59  101.48%  640.23  99.42%  0.20  101.48%  640.43 

Subsidiaries         

AXL-Exploration Private Limited 0.00%  0.14  0.00%  (0.01) 0.00%  -    0.00%  (0.01)

Anjaney Minerals Limited 0.16%  6.06  -0.09%  (0.54) 0.00%  -    -0.09%  (0.54)

Salanpur Sinters Private Limited 0.17%  6.21  0.04%  0.27  0.00%  -    0.04%  0.27 

Maithan Ferrous Private Limited 0.96%  36.07  0.46%  2.92  0.00%  -    0.46%  2.92 

Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Limited 1.45%  54.58  -1.45%  (9.16) 0.58%  0.00  -1.45%  (9.16)

Ramagiri Renewable Energy Limited 0.26%  9.66  0.03%  0.18  0.00%  -    0.03%  0.18 

Dadhichi Rail And Defence Operations  -0.02%  (0.74) -0.13%  (0.84) 0.00%  -    -0.13%  (0.84)
Limited

Eloise Builders & Constructions Private  1.94%  72.69  -0.05%  (0.31) 0.00%  -    -0.05%  (0.31)
Limited

Non-Controlling Interest 0.24%  9.09  0.12%  0.73  0.00%  -    0.12%  0.73 

Intercompany Eliminations on  -3.28%  (123.18) -0.41%  (2.56) 0.00%  -    -0.41%  (2.56)
consolidations

Total 100.00%  3,755.17  100.00%  630.91  100.00%  0.20  100.00%  631.11 

(60) ADDITIONAL REGULATORY DISCLOSURES AS PER SCHEDULE III OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013 :       
(i) The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any   Benami property.        
(ii) There are no transactions with the Group whose name are struck off under Section 248 of The Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956 during 

the year ended 31 March 2025.        
(iii) All applicable cases where registration of charges or satisfaction is required to be led with Registrar of Companies have been led. No registration or satisfaction is 

pending at the year ended 31 March 2025.        
(iv) The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Restriction on number 

of Layers) Rules, 2017.        

As at 31 March 2025 Year ended 31 March 2025 Year ended 31 March 2025 Year ended 31 March 2025

(59) Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Limited (”wholly owned subsidiary of Maithan Alloys Limited”) has closedown its production w.e.f. May 1, 2023 due to a steep
        increase in power tariff. 
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(v) The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the 
Intermediary shall:        

 a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (ultimate beneciaries) or       
 b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneciary       
vi)  The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries), with the understanding that the Company shall:       
 a) directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneciaries); or       
 b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneciary.       
(vii) The Group has not operated in any crypto currency or Virtual Currency transactions.        
(viii) During the year the Group has not disclosed or surrendered, any income other than the income recognised in the books of accounts in the tax assessments under 

Income Tax Act, 1961.        
        
(61) The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benets during employment and post-employment benets received Presidential assent in September 

2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notied and the nal rules/ 
interpretation have not yet been issued. The Group will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code 
becomes effective.       

        
(62) The Holding Company and its subsidiaries has used accounting software including Payroll accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the nancial 

year ended 31 March 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all the relevant transactions 
recorded in the accounting software, except in respect of the Holding Company accounting software, the audit trail feature was enabled at the database level from 14 
May 2024 and in respect of the payroll accounting software, the audit trail feature was not enabled at the database level throughout the year.

 There is no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with that was noted in respect of the accounting software including payroll accounting software for holding 
and subsidiary companies.Additionally, the Company and its Subsidiary have preserved the audit trail in accordance with statutory record retention requirements, to 
the extent it was enabled and recorded during the respective year.       

        
(63) Recent accounting pronouncements
 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) noties new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as 

issued from time to time. During the year ended 31 March 2025, MCA has notied Ind AS 117 - Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind As 116 – Leases, relating 
to sale and lease back transactions, applicable from 1 April 2024. The Company has assessed that there is no signicant impact on its nancial statements. On 9 May 
2025, MCA noties the amendments to Ind AS 21 - Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates. These amendments aim to provide clearer guidance on assessing 
currency exchangeability and estimating exchange rates when currencies are not readily exchangeable. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after 1 April 2025. The Company is currently assessing the probable impact of these amendments on its nancial statements.       

        
(64) (i) The gures appearing in nancial statements has been rounded off to the nearest crores (Cr.), as required by general instruction for preparation of nancial 

statements in Division II of Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013.       
 (ii)  "0.00" represent the gure below ̀  50,000 because of rounding off the gures in crores.       
        
(65) The nancial statement for the year ended 31 March 2025 were approved by the Board of Directors on 28 May 2025.       
        
(66) Figures for the previous period/year have been regrouped and / or reclassied to conform to the classication of current period/year’s gures, wherever necessary.       

For Singhi & Co.  
Chartered Accountants  
FRN.: 302049E  

Shrenik Mehta  
Partner  
Membership No.: 063769   

Place: Kolkata  
Date: 28 May 2025  

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

S. C. Agarwalla
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00088384

Subodh Agarwalla
Whole-time Director & CEO

DIN: 00339855

Sudhanshu Agarwalla
President & CFO

Rajesh K. Shah
Company Secretary

The accompanying notes 1 to 66 are an integral part of the nancial statements.    
In terms of our report attached    
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6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

4. Reporting period for the 
subsidiary concerned, if 
different from the 
holding company’s 
reporting period  

Reporting period for the Company and its subsidiaries are same i.e. 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025

5. Reporting currency and 
Exchange rate as on the 
last date of the relevant 
financial year in the case 
of foreign subsidiaries 

Reporting currency is Indian Rupees.

Exchange rate disclosure is not applicable since the Company does not have any foreign subsidiary during the nancial year 2024-2025

1. Sl. No. 01 02 03 04

Name of the subsidiary 2.

The date since when 
subsidiary was acquired

3.

AXL
-Exploration 

Private Limited 

Anjaney 
Minerals 
Limited

Salanpur 
Sinters Private 

Limited

Maithan 
Ferrous Private 

Limited

16 March 
2004 

22 October
 2008

28 November 
2017 

5 December 
2019

Share capital 

Reserves & surplus 

Total assets 

Total liabilities 

Investments 

Turnover 

Profit before taxation 

Provision for taxation

Profit after taxation 

Proposed dividend 

Extent of shareholding 
in percentage 

4.66

(4.48)

0.19

0.01

Nil

Nil

(0.01)

Nil

(0.01)

Nil

75%

11.00

(5.47)

112.03

106.50

2.37

Nil

(0.50)

0.04

(0.54)

Nil

100%

6.04

0.17

125.08

118.87

Nil

Nil

0.35

0.09

0.26

Nil

100%

80.00

3.24

123.87

40.63

Nil

147.35

6.49

2.95

3.54

1% on 
preference share

80%

05

Impex 
Metal & Ferro 
Alloys Limited

17 September
 2021

06

Ramagiri 
Renewable

 Energy Limited

13 January 
2023

07

Dadhichi
 Rail & Defence 

Operations Limited

20 July 
2024

08

Eloise Builders & 
Constructions 

Private Limited

25 February 
2025

1.00

53.58

102.57

47.99

Nil

23.88

(8.97)

0.19

(9.16)

Nil

100%

17.30

(15.18)

2.73

0.61

Nil

Nil

0.21

0.02

0.19

Nil

100%

0.10

(0.84)

132.92

133.66

Nil

Nil

(0.84)

Nil

(0.84)

Nil

100%

0.01

(0.32)

41.54

41.85

Nil

Nil

(0.31)

Nil

(0.31)

Nil

100%

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-sec�on (3) of Sec�on 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associate companies or joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries
₹

FORM AOC-1

Notes:
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Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Sec�on 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures:

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

S. C. Agarwalla
Chairman & Managing Director

Subodh Agarwalla
Whole-�me Director & CEO

Sudhanshu Agarwalla Rajesh K. Shah
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 

Works
Kalyaneshwari (West Bengal)
Ri-Bhoi (Meghalaya)
Visakhapatnam (Andhra Pradesh)
Jaisalmer (Rajasthan)
Sangli (Maharashtra)

Corporate Iden�fica�on Number
L27101WB1985PLC039503

Registered Office
Ideal Centre, 4th Floor,
9, AJC Bose Road, Kolkata - 700 017

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent 
Maheshwari Datama�cs Pvt. Ltd.
23, R. N. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata-700001

Banks/Financial Ins�tu�ons
State Bank of India
IndusInd Bank Limited
Ci�bank N.A.
Axis Bank Limited
HDFC Bank Limited
ICICI Bank Limited

Statuary Auditors
Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Secretarial Auditors
Patnaik & Patnaik
Company Secretaries in Prac�ce

Cost Auditors
S. K. Sahu & Associates
Cost Accountants

Chairman and Managing Director
Mr. S. C. Agarwalla

Whole-�me Director and CEO
Mr. Subodh Agarwalla

Directors 
Mr. Nand Kishore Agarwal *
Mr. P. K. Venkatramani
Mr. Naresh Kumar Jain
Mr. Vivek Kaul
Mr. Aayush Khetawat **
Mrs. Sonal Choubey
Mr. Srinivas Peddi

* Ceased to be a Director w.e.f. 21 September 2024.
** Appointed as an Independent Director w.e.f. 
14 August, 2024.

President & CFO
Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla

Company Secretary
Mr. Rajesh K. Shah



Registered Office:
Ideal Centre, 4th Floor, 9, AJC Bose Road, Kolkata - 700017

Phone No.: +91 033-4063-2393 | E-mail: kolkata@maithanalloys.com

Corporate Office:
P.O. Kalyaneshwari, 

Vill. Debipur, Dist. Paschim Bardhaman, West Bengal - 713369, India
E-mail: office@maithanalloys.com | Website: www.maithanalloys.com
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